707 Randolph Street, Suite 100 « Napa, CA 94559-2912
Tel: (707) 259-8631
Fax: (707) 259-8638

Technical Advisory Committee
AGENDA

Thursday, March 3, 2011
2:00 p.m.

NCTPA Conference Room
707 Randolph Street, Suite 100
Napa CA 94559

General Information

All materials relating to an agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the TAC which
are provided to a majority or all of the members of the TAC by TAC members, staff or the public
within 72 hours of but prior to the meeting will be available for public inspection, on and after at
the time of such distribution, in the office of the Secretary of the TAC, 707 Randoiph Street, Suite
100, Napa, California 94559, Monday through Friday, between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m.,
except for NCTPA holidays. Materials distributed to a majority or all of the members of the TAC at
the meeting will be available for public inspection at the public meeting if prepared by the
members of the TAC or staff and after the public meeting if prepared by some other person.
Availability of materials related to agenda items for public inspection does not include materials
which are exempt from public disclosure under Government Code sections 6253.5, 6254, 6254.3,
6254.7, 6254.15, 6254.16, or 6254.22.

Members of the public may speak to the TAC on any item at the time the TAC is considering the
item. Please complete a Speaker’s Slip, which is located on the table near the entryway, and then
present the slip to the TAC Secretary. Also, members of the public are invited to address the TAC
on any issue not on today’s agenda under Public Comment. Speakers are limited to three
minutes.

This Agenda shall be made available upon request in alternate formats to persons with a
disability. Persons requesting a disability-related modification or accommodation should contact
Alberto Esqueda, at (707) 259-8631 during regular business hours, at least 48 hours prior to the
time of the meeting.

This Agenda may also be viewed online by visiting the NCTPA website at www.nctpa.net, click on
Minutes and Agendas — TAC or go to www.nctpa.net/m_a.cfm

ITEMS

1. Call to Order

2. Approval of Meeting Minutes — February 3, 2011
3. Public Comment

4, TAC Member and Staff Comments

o ARRA Project List — Update
e SR 29 Corridor Plan
e CMA
Member Agencies: Calistoga, St. Helena, Yountville, City of Napa, American Canyon, County of Napa

Napa County Transportation & Planning Agency
Napa Valley Transportation Authority



Standing

e Caltrans Report and Map

SB 375/Sustainable Communities Strategy
RHNA/Subregion Formation

Housing Committee

Vine Trail Report

REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS

RECOMMENDATION

6.

Transportation for Clean Air (TFCA) Call for Projects - FY
2011/2012 (Danielle Schmitz) (Pages 13-33)

NCTPA annually allocates funds generated under AB 434,
and that TAC recommend to the Board (1) approve the
TFCA Expenditure Plan FY 2011/2012 and (2) issue call for
projects.

INFORMATION/
ACTION

Funding for Local Transportation Projects (Paul W. Price)
(Pages 34-37)

TAC recommend to the Board based on the information
received in the survey conducted pursuant to the Board
action to (1) staff develop a needs analysis and develop an
expenditure plan (2) develop the plan in coordination with
the jurisdictions and stakeholders (3) forward approved
plan to the Board of Supervisors for consideration as a
future “Transportation Infrastructure Sales Tax” measure to
be voted on by the public in the November 2012 elections
and (4) measure would take effect at such time the current
Flood Control Sales Tax is or can be retired.

ACTION

Transit Operations and Service Report (Deborah Brunner)
(Pages 38-43)

Staff will provide TAC with operations and services
information for on-going projects and bus related
maintenance.

INFORMATION

FY 2013 Regional Transportation Plan - Call for Projécts
(Eliot Hurwitz) (Pages 44-130)

Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) has issued
an open “call for projects” for the Regional Transportation
Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy (RTP/SCS). TAC
to (1) review current 2009 projects for amendments and
changes (2) review program evaluation criteria and
recommend changes (3) review sample cost guide and
recommend adoption (4) endorse dates for public meeting
(5) recommend approval of a final comprehensive project
list to NCTPA Board by April 20, 2011.

INFORMATION/
ACTION




DISCUSSION

10.  Topics for Next Meeting
o Discussion of topics for next meeting by TAC
members.
11.  Approval of Next Regular Meeting Date of April 7, 2011 and APPROVE

Adjournment.




TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE

DELEGATES AND ALTERNATES

Michael Throne, Delegate (Vice Chair)

Brent Cooper, Delegate
Randy Davis, Alternate
Richard Ramirez, Alternate

Ken McNab, Delegate

Dan Takasugi, Delegate
Derek Rayner, Alternate
Erik Lundquist, Alternate

Cassandra Walker, Delegate
Eric Whan, Delegate

Helena Allison, Alternate
Rick Tooker, Alternate

John Ferons, Delegate
Vacant, Delegate

Greg Desmond, Alternate
Debra Hight, Alternate

Rick Marshall, Delegate (Chair)
John McDowell, Delegate
Don Ridenhour, Alternate
Hillary Gitelman, Alternate

Graham Wadsworth, Delegate
Steve Rogers, Delegate

Bob Tiernan, Alternate
Sandra Smith, Alternate

JoAnn Busenbark, Delegate
April Dawson, Alternate

NCTPA/TAC Mbrs&Alts.doc
Latest Revision: 02/23/11

Agency

City of American Canyon

City of Calistoga

City of Napa

City of St. Helena

County of Napa

Town of Yountville

Paratransit Coordinating Council



March 3, 2011

TAC Agenda ltem 2

Continued From: NEW

Action Requested: APPROVE

Technical Advisory Committee

MINUTES
Thursday, February 3, 2011
ITEMS

1. Call to Order
TAC Members nominated and voted the. following members to preside over the
meeting due to the excused absence of Chair - Rick Marshall, County of Napa
and Vice Chair - Michael Throne, City of American Canyon:

Chair (Acting): Helena Allison, City of Napa
MSC* Cooper / Gitelman for Approval

Vice Chair (Acting): Brent Cooper, City of American Canyon
MSC* Allison / McKnab for Approval

The meeting was called to order at 2:08 PM

Brent Cooper City of American Canyon
Ken McNab City of Calistoga
Cassandra Walker City of Napa

Helena Allison City of Napa

Debra Hight City of St. Helena

Bob Tiernan ~ Town of Yountville
Hillary Gitelman County of Napa

2. Approval of Meeting Minutes — January 6, 2011
TAC approved Meeting Minutes of January 6, 2010.
MSC* Allison/ Gitelman for Approval

3. Public Comment. Kellie Anderson, Angwin, requested to comment/question
item 5 regarding the subregion formation committee and the public's
involvement. The Acting Chair requested that the comment be re-addressed
after the presentation of the item, as the presentation may answer her questions.
Kellie Anderson agreed to the request.

*MSC - Motioned, Seconded, and Unanimously Carried
5



March 3, 2011

TAC Agenda Item 2

Continued From: NEW

Action Requested: APPROVE

4. TAC Member and Staff Comments

Modifications to the Agenda. None.

TFCA - Call for Projects. NCTPA staff (Schmitz) announced the
upcoming submission deadline of FY 2011/2012 projects to BAAQMD.
Detailed application guidelines and information will be made available at
next TAC meeting.

ARRA Project List Update. NCTPA staff (Hurwitz) provided TAC with
the latest report for review and comments:

SR 29 Corridor Plan. NCTPA staff (Hurwitz) provided TAC with the latest
information and development progress on the SR 29 Corridor Plan.

RTP - Call for Projects. NCTPA staff (Hurwitz) informed TAC that MTC
has released its “call for projects” for the next FY cycle. Detailed
information and guidelines should be available by the next TAC meeting.
CMA. NCPTA Executive Director (Price) informed TAC that the gasoline
sales tax was extensively discussed at the January 2011 meeting. This
item will be revisited and re-submitted to the NCTPA Board for action in
March. Jurisdictions should seek out their legislation and gather qualifying
projects now for submittal.

5. Standing

CalTrans Report and Map. MTC (Benmore) presented report and map
without any further information (Attachment 1).

SB 375/Sustainable Strategies. Communities. NCTPA staff (Schmitz)
provided the latest information and Board discussion (Attachment 5). TAC
Member (Gitelman) added that no additional pertinent information has
been obtained thru attended meetings; expects more detailed information
on the ‘vision scenarioc” by next week and anticipates ABAG
representatives to be present at next TAC meeting to provide further
information.

RHNA/Subregion Formation. None. Addressed under agenda item 5.
Housing Committee. None.

Vine Trail Report. TAC Member (Hight) provided report of Vine Trail
Meeting attended on 1/19/2011(Attachment 4).

6. Subregion Process and Timeline
Discussion/Information

NCTPA staff (Schmitz) provided updated information and the proposed scope of
work for consultant services for the development of the subregional RHNA
process (Attachment 1). Review and comments requested by 8 February 2011 for
changes to be considered at NCTPA Board meeting on 16 February 2011.

*MSC - Motioned, Seconded, and Unanimously Carried

6



March 3, 2011

TAC Agenda item 2

Continued From: NEW

Action Requested: APPROVE

7. Topics for Next Meeting
Information Only

SR 29 Corridor Plan
By-Laws

TFCA

MTC - Call for Projects

8. Approval of Next Regular Meeting Date of March 3, 2011 and Adjournment

Meeting adjourned at 3:25 PM.

*MSC - Motioned, Seconded, and Unanimously Carried
7



March 3, 201
TAC Agenda Item

; Continued from: NEV
CalTrans Report Action Requested: INFORMATIO!}

PROJECT INITIATION DOCUMENT
Silverado/Lincoln Roundabout NAP 29-PM 37.9: In City of Calistoga
Scope: Modify intersection with a Roundabout Design at Silverado Intersection
Cost Estimate: $3.6M Construction Capital

EA 3A280
Rutherford Intersection Improvement NAP 29-PM 24.6; In Napa Coun

Scope: Modify intersection at Rutherford Road (SR 128) Intersection
Cost Estimate: $2M Construction Capital

EA 0G650
Garnett Creek Bridge Replacement NAP 29-PM 39.1: In Napa County
Scope: Reconstruct a bridge at Garett Creek

Cost Estimate: $5.3M Construction Capital

ENVIRONMENTAL
EA 28120
Soscol Flyover NAP 221 PM 0.0/0.7 NAP 29 PM 3.0/7.1; In Napa County
Scope: Flyover Structure at SR 221/29/12, Alternative 5 Option 2
Cost Estimate: $35M Construction Capital
Schedule DED 5/11 PAED 11/11

EA 2A320

Sarco Creek NAP 121-PM 9.3/9.5; In Napa County Near City of Napa

Scope: Bridge replacement at Sarco Creek

Cost Estimate: $8M Construction Capital

Schedule: PAED 8/11 PSE 1/13 RWC 5/13 RTL 5/13 CCA 12/18

EA 2A110

Capell Creek NAP 121-PM 20.2/20.4; In Napa Coun

Scope: Bridge replacement at Capell Creek

Cost Estimate: $5M Construction Capital

Schedule: PAED 05/11 PSE 09/12 RWC 10/12 RTL 12/12 CCA 04/14

EA 4A090

Troutdale Creek NAP 29-PM 47.0/47.2; In Napa Coun

Scope: Bridge replacement at Troutdate Creek

Cost Estimate: $17M Construction Capital

Schedule: PAED 04/12 PSE 11/13 RWC 12/13 RTL 01/14 CCA 05/16

DESIGN
EA 25940
Channelization NVWT NAP 29-PM 25.5/28.4; In and Near Ci of St. Helena
Scope: Left-turn channelization and pavement rehabilitation from Mee Lane to Charter Oak Avenue

Cost Estimate: $24M Construction Capital

Schedule: PAED 6/29/07 PSE 2/11 RWC 04/13 RTL 08/13 CCA 12/14
PID (Project Initiation Document) PSR (Project Study Report) DED (Draft Environmental Document)
PAED (Project Approval/ Environmental Document) PSE (Plans, Specifications, and Estimate)
RWC (Right of Way Certification) RTL (Ready to List) CCA (Construction Contract Acceptance)

ADV (Advertise Contract) BO (Bid Open) AWD (Award Contract)




EA 26413 and 26414

Jameson Canyon NAP 12-PM 0.2/3.3, SOL 12-PM 0.0/2.6; In Napa and Solano Counties

Scope: Jameson Canyon: Widen 2 lane to 4 lanes, construct a concrete median from SR 29 to Red Top Road Split into two
roadway contracts (Napa and Solano) and follow up landscape project.

Cost Estimate: $139.5M Construction Capital)
Schedule: PAED 1/31/08 PSE 1/28/10 RWC 11/10 RTL 11/10 CCA 9/13

EA 20940

Tulucay Creek Bridge NAP 121-PM 6.1/6.2; In City of Napa

Scope: Bridge Replacement

Cost Estimate: $5.9M Construction Capital

Schedule: PAED 1/30/04 PSE Delayed  RWC Delayed RTL Delayed  CCA Delayed

EA 2E100

Pavement Repair NAP 128 PM 7.4/19.1; In Napa County

Scope: Pavement resurfacing from Silverado Trail to Knoxville Road.

Cost Estimate: $2.2M Construction Capital
Schedule: PAED 3/18/10 PSE 11/10 RWC 11/10 RTL 2/11 CCA 5/12

EA 2E110

Pavement Repair NAP 29 PM 5.1/7.0: In City of Napa

Scope: Pavement resurfacing with rubberized asphalt from 0.3 mile north of SR12/Airport to Napa River Bridge

Cost Estimate: $2.1M Construction Capital
Schedule: PAED 5/15/10 PSE 11/10 RWC 11/10 RTL 1/20/11  CCA 7/12

EA 2E130

Pavement Repair NAP 29 PM 11.0/12.5; In City of Napa

Scope: Pavement resurfacing with asphalt from 0.3 mile north of Old Sonoma to 0.5 mile north of Lincoln Ave

Cost Estimate: $1.2M Construction Capital
Schedule: PAED 5/11/10 PSE 12/10 RWC 11/10 RTL 2/11 CCA 12/11

EA 4C351

Pavement Repair NAP 128 PM 4.0/4.6 Minor A; In City of Calistoga

Scope: Pavement Resurfacing and culvert repair from High Street to Lincoln Avenue

Cost Estimate: $700K Construction Capital

Schedule: PAED 8/14/09 PSE 1/12 RWC 1/12 RTL 2/12 CCA 12/12

EA 4442A

Duhig Landscape Nap 12-PM 0.3/2.0 On route 121; in Napa County

Scope: Mitigation and tree Planting from 0 5km North of Sonoma County line to Duhig Road
Cost Estimate: $920K Construction Capital
Schedule: PAED 8/26/05 PSE 10/1/10 RWC 10/1/10 RTL 11/10/10 CCA 10/14

EA 45020

Storm Damage NAP 29 PM 41.0 ; In Napa County

Scope: Reconstruct slope and replace culvert, 1.6 miles north of Tubbs Lane,
Cost Estimate: $2.4M Construction Capital

Schedule: PAED 8/2/10 PSE 10/11 RWC 1/12 RTL 1/12 CCA 8/14
PID (Project Initiation Document) PSR (Project Study Report) DED (Draft Environmental Document)
PAED (Project Approval/ Environmental Document) PSE (Plans, Specifications, and Estimate)
RWC (Right of Way Certification) RTL (Ready to List) CCA (Construction Contract Acceptance)
ADV (Advertise Contract) BO (Bid Open) AWD (Award Contract)




EA 45030

Storm Damage NAP 128 PM 10.3; In Napa County Near Lake Hennessy

Scope: Construct sheet pile wall at 2.8 miles east of Silverado Trail
Cost Estimate: $1.3M Construction Capital

Schedule: PAED 8/2/10 PSE 10/11 RWC 1/12 RTL 1/12 CCA 8/14
CONSTRUCTION
EA 44421

Duhig Nap 121 PM 12-0.3/2.1; in Napa County

Scope: Curve Improvements and Shoulder Widening from 0.5km North of Sonoma County line to Duhig Road

Cost Estimate: $11M Construction Capital
Schedule: PAED 8/26/05 RTL 4/08 AWD 12/10/08 to Northbay Const. CCA 02/03/11

EA 12063

Landscape at Trancas I/C NAP 29-PM 11.6/13.5; In City of Napa

Scope: Replacement Highway Planting On Route 29 from 0.2 km North of 1* Street to Sierra Ave
Status: In 3-year Plant Establishment Period: Completed with Planting in April 2008

Cost Contract: $620K Construction Capital

Schedule: PAED 8/30/04 RTL 8/30/06  AWD 2/9/07 to Watkin CCA 4/11

EA 1G320

Director’s Order NAP 29-PM 36.9/37.2; In City of Calistoga

Scope: Repair storm drainage damage from Napa River to Washington Street

Cost Contract: $300,000 Construction Capital ----- Completed Replaced culvert at Washington St., repaved intersection and
repaired collapsed culvert and inlet on north side of Lincoln at Napa River Bridge.

EA 2G220

Director’s Order NAP 29-PM 28.4/28.92; In City of St. Helena

Scope: Shoulder pavement replacement

Cost Contract: $250,000 Construction Capital — Pending weather conditions

EA2A541

ADA Vista Point NAP 29 PM 7.1: In Napa County Near City of Napa

Scope: Upgrade the Vista Point to meet the latest ADA (American with Disability Act) at Grape Crusher Statute
Cost Estimate: $360K Construction Capital

Schedule: PAED 3/30/07 RTL 12/17/09  AWD 9/10 (Fieldstone Construction) CCA 3/11

EA 4C350

Pavement Repair NAP 128 PM 2.6/4.0 Minor A; In City of Calistoga

Scope: Pavement resurfacing with rubberized hot mix asphalt from Tubbs Lane to High Street

Cost Estimate: $940K Construction Capital

Schedule: PAED 8/14/09 RTL 3/22/10  AWD 12/21/10 (MCK Services) CCA 6/11

EA 28370

Storm Damage NAP 128 PM 9.5 In Napa County,

Scope: Install drainage culvert and rock slope protection near Conn Creek Bridge

Cost Estimate: $550K Construction Capital

Schedule: PAED 5/13/03 RTL 8/3/09 AWD 9/30/09 to Northbay Construction =~ CCA 6/11

PID (Project Initiation Document) PSR (Project Study Report) DED (Draft Environmental Document)
PAED (Project Approval/ Environmental Document) PSE (Plans, Specifications, and Estimate)
RWC (Right of Way Certification) RTL (Ready to List) CCA (Construction Contract Acceptance)
ADV (Advertise Contract) BO (Bid Open) AWD (Award Contract)

10




EA 4C140

Pavement Repair NAP 29 PM 38.1/48.6; In Napa County

Scope: Overlay pavement with dense graded and open graded asphalt from 0.2 mile north of Silverado Trail to County Line.
Cost Estimate: $6.2M Construction Capital
Schedule: PAED 3/27/08 RTL 8/3/10 ADV 12/6/10  BO 1/12/11 (8 bidders) CCA 12/11

ACTION ITEMS:

PID (Project initiation Document) PSR (Project Study Report) DED (Draft Environmental Document)
PAED (Project Approval/ Environmental Document) PSE (Pians, Specifications, and Estimate)
RWC (Right of Way Certification) RTL (Ready to List) CCA (Construction Contract Acceptance)

ADV (Advertise Contract) BO (Bid Open) AWD (Award Contract)

1




2011

CTI/IT Ad'INTZS 1500
0L/ S WA 6T dVN
1eday] JudwdAR |

orgagsva

Mrch 3

TI/TT-Ad"INT §9% 150D
97/0°0 INd T1 "10S
uoAue)) uosowey
PIPoT#VI i CIELL A:d WNEEE 1500

S Wd 6T VN L 0/0 0 W ITT dVN

JANOAL, TN

(ZIRT #vi

ATTACHMENT 1
TAC Agenda Item 5

: ; T 2
S ) 01/60 ‘A4 'WLOS 350D | A0Z68 150
"N90gg 1503 F o e e o 7 edeN jo L1 ! YUC VWA Tl dVN
CE00NATI dVN A : Ieau suonedo[ oyjopue | adeaspuery 3ryngg
noacmu uosowey | 2 : dYN Wiod 81siA vay | Vivrr#vd
€1vozava L . 1 _ 1psvzava |

60/80 -Ad ‘W1I$ 350D
07/€0Nd T1 dVN
siyng

[Zvvvitvd

) Y -

47NT6 €§ 150D
T9/T9Nd 1Tt dVN
adpug 3910 Aeonny,
0ve0THvH

L0/90 “Ad *00¥'819$ 150D
SEL/91T INd 6TdVN
/1 seouel], Je sdedspuey

£90T1

PI/ET-Ad 'WEE w0)
SH/E 6 W ITT d¥N
A1) ooy
OTEVIRV:L

AdTINES 1500

_ : 9VYT A 6T dVN

N RO 3 PAOLIOYNY

: 1150, : \. .
01/£0°Ad 055$:350D \ ._., ow~<m%<m

$'6Wd 8T1 dVN
sfeure( uuojg
0LESTHVE E : e
£1/21 AL NE 18 150D A AN S N ; o B o S0 ¥ 87/S ST 6Z AV
€01 Wd 8TI dVN [} S e ok LMAN uonezijouuey )
adeweq uuog | ——p ) H R ] OveSTHVE fie

0cospival [EEES LN T L EYE
; R gy et 2 ¥y 11/01 ‘A4 *0sz$ 1500 |

: b P cosl 6'8Z/¥'8T INd 6T dVYN

1uawade(dar Juawaaed Jopnoyg

07ZOTAVE

['NZ'Z§ 150D
161/F L WA 8T1 dVN 1w g, ; - T —
Jeday wowoaey | - -y A E/TE A TI00LS 150D
10019Z#VE ; . : Ly ek 9 /0 INd 8T1 dVN
- TR | Jieday Juowisaeg
H1SEDPHVE

11/01 Ad°
T'LE/6'9¢ Wd 6T dVN
-SHOAIND Jredoy
0TEDIHVH

]

ING'€§ 1800
6L WA 6TAYN § i e
mogeptmoy i 11/01 ‘:Ad "M0v6$ 150D
0'%/9°T Nd 8T1 dVN
Jieday] Juaweaey

0SEOP#VH

INE'S$ 1500
1'6€ WA 6T dVN | =
2Ly aulen) s AdNE T $ 150D
095D0#VH PE I¥ Wd 6T dVN

— E s8ewe( wong

0T0SY#vVa

— VT Bt e

: P ! ; 11/01:Ad "NT'9 §: 1500 \

. T : H . : 9'8b/1'8¢ Wd 6T dVN
ﬁOmwQﬂhwmQOU ._ .._\. , :«aoxucuegmm

ﬁWmmOQ Ov1OVv#VHE
[eIUSWUOIIAUF W oy S S :
uoneniuy josforg | _ £ AN 0. | T Lv0Lr wa ez avn

¥203) afepino
06DV E#HVH

el A uh~ >




March, 3 2011

TAC Agenda Item 6

Continued From: New

Action Requested: INFORMATION/ACTION

NAPA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AND PLANNING AGENCY
TAC Agenda Letter

TO: Technical Advisory Committee (TAC)
FROM: Paul W. Price, Executive Director

REPORT BY: Danielle Schmitz, Environmental Analyst/Coordinator
(707) 259-5968 / Email: dschmitz@nctpa.net

SUBJECT: Transportation for Clean Air (TFCA) - Call for Projects FY 2011/2012

RECOMMENDATION

TAC recommends the NCTPA Board approve the FY 2011/2012 TFCA Expenditure
Plan and issue a call for projects for FY 2011/2012.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

NCTPA annually allocates funds generated under AB 434. The funds come from a
four-dollar vehicle license fee imposed by the Bay Area Air Quality Management District
(BAAQMD) and are known as Transportation Fund for Clean Air (TFCA).

40% of these funds are returned to the NCTPA for distribution to local projects. Projects
must be beneficial to air quality and be cost effective. The remaining 60% is allocated
by the BAAQMD on an area wide competitive basis. The Program Expenditure Plan
for the Program Managers Funds is due to the Air District on April 31, 2011.

Generally, the Air District rules and statute only allow funds to be retained for two years

unless the NCTPA originally requests added time or the project is making reasonable
further progress and is granted a one year extension.

FISCAL IMPACT

Is there a Fiscal Impact?  Yes. Approximately $181,000 dollars in TFCA Funds for
FY 2011/2012.

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION




TAC Agenda Letter Thursday, March 3, 2011
TAC Agenda ltem 6
Page 2 of 3

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

Annually the NCTPA adopts a list of projects for the TFCA Program Manager funds.
We receive about $180,000 each year and currently have about $4,000 in unallocated
funds from previous year’s projects. Up to 5% of the program funds can be allocated to
NCTPA for administrative costs. Please save the date for the proposed TFCA
Workshop on Friday, March 18, 2011 at 3:00 PM in the NCTPA Conference Room. If
the date changes NCTPA staff will alert the TAC of the timeline change. As of now,
applications will need to be received in our offices on or before Friday, April 29, 2011.

APPLICATIONS

Applications are scheduled to be due April 29, 2011 by 5:00 pm in the NCTPA
offices. Applications for FY 2011/2012 will be accepted. The application may be in the
form of a letter which must contain:

The name of the agency applying.

A contact person in the agency.

A brief description of the project of no more than one page.

Cost of the project in both TFCA funds and all other dollars, by source.

A schedule for the project.

Sufficient information to determine if the project improves air quality as
determined by the Air District assumptions.

Assurance that the proposed project meets all the Air District policies for 40%
projects.

8. Assurances that the project is an allowed type.

Basic Eligibility

Reduction of emissions.

TFCA cost-effectiveness.

Eligible recipients.

Consistent with existing plans and programs.

Public agencies applying on behalf of non-public Entities.
Consistent with existing plans and programs

SahkLN=

N

Sokwn~

TECA Project Types

Clean Air Vehicle Projects
Shuttle/Feeder Bus

Transit or Vanpool Incentive Programs
Bicycle Facility Improvements

Smart Growth

Arterial Management

SobhON~

14



TAC Agenda Letter Thursday, March 3, 2011
TAC Agenda ltem 6
Page 3 of 3

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS
Attachments:

1) TFCA Expenditure Plan for FY 2011/2012
2) FY 2011/2012 TFCA Program Application and Guidelines for Napa County

15



ATTACHMENT

TAC Agenda item |
March 3, 201
Expenditure Plan Application 11-NAP FY 2011/2012
Program Manager Agency Name: __Napa County Transportation and Planning Agency
Address: 707 Randolph Street, Ste 100, Napa, CA 94559
PART A: NEW TFCA FUNDS
1. Estimated FY11/12 DMV revenues (based on projected CY2010 revenues): Line 1: $180,357.00
2. Difference between prior-year estimate and actual revenue': Line 2: _ $-345.89
a. Actual FY09/10 DMV revenues (based on CY2009): $188.500.11
b. Estimated FY09/10 DMV revenues (based on CY2009): _ $188,846.00
(‘a’ minus ‘b’ equals Line 2.)
3. Estimated New Allocation (Sum of Lines 1 and 2): Line 3: $180.011.11
4. Interest income. List interest earned on TFCA funds in calendar year 2010. Line 4: $6,894.93

5. Estimated TFCA funds budgeted for administration: Line 5: $9.000.55
(Note: This amount may not exceed 5% of Line 3.)

6. Total new TFCA funds available in FY11/12 for projects and administration Line 6: $186.906.04
(Add Lines 3 and 4. These funds are subject to the six-month allocation deadline.)

PART B: TFCA FUNDS AVAILABLE FOR REPROGRAMMING

7. Total amount from previously funded projects available for Line 7: $4,000
reprogramming to other projects. (Enter zero (0) if none.)

(Note: Reprogrammed funds originating from pre-2006 projects are not
subject to the six-month allocation deadline.)

PART C: TOTAL AVAILABLE TFCA FUNDS

8. Total Available TFCA Funds (Sum of Lines 6 and 7) Line 8: $190,906.04
9. Estimated Total TFCA funds available for projects (Line 8 minus Line 5) Line 9: $181,905.49

| certify that, to the best of my knowledge, the information contained in this application is complete and accurate.

Executive Director Signature: Date:

! As of 2/3/11, the FY10/11 actual revenues (based on CY2010) are not available from DMV, and are not
anticipated to be available until March 31, 2010. Thus the difference between the FY10/11 estimated and actual
revenues is not included in this form.

BAAQMD TFCA County Pi ;4 m Manager Fund Page 1



Expenditure Plan Application

11-NAP FY 2011/2012
Complete if there are TFCA Funds available for reprogramming.
$ TFCA $ TFCA $ TFCA
i Proiject N Funds Funds Funds *
Project # Project Sponsor roject Name Allocated Expended Available Code
07NAPOQ5 | City of St. Helena Fleet Modernization: $8,000 $4,000 $4,000 CP
Purchase of 4 Light Duty
Hybrid Vehicles
TOTAL TFCA FUNDS AVAILABLE FOR REPROGRAMMING $4,000

(Enter this amount in Part B, Line 7 of Summary Information form)

* Enter CP (for completed project) or CN (for canceled project)

BAAQMD

TFCA County Pr ,, m Manager Fund

Page 2



ATTACHMENT:
TAC Agenda item |
March 3, 201-

Napa County
Transportatlon &
Planning Agency
Guide and Application for the

Transportation Fund for Clean Air Program
(TFCA) for Napa County Program Manager Funds

NC

P
o

~—

BAY AREA
AIRQUALITY

MANAGEMENT

DiIsSsTRICT

DATES OF IMPORTANCE
TFCA Workshop March 18™ 2011
FY 11/12 Applications Due to NCTPA: April 29", 2011

NCTPA
707 Randolph Street, Suite 100
Napa, CA 94559
Phone: 707-259-8631
Fax: 707-259-8638
www.nctpa.net

18



Table of Contents

WELCOME LETTER ..ottt saesaes s s e saessesssssesssessssrssessssssaesesssnsnsssssssnssssnssnsnns 3
INTRODUCTION & PROGRAM OVERVIEW ..........cooiieeereeceenisenssisesaesseeessessesesesssssesesssssses 4
ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES .........ccioeeintiermnennscessesesssssesssssssssssessssssssssessesesssssssesassssssseas 5
BASIC ELIGIBILITY ...ucueieieiniireirisaitiisscsns e ssesssstssesasssssssassasssssssssssssssssssessessssnssssassssessene 6
USE OF TFCA FUNDS...........ccectiitntiitisssct e st e e ssresasssssssssssssssesenssssseessesessesssasssssssne 8
TFCA PROGRAM MANAGER SELECTION CRITERIA FOR NAPA COUNTY ......ccocoevevnen... 9
TFCA PROJECT TYPES & EXAMPLES ..........ccortrtrirteenrrse et ssesssessessesnssnsssnssnesaes 10
DATES OF IMPORTANCE ..........cooiiiiireit i serscnras e e ssesessssss e s s e st ssss s sssssessssessnsnnssnnes 1
PROJECT SELECTION PROGCESS ........cccectmntrircnnnenrenreneesessesmsssesssssssssssssesansnsesessssssessssesss 12
APPLICATION INSTRUCTIONS .......ccectieitinrenersnsserersessnsresassessssssessssesssasesessssessessesnssesassssasanns 13
DO’S & DON'TS AND FAQS........ccuiiiiieccirerciesenesesesassesss e scsessssssssnsssessessesssenssssssnsassesees 14
CONTACT INFORMATION .......coireiririecrestcnranssesssssssssesssseassessssesessssensesssssssmssesssnssesassssssess 15
APPENDIX A: PROJECT INFORMATION FORM...........ccccervrmrmerueiecenseresseeressenenessessesesnsassens 16

2



m Napa County

Transportation &
TPA Planning Agency

February 8, 2011

Greetings Participants!

The Napa County Transportation and Planning Agency is pleased to announce a *Call
for Projects” for its Transportation Fund for Clean Air, Program Manager Funds.

The Transportation Fund for Clean Air (TFCA) is a grant program, funded by a $4
surcharge on motor vehicles registered in the Bay Area. This generates approximately
$22 million per year in revenues. The purpose of the TFCA program is to provide
grants to implement the most cost-effective projects in the Bay Area that will decrease
motor vehicle emissions, and thereby improve air quality. Projects must be consistent
with the 1988 California Clean Air Act and the Bay Area Ozone Strategy.

The TFCA program can fund a wide range of project types, including the construction of
new bicycle lanes; shuttle and feeder bus services to train stations; ridesharing
programs to encourage carpool and transit use; bicycle facility improvements such as
bicycle racks and lockers; and arteriai management projects that reduce traffic

congestion.

NCTPA is pleased that your agency or organization has chosen the TFCA program as a
potential funding source to complete your eligible project. This packet has been created
to help guide you in submitting a successful application for funding. If you have had the
benefit of TFCA funding in the past, you will note some changes that have been made
to the program this year. These changes are aimed at increasing the program’s
efficiency and effectiveness.

The available funding for Napa County TFCA projects for FY 2011/2012 will be
approximately $190,000 dollars. The TFCA Applications for FY 2011/2012 will be due
to the NCTPA offices by Friday, April 29" 2011 by 5:00 pm.

If you have any questions, you may contact Danielle Schmitz, TFCA Program Manager
at. NCTPA TFCA Program

707 Randolph Street, Suite 100

Napa, CA 94559

Phone: 707-259-8631

Sincerely,

Paul W. Price
Executive Director
Napa County Transportation & Planning Agency

20



INTRODUCTION

On-road motor vehicles, including cars, trucks, and buses, constitute the most
significant source of air pollution in the Bay Area. Vehicle emissions contribute to
unhealthy levels of ozone (summertime "smog") and particulate matter.

To protect public health, the State Legislature enacted the California Clean Air Act in
1988. As part of the requirements, the Air District prepared the Bay Area Clean Air Plan
(CAP) and the Bay Area 2005 Ozone Strategy, which describes how the region will
work toward compliance with the State one-hour ozone standard. To reduce emissions
from motor vehicles, the Bay Area 2005 Ozone Strategy contains transportation control
measures (TCMs) and mobile source measures (MSMs). A TCM is defined as “any
strategy to reduce vehicle trips, vehicle use, vehicle miles traveled, vehicle idling, or
traffic congestion for the purpose of reducing motor vehicle emissions.” MSMs
encourage the retirement of older, more polluting vehicles and the introduction of newer,
less polluting motor vehicle technologies, which result not only in the reduction of ozone
precursor emissions, but also of greenhouse gas emissions.

THE TFCA PROGRAM

To fund the implementation of TCMs and MSMs, the State Legislature authorized the
Bay Area Air Quality Management District to impose a $4 surcharge on motor vehicle
registration fees paid within the San Francisco Bay Area. These revenues are allocated
by the Air District through the Transportation Fund for Clean Air (TFCA). TFCA grants
are awarded to public and private entities to implement eligible projects.

TFCA-funded projects have many benefits, including the following:
e Conserving energy and helping to reduce greenhouse gas emissions
e Reducing air pollution, including air toxics such as benzene and diesel
particulates
e Improving water quality by decreasing contaminated runoff from roadways
Improving transportation options
Reducing traffic congestion

Forty percent (40%) of these funds are allocated to the designated program manager
within each county and are referred to as the TFCA Program Manager Fund. Sixty
percent (60%) of these funds are awarded directly by the Air District through the TFCA
Regional Fund.

21



Your Responsibilities as Project Sponsor:

Submit projects to the Program Manager that comply with Air District policies.

Prepare and submit your project's information form and cost-effectiveness
worksheet to the Program Manager.

Adhere to the Program Manager's timeline and submit deliverables on time.
Submit project status report forms on time.

Complete your TFCA project two years from the effective date of the Master
Agreement between the Program Manager and the Air District.

Provide proof of Air District credit for vehicles purchased, published materials,
and construction funded or partially funded through the TFCA program.

Provide itemized invoices to the Program Manager for reimbursement of your
project.

NCTPA’s Responsibilities as Program Manager:

1.

Provide guidance, offer technical support, and hold public workshops on program
requirements, including cost-effectiveness.

Review Project Sponsor’s Project Information forms, cost-effectiveness sheets,
and reporting forms.

Administer program in accordance with applicable legislation, including Health
and Safety Code Sections 44233, 44241, and 44242, and with Air District Board-
Adopted TFCA County Program Manager Fund Policies

Hold one or more public meetings each year for the purpose of adopting criteria
for the expenditure of the funds and to review expenditure of revenues received.

Provide funds only to projects that comply with Air District Policies and
Procedures.

Encumber and expend funds within two years of the receipt of funds.

Provide information to the Air District and to auditors on the expenditures of
TFCA funds.



BASIC ELIGIBILITY

1. Reduction of Emissions: Only projects that result in the reduction of motor vehicle
emissions within the Air District's jurisdiction are eligible.

Projects must conform to the provisions of the California Health and Safety Code (HSC)
sections 44220 et seq. and the Air District Board of Directors adopted TFCA Program
Manager Fund Policies for FY 2011/2012.

Projects must achieve surplus emission reductions, beyond what is currently required
through regulations, ordinances, contracts, or other legally binding obligations at the
time of the execution of a funding agreement between the Program Manager and the Air

District.

2. TFCA Cost-Effectiveness: Projects must achieve TFCA cost-effectiveness, on an
individual project basis, equal to or less than $90,000 of TFCA funds per ton of total of
emissions reduced, unless a different value is specified in the Program Manager
Guidance for that project type. Cost-effectiveness is based on the ratio of TFCA funds
awarded divided by the sum of total tons of reactive organic gases (ROG), oxides of
nitrogen (NOx), and weighted particulate matter 10 microns in diameter and smaller
(PM10) reduced ($/ton).

3. Eligible Projects and Case-by-Case Approval: Eligible projects are those that
conform to the provisions of the California Health and Safety Code (HSC) section
44241, Air District Board adopted policies and Air District guidance. On a case-by-case
basis, Program Managers must receive approval by the Air District for projects that are
authorized by the HSC Section 44241 and achieve Board-adopted TFCA cost-
effectiveness, but do not fully meet other Board-adopted Policies.

4. Consistent with Existing Plans and Programs: All project categories must comply
with the transportation control measures and mobile source measures included in the
Air District's most recently approved plan for State and national ambient air quality
standards and, when applicable, with other adopted State, regional, and local plans and
programs.

5. Eligible Recipients: Grant recipients must be responsible for the implementation of
the project, have the authority and capability to complete the project, and be an
applicant in good standing.

A. Public agencies are eligible to apply for all project categories.

B. Non-public entities are only eligible to apply for new alternative-fuel (light, medium,
and heavy-duty) vehicle and infrastructure projects, and advanced technology
demonstrations, as described in HSC section 44241(b)(7). No single non-public entity
may be awarded more than $500,000 in TFCA County Program Manager Funds in each
funding cycle.

23



6. Readiness: Projects must commence in calendar year 2012 or sooner. For purposes
of this policy, —commence means to order or accept delivery of vehicles, equipment,
services, or to award a construction contract.

7. Maximum Two Years Operating Costs: Projects that provide a service, such as
ridesharing programs and shuttle and feeder bus projects, are eligible to apply for a
period of up to two (2) years. Grant applicants that seek TFCA funds for additional years
must reapply for funding in the subsequent funding cycles.

APPLICANT IN GOOD STANDING

8. Failed Audit: Project sponsors who have failed either the fiscal audit or the
performance audit for a prior TFCA-funded project will be excluded from future funding
for five (5) years, or duration determined by the Air District Air Pollution Control Officer
(APCO). Existing TFCA funds already awarded to the project sponsor will not be
released until all audit recommendations and remedies have been satisfactorily
implemented. A failed fiscal audit means an uncorrected audit finding that confirms an
ineligible expenditure of TFCA funds. A failed performance audit means that the project
was not implemented as set forth in the project funding agreement.

In case of a failed audit, a Program Manager may be subject to a reduction of future
revenue in an amount equal to the amount which was inappropriately expended
pursuant to the provisions of HSC Section 44242(c)(3).

9. Authorization for County Program Manager to Proceed: Only a fully executed
funding agreement (i.e., signed by both the Air District and the County Program
Manager) constitutes the Air District's award of funds for a project. Program Managers
may only incur costs (i.e., an obligation made to pay funds that cannot be refunded)
after the funding agreement with the Air District has been executed.

10. Insurance: Each County Program Manager and project sponsor must maintain
general liability insurance, workers compensation insurance, and additional insurance
as appropriate for specific projects, with estimated coverage amounts provided in Air
District guidance and final amounts specified in the respective funding agreements.

24



USE OF TFCA FUNDS

1. Cost of Developing Proposals: The costs of developing grant applications for TFCA
funding are not eligible to be reimbursed with TFCA funds.

2. Combined Funds: TFCA County Program Manager Funds may be combined with
TFCA Regional Funds for the funding of an eligible project with the exception of clean
air vehicle projects. For the purpose of calculating TFCA cost-effectiveness, the
combined sum of TFCA County Program Manager Funds and TFCA Regional Funds
shall be used to calculate the TFCA cost of the project.

3. Expend Funds within Two Years: County Program Manager Funds must be
expended within two (2) years of receipt of the first transfer of funds from the Air District
to the County Program Manager in the applicable fiscal year. A County Program
Manager may, if it finds that significant progress has been made on a project, approve
no more than two (2) one-year (1-year) schedule extensions for a project. Any
subsequent schedule extensions for projects can only be given on a case-by-case
basis, if the Air District finds that significant progress has been made on a project, and
the funding agreement between the Program Manager and the Air District is amended
to reflect the revised schedule.

25



TFCA Program Manager Selection Criteria for Napa County

1) The proposed project must improve the quality of the air as determined by the
BAAQMD.

2) The project must fall into one or more of the statutory expenditure categories, which
are:

* The implementation of ridesharing programs.

= The purchase or lease of clean fuel buses for school districts and transit
operators.

= The provision of local feeder bus or shuttle service to rail and ferry stations and
to airports.

* Implementation and maintenance of local arterial traffic management.

* Implementation of rail-bus integration and regional transit information systems.

* Implementation of low-emission and zero-emission vehicle programs and of
demonstration projects in telecommuting and in congestion pricing of highways,
bridges, and public transit.

* Implementation of a smoking vehicles program (Air District project).

* Implementation of an automobile buy-back scrappage program operated by a
governmental agency (Air District project).

* Implementation of bicycle facility improvement projects that are included in an
adopted countywide bicycle plan or congestion management program.

= The design and construction by local public agencies of physical improvements
that support development projects that achieve motor vehicle emission
reductions.

3) Geographic equity in the Napa region.

4) The project proponent has expended past aliocations of funds in a timely manner.



TECA Project Types

Clean Air Vehicle Projects
Shuttle/Feeder Bus

Transit or Vanpool Incentive Programs
Bicycle Facility Inprovements

Smart Growth

Arterial Management

A S ol e

INELIGIBLE PROJECTS

1. Duplication: Grant applications for projects that duplicate existing TFCA-funded
projects (including Bicycle Facility Program projects) and therefore do not achieve
additional emission reductions are ineligible. Combining TFCA County Program
Manager Funds with TFCA Regional Funds to achieve greater emission reductions for a
single project is not considered project duplication.

2. Planning Activities: Feasibility studies are not eligible, nor are projects that only
involve planning activities and that do not include an implementation phase.

3. Employee Subsidies: Projects that provide a direct or indirect financial transit or
rideshare subsidy or shuttle/ffeeder bus service exclusively to employees of the project
sponsor are not eligible.

Recent Project Examples in Napa County

Project Name Sponsor TFECA Funds Total Project $
Bicycle Incentive Program City of Calistoga  $8,500 $13,000
Signal Timing Project City of Napa $177,693.43 $195,000
Class Il Bike Lane County of Napa $51,000 $89,000
Commuter Incentives &

Marketing Materials SNCI $40,000 $40,000

10

27



Dates of Importance

Mar. 18, 2011
Mar. 31, 2011

Apr. 29, 2011

May 13, 2011

May 31, 2011

Oct. 14, 2011

Oct. 31, 2011

Nov. 4, 2011

TFCA Workshop at NCTPA
NCTPA has to submit Expenditure Plan to the Air District

Project Sponsors turn in TFCA 2011/2012 project submittals to
NCTPA by 5:00 pm

Project Sponsors tumn in Final Report Forms for any projects that
closed out from FY 10/11 and before to Program Manager
(NCPTA)

Program Manager turns in Funding Status and Final Reports for
projects from FY 10/11 and before to Air District

Project Sponsors turn in Funding Status, Interim Project Report
Forms and Final Reports to the Program Manager (NCTPA)

Program Manager submit Funding Status, Interim Project
Reports, and Final Reports to the Air District Staff

Deadline: Within six months of Board approval, Program Manager
(NCTPA) provides Cost-Effectiveness Worksheets and Project
Information forms for new FY 11/12 projects to the Air District
(tentative)

11

28



Project Selection Process

The project selection process is as follows. The NCTPA Technical Advisory Committee
(TAC), with representation from all six Napa County jurisdictions, will serve as the
selection and prioritization committee. NCTPA staff will run the prospective projects
through an initial qualification process based on project eligibility, and present their
findings to the TAC. TAC’s recommendations will be forwarded to the NCTPA Board.

Projects will be scored on a cost effective and project readiness basis. The project
must be able to be completed within a two year time frame. If the project is a vehicle
purchase or construction project, vehicles must be ordered and construction must be
under contract within the first year.

Project Eligibility

Reduction of Emissions

TFCA Cost-Effectiveness

Eligible Recipients

Consistent with Existing Plans and Programs

Public Agencies Applying on Behalf of Non-Public Entities
Consistent with Existing Plans and Programs

OCORWON~

TFCA Project Types

Clean Air Vehicle Projects
Shuttle/Feeder Bus

Transit or Vanpool Incentive Programs
Bicycle Facility Improvements

Smart Growth

Arterial Management

SORWN =

12



Application Instructions:

TFCA project applications for FY 11/12 must be turned in to the NCTPA front office at
707 Randolph Street, Suite 100, in downtown Napa by 5:00 pm on Friday, April 29",
Applications may be in the form of a letter containing:

A o e

7.
8.

The name of the project;

A contact person in the agency;

A description of the project of no more than one page;

Cost of the project in both TFCA funds and all other dollars, by source;

A schedule for the project;

Sufficient information to determine if the project improves air quality as
determined by the Air District assumptions;

Assurance that the proposed project meets all the Air District policies for forty
percent projects; and

Assurances that the project is an allowed type

Applications may also consist of the Project Information Form (see Appendix A). An
electronic copy of the Project Information Form can be emailed upon request.

What Happens After Submission?

After applications are submitted to NCTPA the evaluation process will begin. NCTPA
plans on the following action timeline:

By March 31, 2011 ~ NCTPA will submit FY 11/12 Expenditure Plan to the Air
District

April - June 2011 — NCTPA will evaluate the potential 2011/2012 TFCA projects

June, 2011 — NCTPA will take proposed 11/12 TFCA projects to the NCTPA
Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) for information/feedback (date tentative)

July 7, 2011 — NCTPA will take proposed final projects for FY 2011/12 to the
TAC for approval and recommendation to NCTPA Board (date tentative)

July 20, 2011 — Take TFCA 11/12 projects to the NCTPA Board for approval
(date tentative)

August 2011 — Submit 2011/2012 TFCA Projects to the Air District (date
tentative)

Fall 2011 — Project Recipients receive sub-recipient funding agreements from
NCTPA (date tentative)

13

30



TFCA Do’s and Don’ts

Do
» Establish a clear link to the air quality benefits of your project
o Provide clear and detailed cost estimates
e Have good back-up documentation including maps and pictures
* Have a clearly defined project scope and timeline
» Keep NCTPA in “the loop” the greater understanding the Program Manager has
of your project the better
Don’t

 Bite off more than you can chew - if the project cannot be completed in two
years apply for funding in phases, it will not hurt your chances of eligibility

» Scope creep — when you fill out your Project Information Form this is your
application. You have to adhere to the project description you write on this form

o Forget to ask for help — NCTPA is here as a resource, do not assume, rather ask
for clarification

 Apply for the TFCA funds now, and figure out where the rest of your project's
funding is going to come from later

Frequently Asked Questions

1. Is there a local match requirement to apply for TFCA funding?
No, there is no requirement for a local match.

2. Can TFCA Program Manager Funds be combined with TFCA Regional
Funds?
Yes, TFCA Program Manager Funds may be combined with Regional Funds for
the funding of an eligible project with the exception of clean air vehicle projects.

3. What is the TFCA funding limit for alternative fuel vehicles?
TFCA funds awarded to alternative fuel vehicle projects may not exceed
incremental cost after all other applicable manufacturer and local/state rebates,
tax credits, and cash equivalent incentives are applied. Incremental cost is the
difference in cost between the purchase or lease price of the vehicle and/or
retrofit and its new conventional vehicle counterpart that meets, but does not
exceed, 2011 emissions standards.

14

31



Contact Information

Napa County TFCA Program Manager
Danielle Schmitz

Environmental Analyst/Coordinator
707 Randolph Street, Suite 100

Napa, CA 94559

Phone: (707) 259-5968
dschmitz@nctpa.net

Napa County Transportation & Planning Agency
Diana Vargas

Deputy Executive Director

707 Randolph Street, Suite 100

Napa, CA 94559

Phone: (707) 259-8638

dvargas@nctpa.net

NCTPA Main Office

707 Randolph Street, Suite 100
Napa, CA 94559

Phone: (707) 259-8631

Fax: (707) 259-8638
www.nctpa.net

Bay Area Air Quality Management District
Dave Wiley

Principal Environmental Planner

Phone: (415) 749-4622
dwiley@baagmd.gov

32

15



Appendix A

PROJECT INFORMATION FORM

(Text in italics should be deleted when completing form.)

A. Project Number: 11XX01

Use consecutive numbers for projects funded, with year, county code, and number, e.g., 11MARO],
11MARO2 for Marin County. Zero (e.g., 11MARO0) is reserved for County Program Manager TFCA
Jfunds allocated for administration costs.

B. Project Title:
Provide a concise, descriptive title for the project (e.g, “Elm Ave. Signal Interconmect” or
“Purchase Ten Gasoline-Electric Hybrid Light-Duty Vehicles”).

C. TFCA Funds Allocated: $ D. Total Project Cost: $
Indicate the TFCA dollars allocated (C) and total project cost (D).

E. Project Description: Project sponsor will use TFCA funds to . Include information
sufficient to evaluate the eligibility and cost-effectiveness of the project. Examples of the information
needed include but are not limited to: what will be accomplished by whom, how many pieces of
equipment are involved, how frequently it is used, the location, the length of roadway segments, the
size of target population, etc. Background information should be brief For shuttle/feeder bus
projects, indicate the hours of operation, frequency of service, and rail station and employment
sites/area served.

F. Final Report Content: Final Report form and final Cost Effectiveness Worksheet

Reference the appropriate Final Report form that will be completed and submitted after project
completion.

Form 1 — Ridesharing, Shuttles, Transit Information, Rail/Bus Integration, Smart Growth, and
Traffic Calming Projects. (Includes Transit Bus Signal Priority.)

Form 2 — Clean Air Vehicle and Infrastructure Projects

Form 3 — Bicycle Projects

Form 4 — Arterial Management Projects

G. Attach a copy of Cost-effectiveness Worksheet and any other information used to evaluate the
proposed project. For example, for heavy-duty vehicle projects, include the California Air Resources
Board Executive Orders for all engines and diesel emission control systems.

Cost-efffectiveness Worksheets are not needed for TFCA County Program Manager administrative
costs. Additional documentation is required for heavy-duty vehicle and vehicle infrastructure
projects in order for emission reductions to be verified.

H. Comments (if any):
Add any relevant clarifying information in this section

16

33



March 3, 2011

TAC Agenda ltem 7

Continued From: Board action of June 16, 2010
Action Requested: ACTION

NAPA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AND PLANNING AGENCY
TAC Agenda Letter

TO: Technical Advisory Committee (TAC)
FROM: Paul W. Price, Executive Director

REPORT BY: Paul W. Price, Executive Director
(707) 259-8634 / Email: pprice@nctpa.net

SUBJECT: Funding for Local Transportation Projects

RECOMMENDATION

Based on the information received in the survey conducted pursuant to the Board
action of April 21, 2010, it is recommended that:

1. That the Board authorize staff to develop a needs analysis and develop an
expenditure plan for Board consideration focused primarily on maintenance of
local streets/roads and for congestion mitigation

2. That such a plan be developed in coordination with the jurisdictions and
stakeholders

3. That the Board, forward any approved plan to the Board of Supervisors for
consideration as a future “Transportation Infrastructure Sales Tax”’ measure to
be voted on by the public in the November 2012 elections

4. That measure would take effect at such time that the current Flood Control
Sales Tax is or can be retired.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Pursuant to Board direction, the constituents of the Napa region were solicited as to
their views and support of a method to pay for certain transportation infrastructure
investments. The polling showed a clear understanding of the need for some method to
help support our deteriorating local streets, roads, and for some measure of congestion
relief. Given the time necessary make the November 2012 ballot, we need to begin the
process of working with our stakeholders to develop an expenditure plan, reach local
consensus, develop ballot measure language, undertake an Environmental Impact
Report, and submit the request to the County Board of Supervisors by June of 2012.



TAC Agenda Letter Thursday March 3, 2011
TAC Agenda ltem 7

Page 2 of 3

FISCAL IMPACT

Is there a Fiscal Impact? Yes. Upon direction of the Board the staff will prepare a
budget for inclusion in the FY 2011-12 budget to undertake the following tasks:
Development of an expenditure plan

Bond Counsel support for funding scenarios

Environmental Impact Report (EIR)

Outreach and educational materials

Ballot language development

ORwON~

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

As noted in prior Board meetings, there is a significant funding shortfall for
transportation infrastructure in the Napa region. Within the Napa county area, broadly
stated, the following revenues and transportation project needs have been identified
over the next 25 years:

Transportation Mode Revenues Needs Shortfall

Local Streets and Roads $295,000,000 $965,000,000 $670,000,000
Public Transit $220,000,000 $310,000,000 $ 90,000,000
Bicycle/Ped. Projects $ 27,500,000 $140,000,000 $112,500,000
Total $542,500,000 $1,415,000,000 $872,500,000

As identified above, the Napa region will receive enough funding to meet about 38% of
its needs over the next 25 years. One major step in developing a revenue stream for
local transportation infrastructure would be the extension of the current flood control
infrastructure sales tax set to expire in 2018. The extension of this measure would
generate approximately $13 million dollars annually or $325 million dollars over 25
years based on 2010 dollars. This would generate approximately 37% of our current
shortfall. The sales tax consideration seems to rise above other funding alternatives as
approximately 1/3 of our sale tax revenues within the county are generated from those
visiting the county. Other taxing methods, such as property taxes and vehicle licensing
fees only generate reviews from local residents and businesses and generate far lower
yields with a reasonable fee consideration. Also considered was a gasoline tax
increase. However, this consideration seems poorly suited to the long term solutions. As
automobiles become more fuel efficient or begin to use alternative motive power (such
as electric vehicles) the decline in gasoline tax revenues could be significant over time.

When the survey was conducted with the constituents of the Napa region, they clearly
identified the need for improved road maintenance, improved traffic signalization,
improved pedestrian facilities, congestion relief, and improving safety on our local



TAC Agenda Letter Thursday March 3, 2011
TAC Agenda ltem 7
Page 3 of 3

streets and roads as major items to be considered. Most interesting however, was that
our constituents seem to favor a continuation of the current infrastructure sales tax
(currently for flood control) as an infrastructure sales tax for transportation (72% in
favor).

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS

Attachments: (1) Summary of Key Survey Findings and Recommendations



)

ATTACHMENT 1
TAC Agenda Item 7

'I' B w B Fairbank March 3, 2011
Maslin
Maullin

: D Metz
STRATEGIES & Associates
Putitic Consensus »Winning Proposi ons Pubﬁc Opinion

Research & Strategy

ummary of Key Survey Findings and Recommendations

Tested on its own, the vehicle registration fee (VRF) proposal enjoys strong support (First Test: 58%
Yes/38% No; After Positives: 64% Yes/33% No; After Negatives: 62% Yes/36% No), which is comparable to
the support levels found in other counties currently pursuing VRF measures for the November 2010 ballot.

Support is strong for a sales tax measure that would renew the existing flood control sales tax upon its
expiration for the purpose of repairing roads and funding other transportation improvements, but would
not increase the sales tax rate (72% Yes/27% No).

When the VRF is introduced to voters along with the concept of a sales tax measure for transportation, the
two proposals do impact each other. The measure introduced first tends to be supported at a higher level
than the measure introduced second (VRF After Sales Tax First Test: 47% Yes/50% No; After Positives: 54%
Yes/45% No; After Negatives: 52% Yes/47% No; Sales Tax After VRF: 50% Yes/44% No)

Even though the poll including information explaining that a sales tax measure would not appear on the
ballot for five to six years, it is impossible to replicate within the space of a poll the real world impact of
the passage of time on voter opinions. If NCTPA plans to place a sales tax measure on the ballot in 2014 or
2016, we do not believe that the passage of a VRF measure in November 2010 would negatively impact
the sales tax proposal due to the substantial lapse in time between the elections. However, if NCTPA
wishes to place a sales tax measure on the ballot as early as 2012, we recommend that you do not place a
VRF measure on the ballot this year due to the potential negative impacts on the sales tax proposal.

Use of tax dollars to fix potholes and repair roads is critical to the passage of either measure. Support for
the VRF jumped by 13 percentage points when road repair uses were added to the description of the
measure. Only 39% of voter indicated that there is a great need for additional funding for congestion relief
and transportation improvements. However, 69% of voters indicated that there is a great need for
additional funding for road repairs. Given the relatively small impact that VRF funding will have on Napa
County’s total road repair need, we understand the reluctance to include road repair uses in a VRF
proposal. Nonetheless, inclusion of some modest and achievable road repair goals will be essential for
success if NCTPA chooses to pursue a VRF measure. Similarly, a successful sales tax measure will need a
clear focus on road repair objectives.

Given the substantially greater revenue potential from a sales tax, we recommend a strategic approach
that focuses on passing this important measure, even if it is at the expense of VRF funding. We
recommend that you take a close look at the strategic advantages associated with placing a sales tax
measure on the ballot at the expected high voter turnout November 2012 Presidential General Election.

Structuring a sales tax proposal that does not increase tax rates by renewing or replacing the existing flood
control sales tax will be critical to achieving the required two-thirds vote for this measure. We recommend
that you pursue this opportunity and begin communicating to the public in a way that assists the voters in
understanding the concept and ties the opportunity back to the top voter priority of repairing roads.

37



March 3, 2011

TAC Agenda ltem 8

Continued From: New

Action Requested: INFORMATION

NAPA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AND PLANNING AGENCY
TAC Agenda Letter

TO: Technical Advisory Committee (TAC)
FROM: Paul W. Price, Executive Director

REPORT BY: Deborah Brunner, Manager of Public Transit
(707) 259-8778 / Email: dbrunner@nctpa.net

SUBJECT: Transit Operations and Service Report

RECOMMENDATION
Information only.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TRANSIT STATISTICAL DATA REPORT

The report has been modified, at the request of the TAC, to represent a 12-month
rolling snap shot of transit data. Quarterly the financial data will be updated.

AMERICAN CANYON TRANSIT (ACT) SERVICE IMPROVEMENTS

On Monday, January 31, 2011 the final phase of the ACT service improvements began.
ACT now operates two routes during core hours of 10 am to 4 pm, and continues to
provide the AM & PM Peak service. Route ACT-1 begins at 6 am, traveling
southbound, from the Napa Junction Shopping Center bus stop. The early start allows
passengers to ride the ACT bus, take their car or be dropped off at an ACT/VINE bus
stop for connections with the VINE Route 10 and 29 services. ACT now also operates
later to 7 pm which allows the same type of transfers and connections for passengers.
. These are new opportunities for American Canyon residents, but we are hopeful with
continued marketing and outreach that the ACT service will provide reliable and
convenient travel for persons of all ages in American Canyon.

Also beginning on January 31, 2011, VINE Go now dedicates one bus in American
Canyon for local residents to travel within the city or to other sites outside of city limits.
Kaiser and Sutter Solano Hospitals are the two major destinations for American Canyon
passengers. VINE Go provides door-to-door, hands-on service for many individuals



TAC Agenda Letter Thursday, March 3, 2011
TAC Agenda item 8
Page 2 of 4

that need a little more time and attention when entering and exiting the bus. Drivers will
assist passengers with packages and the lift.

CALISTOGA Bus STOP IMPROVEMENT PROJECT

The City of Calistoga recently completed their Bus Stop Improvement Project with the
placement of new shelters, including anti-vagrant benches, lighting and waste
receptacles. Lake Transit Route 3 signage will be added to the north and southbound
stops on Lincoln at the Calistoga Bridge.

Li c Street: southbound stop, on Lincoln Street: northbound stop, on
Calistoga Bridge Calistoga Bridge

B2 s 1

Lincoln Street: southbound s i Brannon: eastbound stop, in front of
to Caboose shopping Chateau Calistoga & Calistoga Springs
NAPA SHUTTLE

At the February NCTPA Board meeting staff was directed to perform a financial
analysis of the Napa Shuttle and bring it back to the Board for consideration as a
possible inclusion in the FY 11/12 budget.

ROUTE 29 EXPRESS SERVICE

Radio ads were started again in January during news and traffic updates on the KVYN

39



TAC Agenda Letter Thursday, March 3, 2011
TAC Agenda Item 8

Page 3 of 4

and KVON during commute hours. After the holiday month of December, ridership
appears to have bounced back to the previous totals seen in the fall. Buses 134 and
134 have installed Wi-Fi for passenger convenience.

March 2010 457 Trips 20 Pax p/day
April 2010 726 Trips 33 Pax p/day
May 2010 927 Trips 46 Pax p/day
June 2010 1267 Trips 58 Pax p/day
July 2010 1541 Trips 70 Pax p/day
August 2010 1947 Trips 89 Pax p/day
Sept 2010 2097 Trips 100 Pax p/day
October 2010 2290 Trips 109 Pax p/day
November 2010 2118 Trips 106 Pax p/day
December 2010 962 Trips 42 Pax p/day
January 2011 2228 Trips 106 Pax p/day
SECURITY GRANT

NCTPA will submit an application to the California Emergency Management Agency
(CalEMA) for $29,409 in funding to make security improvements at the VINE Bus Yard
on Jackson Street. Vehicles will be equipped with transponders to electronically open
the gate and thereby securing access. Vendors and visitors will gain entry after they
have been identified.

VEHICLES TO BE PURCHASED FOR THE VINE AND VINE Go

February 2011 Board action approved the
purchase of:

(1) Four low-floor, gas powered ARBOC
buses to be used on local VINE routes.
The 26-foot, 21-passenger mid-size
transit buses will be equipped with two
tiedown positions, a fold-out ramp lift and
total bus kneeling feature. New push
button stop request equipment will be
introduced to the VINE fleet. Estimated
delivery is 150 days.

(2) Three replacement paratransit cutaway buses for the VINE Go service. The 16-
passenger, gas powered small buses will be equipped with a Braun lift, new ‘Slide and
Click’ tiedown hardware, flip seats and tracking to maximize the number of wheelchairs
the bus will carry. Estimated delivery

SENIOR INFORMATION KIOSKS

40



TAC Agenda Letter Thursday, March 3, 2011
TAC Agenda Item 8
Page 4 of 4

The VINE is advertising the Napa Shuttle and local and regional VINE maps at 25
kiosks in Napa and Yountville. Born to Age has placed the kiosks at ‘senior serving’
sites such as pharmacies, drug stores, Napa Senior Center, Piner's Medical Supply,
Queen of the Valley, Veterans Home, Rohiff's Manor, Laurel Manor, Vintage at Napa,
the Reserve and South Jefferson Senior Hosing. The VINE has two slots per kiosks to
promote services. As the program and kiosks expand throughout the Valley, so will
VINE maps, schedules and brochures.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

Is there a Fiscal Impact? No.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS

Attachments: (1) Transit Performance Statistics & Goals 12 Month Review

41



L LI E AL T IYWrY

TAC Agenda ltem

SVOO '8 SOLLSILY.LS JONVINNOINIC LISNVHL VdLON

]
2]
5
.Mra 19°62$ 8L'/2% [Ad:TAY 09'G2$ veges 1S5v2$ €L°1e$ 1Z°L1$ 09°02% ¥6'v2$ or'zes 19'2¢e$ e/u dujsdisod
»7%9°01 %LCl %901 %LS %98 %LEl %Eecl %.'6 %S'S %PEl %€ L %6°¢Cl %L'El %01 Aianoday xoqarey
.m 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (¢ Sjuaplody s|qeaald
5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 slied peoy / sl
i %86 %86 %06 %96 %06< swil uo
ST (45 S¢ 0'e 6°C 6°C 0'¢ > e 0's INOKH A9Yy/d ssed
'€ 8¢ oe 6'¢ 6'¢C L'e v'e oy A [ o'e o¢ €e S.'¢ IH Aoy/d ssed
20l 74 4 avm (1% 2 LEV 3% 4 (444 98% viS (544 )44 9¢es sduj
808'G 86€ A4 [A44 SO 06t 8vS €0. 00s [A%i4 Ati4 (01274 (2TA 4 sdu |
UeAApueq
Sb'9C$ 8G6'¥C$ 0¢c'8cs €1°92% 9.'G2$ 25'62$ 00'v2$ TAAA ¥6'52$ 6£°62$ €.'82% 8€'/2$ JAQTAY duysdison
%8 %L %9 %V %8 %6 %8 %S 1 %9 %9 %8 %L %8 %01 Kisnoosy xoqaiey
[4 l 0 0 0 0 0 b 0 0 0 0 0 IN Mo€ Sjuspiooy siqenald
auou auou auou auou auou auou auou auou auou auou auou auou W MOL/L > siied peoy / sapn
%EL %L} %L} %€l %L1 %cCl %cl %91 %bl %S 1 %1 %€l %<l %S ajey uoljejadued
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 sjeluaq duj vay
%96 %.6 %.6 %16 %96 %26 %6 %96 %.6 %.6 %.6 %.L6 %86 %06< auwi| uo
€2 0¢ €T (AL ST 9C  ArA 5t 4 4 | 5r4 1914 [ALA e AnoH Aay/d ssed
4 §'¢C L2 L' 9c 8'¢C L2 8'¢C 4 €e (x4 (4 c'c 0¢ JH Aey/d ssed
zizee omv'e s | 9012 1s0°'¢ 8€6°C 906°C o'e 6v6°C 86S°Z ovLe 618 8EVT sduy
10'9g G68'c €€6'C 8cz'e cle'e S6l'e rAYAS L0’ Ly0'e 1922 168 988'2 1GS2 2
o5 <
1'9% 69'5$ L0°L$ v0'L$ 10°9% oL'sg $S'G$ 66v$ FAAR:1S 62°9% S0°9% 15°6$ B/U duydisod
%2 dx3 yoeanno / By
2 0 0 0 I 0 Z I 0 I I 0 IN Moe SUspIddy ajqenald
%€l %€ Y%l %cl %¥i %91 %S| %€l %cCl %bl %v | %S| %cl %0¢ Aianoday xoqasey
auou auou auou auou auou INMOL/L > s||eD peoy / san
1’86 86 2'86 %06 < swil uo
A4 6'¢C S'e £e 6'¢C 1'e e S'e S'E amnys eden
1'e 9'¢ o€ St g8'e v'e € 4 4 0c 6¢ sinoy
9l gl 6'l 8¢ ve v A4 8¢ 8¢ 09 Ol 8noy
g9 6 g’z 1’6 €0l 'Ll 601 L0l L0l (OrAh 0l 8oy
S§'L 8'6 5’6 vil L'cl L'el 9l S'L SLl 09l rmuo._ UH Asy/d ssed
S9.'929 ¥69'09 | 856°9y | €¥Z'0S £86°29 $0¢°09 68685 | 066’65 | 8Zl'9g 098°LS 00029 91¥'85 sduj
6.2'vES €Ll'9¢ L8b'6¢e civ'sy 110'es $95'pS ppo'lg 21§'2S 8LL'LS 985'8y S59'8p L1628 sduy
INIA
lejol 0, uep 2aqg AON 390 dag bny. Alnp aunp AeN Jdy Jepy 60. G954 [eo
Bayejo) 1L, uer 29Q AON 120 deg bny Anp aunp Aepy Jdy 1Bp 0L, 994




08°'LLS L9'vZs [86'9% 65'8% rAd s 9e'G$ ¥9'.% 2¢6'LLs |08°ZLS |OO'GLS 86°¢cL$ prZL$ [8¥'SLS duysdsoz
%E 0L %66 %91 %¢C'8 %LCl %.'6 %t'6 %60l  |%S'L %¢C L %bClL %L ¥l %S'Cl %01 K1anoday xoqaues
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 SJUBpPIDJY 9|qe,Aald
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 S|leD peoy / sajy
%86 %86 %06 %96 %06< awi} uQ
rAN 4 rAR> ot Ly St Sy 8y AN 4 6°¢ oy oy (1)8 4 (50 4 Jnoy >omi ‘SSeqd
9L ov €6 fAr4* ovl el 1’8 ¥'S 8¢ €6 L'sS 0s 1984 QLT IH A9y/d ssed
€CL0l 08L 0e8 198 0E6 .18 568 006 L08 o8 A4} 128 gL sdu)
Zre'slL GcL 902 [A 444 0982 LG62 1881 VLLL S08 9001} 9901 9€01 €C8 sdul
1oV
18'8% £€'6% 0.8% 05°8% G9'6$ le0Ls |2v8s (451 06°/% 9¢'6$ S0'8$ 16°8% 9z'i1$ dujsdiso)
%¢C 0} %€'0} %L L1 %80L |%¥ 0l %ZC'6 %€ 6 %S6 %cC 0l %L L %6°¢CL %S0l |%E0L %01 K1anoday xoqasey
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0] 0] 0] 0] 0 0 SJUapIddY 3jqenald
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 SiieD peoy / sama

%86 %86 %06 %96 %06< aw g
'S 6'¢C 0°9 ¥'9 Sl 09 §'G 6'9 ¢9 0'S 9 L'S 8¢ anoH Asy/d ...
0l 99 1 8L 6’9 ¥'9 L2 2L rAVA V'L ¥'9 L9 09 VA4 JH Aay/d ssed
VLL'YL G.19 9zel 6EEL vigl 0lcL 821 1651 0SEL /4" 8E0L 20L1 €08 .mm,t..._..
0€9'81L pAi 4 10L1 8991 G991 153 44" €e9l VLLL 0lS§1 G661 LSPlL o¥s1 ovel sdu)
8}jod 1 3jjIAUNOX
08vi$ vLGL$ [29'61$ |€20Ls [€90L$ [e21Ls [889L% ¥8'€C$ |95GL$ (00 LIS 86'61L% LSLILS [18PLS duy/disod
%€ 0l %90L (%€ 0L %S 0L |%ELL  |%8'8 %0l |%.6 %08 %l VL %<C'8 %L’ LL |1%SCl %01 A1anoaay xoqaie
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 SJUapIdTY d|qenald
0] 0] 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 sjied peoy / salin
%86 %86 %06 %96 %06< awll uo
L'y (43 8¢ S’ S'S Z'S L'e €T 1€ 6% Sy S’y 8¢ dnop Asy/d sseq
tA 4 9'¢ 8¢ SS S'S A 1'e €e l'e 6t Sy Sy 8¢ SL'C IH Aayd ssed
€969 L0S r4:14 959 6e8 959 '4:)4 0ee 0SS r44:] 029 69 195 sdu!
(R N] 06S L0L b6 6 ¥06 SvS 1A 4 LZA% 118 2c8 b8 0€9 sdu)
INIA BU9|3H IS

[eoL ol.uer | o2eQq AON 190 dog “Bny Anp aunp Aew 1dy JeW | 60, 9°4 [0S
Bay/eiol L1, uep 29Q AON 120 dag bny Anp aunp Aepy Idy e 01,994




March, 3 2011

TAC Agenda Item 9

Continued From: New

Action Requested: INFORMATION/ACTION

NAPA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AND PLANNING AGENCY
TAC Agenda Letter

TO: Technical Advisory Committee (TAC)
FROM: Paul W. Price, Executive Director

REPORT BY: Eliot Hurwitz, Program Manager
(707) 259-8782 / Email: ehurwitz@nctpa.net

SUBJECT: FY 2013 Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) - Call for Projects
RECOMMENDATION
e Review current RTP (2009) list of projects and recommend deletions and
amendments.
* Review existing program evaluation criteria and recommend changes.
e Review sample cost estimation guide, discuss and recommend adoption.
o Endorse dates for Public Meeting.
* Begin discussion of comprehensive project list. A final recommendation to the
NCTPA Board will be finalized at April TAC meeting.
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) has issued an open “call for
projects” for the Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy
(RTP/SCS). This is the 25-year Regional Strategic Transportation Plan that is revised
every four (4) years. This RTP will be the first created under the SB375 rules that
mandate a companion “Sustainable Communities Strategy”, which must demonstrate
how the RTP will achieve reductions in Greenhouse Gas emissions due to cars and
light trucks.

Final project submittals are due to MTC by April 29, 2011. TAC will continue to discuss
this at the next TAC meeting on April 7, 2011 and submit a final plan to the NCTPA
Board for their approval at the next Board meeting on April 20, 2011.

A first task is to review the current list of projects in the existing (2009) RTP and indicate
whether any projects should be removed or amended.



TAC Agenda Letter Thursday, March 3, 2011
TAC Agenda Item 9

Page 2 of 4

For new projects:
1. NCTPA will coordinate project submittal for all Napa jurisdictions. Members of

the public are also eligible to submit projects, but must secure a public agency
sponsor before submitting the project to NCTPA.

2. A public outreach process is required by SB 375, consistent with the
requirements of MTC’s Public Participation Plan, (excerpt attached).

3. MTC has assigned each county a target budget, intended as a general upper
limit for the county’s program of projects (not to be construed as the budget used
for allocating funds to projects). For Napa County, this will be $1.2 Billion for the
next 25 years.

4. NCTPA, via the TAC will establish project cost estimation guidelines for the
project sponsors. We can develop our own guidelines or can use other project
cost estimation guidance. A sample from Contra Costa County is included for
your consideration.

5. MTC has developed a set of basic criteria to assist project sponsors with
determining what type of projects to submit. Project sponsors are encouraged to
submit projects that meet one or more of the criteria.

6. NCTPA will bundle projects into categories, where possible. Projects which are
not exempt from regional conformity cannot be placed into a programmatic
category.

FISCAL IMPACT

Is there a Fiscal Impact? Yes. TAC will work to develop recommendations for
approximately $1.2B in projects over the next 25 years.

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

MTC has this month issued an open “call for projects” for the Regional Transportation
Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy (RTP/SCS). This is the 25-year regional
strategic transportation plan that is revised every four (4) years. This RTP will be the
first created under the SB375 rules that mandate a companion “Sustainable

Communities Strategy”, which must demonstrate how the RTP will achieve reductions in
Greenhouse Gas emissions due to cars and light trucks.

Final project submission is due to MTC by April 29, 2011.
The project submittal process will be conducted as follows:

1. Each Congestion Management Agency (CMA — NCTPA in Napa) will coordinate
the project submittal process for their respective county. Project sponsors are

45



TAC Agenda Letter Thursday, March 3, 2011

TAC Agenda ltem 9
Page 3 of 4

asked to coordinate with their respective CMA to submit projects. Sponsors of
multi-county projects (i.e. BART, Caltrain, Caltrans, etc.) may submit projects
directly to MTC. Members of the public are eligible to submit projects, but must
secure a public agency sponsor before submitting the project to the CMA. MTC
will also submit regional projects/programs for consideration.

CMAs are to conduct and document their public outreach process to solicit ideas
for projects. SB 375, the legislation mandating the RTP/SCS, also requires a
separate public participation plan for its development. The CMA’s outreach
process must be consistent with the requirements of MTC’s Public Participation
Plan, (excerpt attached)

MTC will assign to each county a target budget, which is intended as a general
upper financial limit for the program of projects submitted by county. For Napa
County, this will be $1.2 Billion for the next 25 years. The county target budgets
are calculated based on the county population shares of estimated RTP/SCS
discretionary funding plus an additional 75 percent. The county target budget is
established for purposes of setting a reasonable limit on project submittals and is
not to be construed as the budget used for allocating funds to projects in the
RTP/SCS.

CMAs are to establish project cost estimation guidelines for the project sponsors.
CMAs are permitted to develop their own guidelines or can use other local, state,
or federal project cost estimation guidance. A sample from Contra Costa County
is included for your consideration.

MTC has developed a set of basic criteria to assist project sponsors with
determining what type of projects to submit. Project sponsors are encouraged to
submit projects that meet one or more of the criteria.

NCTPA will bundle projects into categories, where possible. Projects which are
not exempt from regional conformity cannot be placed into a programmatic
category.

To submit a project, MTC has developed a web-based application form that allows
sponsors to update current projects and submit new ones for consideration in the plan.
The web-based project application will allow sponsors to:

Identify projects in the current plan (Transportation 2035 Plan) that have been
completed and are in operation, and mark them as a “dropped” project.

Identify projects in the current plan that are no longer being proposed, and mark
them as dropped project.

Update project information for projects in the current plan that is proposed to be
carried forward in the RTP/SCS.

Add new projects for consideration in the RTP/SCS.

46



TAC Agenda Letter

Thursday, March 3, 2011
TAC Agenda Item 9
Page 4 of 4

The web-based project application form will

be available on March 1, 2011. CMAs will

help MTC by assisting project sponsors with the application, as well as reviewing and
verifying project information prior to final submittal to MTC.

Issue Call for Projects Letter to CMAs

February 10, 2011

Open Web-Based Project Application
Form for use by CMAs/ Project Sponsors

March 1, 2011

Project Submittals Due

April 29, 2011

MTC Conducts Project-Level Performance
Assessment

May — July 2011

County Population Transportation 2035 | Discretionary Napa County
Share Discretionary Revenue  Share | Target Budget in
Revenue Share Based | Based on | Transportation
on Population (using | Population +| 2035 Call for
2010 population) 75% Mark Up (in | Projects
billions)
(Discretionary
Revenue Share
Based on
Population + 50%
Mark Up)
Napa 2%* $640M $1,120M $960M

*Population Data Source = Ca. Department of Finance, 2010 Population Statistics

Napa Population Total: 138,917
Bay Area Population Total: 7,459,858

Transportation 2035 Discretionary Funds: $32 Billion

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS Attachments: (1) MTC Call for Projects letter

47

1a.Call for Projects Guidance

1a1 - Goals and Targets

1a2 - Programmatic Categories

1a3 - Project Performance Assessment

1a4 - Policy Advisory Council Members
(2) Project Cost Estimation Guide
(3) RTP Public Participation Plan - excerpt
(4) NCTPA Project Evaluation Criteria

(5) 2009 RTP Project List



Scott Haggerty, Chair
Alsmeda County

Adrienne §. Tissier, Vice Chair
San Mareo County

Tom Azumbrado
U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development

Tomn Bates
Cities of Alameda County

Dave Cortese
Santa Clara County

Bill Dodd
Napa County and Citics

Dorene M. Giacopini
5. Department of Transportation

Federal D. Glover
Contra Costa County

Mark Green
ion of Bay Area G

Anne W. Halsted
San Francisco Bay Conservation
and Development Commission

Steve Kinsey
Marin County and Cities

Sam Liccardo
Cities of Santa Clara County

Jake Mackenzie
Sonoma County and Citics

Kevin Mullin
Ciues nf San Mareo County

Jon Rubin
San Francisco Mayor’s Appointee

Bijan Sartipi
State Business, Transportation
and Housing Agency

James P. Spering
Solano County and Cites

Anzy Rein Worth
Cities of Contra Costa County

Vacan,
City and County of San Francisco

Steve Heminger
Executive Director

Ann Flemer
Deputy Executive Director, Policy

Andrew B. Fremier
Deputy Executive Director, Operations

ATTACHMENT 1
TAC Agenda item 9
March 3, 2011

METROPOLITAN Joseph P. Bort MetroCenter
M T TRANSPORTATION ! Fighth Street
QOakland, CA 94607-4700
COMMISSION ‘TEL 510.817.5700

TTY/TDD 510.817.5769
FAX 510.817.5848
E-MAIL info@mtc.ca.gov

WEB www.mtc.ca.gov

February 14, 2011

Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy — Call for
Projects

RE:

To: Caltrans, Congestion Management Agencies, and Multi-County Transit Operators

The Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) is issuing an open “call for projects”
for consideration in the Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy
(RTP/SCS). MTC requests the assistance of each of the nine Congestion Management
Agencies (CMAs) to coordinate project submittals for their county. Caltrans and multi-
county transit operators may submit directly to MTC, but coordination with the CMAs are
encouraged. Attached is the Call for Projects Guidance that lays out required elements to be
carried out in the local call for projects.

Project submittals are due to MTC on April 29, 2011. Projects/programs will
undergo a project-level performance evaluation, which MTC will initiate starting in
May 2011. MTC requests all partner agencies to adhere to this deadline. The results of
the project performance assessment will inform the upcoming detailed alternatives
analysis and investment trade-off discussions, ultimately leading to a preferred
RTP/SCS early next year with adoption occurring a year later. As such, there will be
ongoing opportunities for these discussions to occur.

The SCS legislation requires closer integration between land use and transportation
planning. With this in mind, MTC and ABAG have adopted goals that direct local
agencies to consider how their projects support SCS principals as promulgated by SB
375.

MTC is developing a web-based application form for sponsors to fill out and submit
their projects. Sponsors will be able to (a) remove projects in the current plan
(Transportation 2035) that are either now complete and open for service or no longer being
pursued, (b) update projects in the current plan that should be carried forward in the
RTP/SCS, and (c) add new projects. The web-based project application will be available

48



Page 2 of 2

on March 1, 2011. At that time, MTC will provide instructions to CMAs on how to access and
use the web-based form. Upon request, MTC staff will also provide a brief tutorial to the CMAs
and its technical advisory committee.

MTC looks forward to receiving your project submittals. If you have any questions about the
submittal process, please contact Grace Cho of my staff at (510) 817-5826 or gcho@mitc.ca.gov.

Sincerely,

Lt Hermer

Ann Flemer
Deputy Executive Director, Policy

AF: GC
JAPROJECT\2013 RTP_SCS\Call for Projects\Final Version\Call for Projects Letters\Call for Projects Letter.doc

Attachments:

Attachment A: Call for Projects Guidance

Attachment A.1: Goals and Performance Targets

Attachment A.2: Programmatic Categories

Attachment A.3: MTC’s Draft Transportation Project Performance Assessment
Methodology

Attachment A.4: MTC Policy Advisory Council Members

49



Attachment A
Call for Projects Guidance

The Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) requests the assistance of the nine Bay Area
Congestion Management Agencies (CMAs) to help with the Call for Projects within their counties.
CMAss are best suited for this role because of their existing relationships with local jurisdictions,
elected officials, transit agencies, community organizations and stakeholders, and members of the
public within their counties. MTC expects the CMAs to plan and execute an effective public outreach
and local engagement process to solicit candidate projects to be submitted to MTC for consideration
in the Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy (RTP/SCS).

Project sponsors with projects vying for future state or federal funding must have their project identified
in the financially constrained RTP/SCS. CMAs will be the main point of contact for local sponsoring
agencies and members of the public submitting projects for consideration for inclusion in the 2013
SCS/RTP. Sponsors of multi-county projects (i.e. Caltrans, BART, Caltrain, etc.) may submit directly
to MTC, but communication and coordination with CMAs is encouraged. Members of the public are
eligible to submit projects, but must secure a public agency sponsor and coordinate the project submittal
with their CMA.

CMAs will assist MTC with the Call for Projects by carrying out the following activities:

1. Public Involvement and Outreach
© Conduct countywide outreach to stakeholders and the public to solicit project ideas. CMAs,
as well as multi-county transit operators and Caltrans, will be expected to implement their
public outreach efforts in a manner consistent with MTC’s Public Participation Plan (MTC
Resolution No. 3821), which can be found at http://www.onebayarea.org/get_involved.htm.
CMAs are expected, at a minimum, to:

o Execute effective and meaningful local engagement efforts during the Call for
Projects by working closely with local jurisdictions, elected officials, transit agencies,
community-based organizations, and the public through the project solicitation
process. In addition to the CMAs’ citizen advisors, MTC’s Policy Advisory Council
members are a good resource to the CMAss to help plan community outreach events,
engage members of the public, and identify candidate projects. Please see
Attachment A.4 for a list of MTC’s Policy Advisory Council members.

o Explain the local Call for Projects process, informing stakeholders and the public
about the opportunities for public comments on project ideas and when decisions are
to made on the list of projects to be submitted to MTC;

o Hold public meetings and/or workshops at times which are conducive to public
participation to solicit public input on project ideas to submit;

o Hold at least one public hearing providing opportunity for public comment on the list
of potential projects prior to submittal to MTC;

o Post notices of public meetings and hearing(s) on their agency website; include
information on how to request language translation for individuals with limited
English proficiency. If agency protocol has not been established, please refer to
MTC’s Plan for Assisting Limited English Proficient Populations.

o CMA staff will be expected to provide MTC with a link so the information can also
be viewed on the website OneBayArea.org;

o Hold public meetings in central locations that are accessible for people with people
with disabilities and by public transit;

50



Attachment A: Call for Projects Guidance
February 10, 2011
Page 2 of 4

o Offer language translations and accommodations for people with disabilities, if
requested at least three days in advance of the meeting.

® Document the outreach effort undertaken for the local call for projects. CMAs, as well as
multi-county transit operators and Caltrans, are to provide MTC with:

o A description of how the public was involved in the process for nominating and/or
commenting on projects for inclusion in the RTP/SCS. Specify whether public input
was gathered at forums held specifically for the RTP/SCS or as part of an outreach
effort associated with, for example, an update to a countywide plan;

© A description of how the public engagement process met the outreach requirements
of MTC’s Public Participation Plan, including how the CMA ensured full and fair
participation by all potentially affected communities in the project submittal process.

o A summary of comments received from the public and a description of how public
comments informed the recommended list of projects submitted by the CMA.
Conversely, rationale must be provided if comments or projects from the public were
not able to be accommodated in the list of candidate projects and a description of how
the CMA, in future project nomination processes, plans to address the comments or
projects suggested by the public.

2. Agency Coordination
o Work closely with local jurisdictions, transit agencies, MTC, Caltrans, and stakeholders to
identify projects for consideration in the RTP/SCS. CMAs will assist with agency
coordination by:

o Communicating this Call for Projects guidance to local jurisdictions, transit agencies,
Caltrans, and stakeholders and coordinate with them on the online project application
form by assigning passwords, fielding questions about the project application form,
reviewing and verifying project information, and submitting projects as ready for
review by MTC

o Working with members of the public interested in advancing a project idea to find a
public agency project sponsor, and assisting them with submitting the project to
MTC,;

o Developing freeway operations and capacity enhancement projects in coordination
with MTC and Caltrans staff.

o Developing transit improvements in coordination with MTC and transit agency staff,

3. Title VI Responsibilities
o Ensure the public involvement process provides underserved communities access to the
project submittal process as in compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964.

o Assist community-based organizations, communities of concern, and any other
underserved community interested in submitting projects;

o Remove barriers for persons with limited English proficiency to have access to the
project submittal process;

o Foradditional Title IV outreach strategies, please refer to MTC’s Public Participation
Plan found at: http://www.onebayarea.org/get_involved.htm

51



Attachment A: Call for Projects Guidance
February 10, 2011
Page 3 of 4

4. County Target Budgets
©  Ensure that the County project list fits within the target budget defined by MTC for the
county.

o To establish the county target budgets, MTC used the discretionary funding amount ($32
billion) from the Transportation 2035 Plan and assigned counties a target budget based on
a population share formula with an additional 75% mark up. County target budgets can
be seen below. This formula approach is consistent with the formula used in
Transportation 2035 Plan.

o County target budgets are intended as a starting point to guide each CMA in
recommending a project list to MTC by providing an upper financial limit.

o County target budgets are not intended as the financially constrained RTP/SCS budget.
CMAs and MTC will continue to discuss further and select projects later in the process
that fit the RTP/SCS financially constrained envelope.

County Target Budgets (in billions)

Alameda: $11.76 San Mateo: $5.60
Contra Costa: $7.84 Santa Clara: $14.0
Marin: $2.24 Solano: $3.36
Napa: $1.12 Sonoma: $3.92

San Francisco: $6.16

5. Cost Estimation Review
o Establish guidelines for estimating project costs. CMAs are to establish cost estimation
guidelines for use by project sponsors. The guidelines may be developed by the CMAs or
CMAs can elect to use other accepted guidelines produced by local, state or federal agencies.
MTC has identified the following cost estimation guidelines available for use:

o Federal: National Cooperative Highway Research Program's Guidance for Cost
Estimation and Management for Highway Projects During Planning, Programming,
and Preconstruction (http://onlinepubs.trb.org/onlinepubs/nchrp/nchrp w98.pdf)

o State: Caltrans' Project Development Procedures Manual Chapter 20, Project
Development Cost Estimates
(http://www.dot.ca.gov/hg/oppd/pdpm/chap pdf/chapt20.pdf)

o Local: Contra Costa Transportation Authority (CCTA) Cost Estimation Guide
(http://ccta.net/assets/documents/Cost_Est_Guide_Documentation.pdf)

* Review and verify with MTC that each project has developed an appropriate cost estimate
prior to submittal.

6. General Project Criteria
o Identify whether projects meet basic project parameters as outlined by MTC. CMAs will
encourage project sponsors to submit projects which meet one or more of the general criteria
listed below, keeping in consideration that projects should support SCS principals
promulgated by SB 375:

o Supports the goals and performance targets of the RTP/SCS (see Attachment A.1).

o Serves as a regionally significant component of the regional transportation network. A
regionally significant transportation project serves regional transportation needs (such
as access to and from the area outside of the region, major activity centers in the region,

52



Attachment A: Call for Projects Guidance
February 10, 2011
Page 4 of 4

major planned developments such as new retail malls, sports complexes, etc., or
transportation terminals as well as most terminals themselves).

o Supports focused growth by serving existing housing and employment centers
FOCUS Priority Development Areas.

o Derives from an adopted plan, corridor study, or project study report (e.g.,
community-based transportation plans, countywide transportation plan, regional
bicycle plan, climate action plans, etc.).

Assess how well the project meets basic criteria

Project sponsors are welcome to use MTC’s qualitative/quantitative approach or some hybrid
thereof to develop and evaluate project priorities (See Attachment A.3). Sponsors may
include qualitative discussion and/or quantitative data to demonstrate how proposed projects
meet the RTP/SCS goals and targets, the magnitude of project impacts and cost effectiveness.
MTC will provide a function in the on-line application for this information and may use it to
inform the Goals Assessment portion of MTC's evaluation.

7. Programmatic Categories

CMAs should group similar projects, which are exempt from regional air quality conformity
that do not add capacity or expand the transportation network, into broader programmatic
categories rather than submitting them as individual projects for consideration in the RTP/SCS.
These individual projects may address a concern of the community (e.g., improved pedestrian
ways to transit, curb bulb-outs to calm traffic, etc.), but do not have to be individually specified
for the purposes of air quality conformity. See Attachment A.2 for guidance on the
programmatic categories.

Timeline

_ Task | Date

Issile- .Ca-ll.f;)r Projects Letter to CMAs, Céltrans, Febfuary 10, 2011

and Multi-County Transit Operators

Open Online Project Application Form for Use by | March 1, 2011

CMAs/ Project Sponsors
Close of Project Submittal Period April 29, 2011
MTC Conducts Project-Level Performance May — July 2011

Assessment and Selection Process for Projects for
Detailed SCS Scenarios

JAPROJECT\2013 RTP_SCS\Call for Projects\Final Version\Attachment A - Guidance doc

53




juLidi00y ueqIn 01 0} pareduiod aq [[IM SOLIEUSDS °
(serepunoq
JmoI3 ueqin pue juswdo]aasp ueqin Sunsixs) junidiooy
ueqin dy) Wym Justudo[aAsp [ern)noLiSe-uou (e 10a1(]

uorgar oy} ‘o] Jo Ajpenb s eary Aeg oyl o] [enuesse ore spuejuuie] pue soeds uodo sy
'SISALI pUE S33E] ‘SUTBJUNOUI ‘SaUI[aI0YS 0} SS90 o1jqnd Sururejurew o} uonIppe ur ‘yeliqey
[eimeu swd pue spue] [eannou8e aanonpoid aresard djay [iim [merds weqin Sunruny

U0 EAIISIIJ [EIM)[MIIISY %p soedg uad()

(Kep 1od uosiad 1ad sajnur
S1 Jo a8e10Ae U 10) %09 Aq uoneyodsuer; 1oy Aep 1od
uosiad 1od Suryiq Jo Sunyiem swy 9Ferdae oy oseardOU] O
(ueinsapad pue ax1q Surpnjour) suoIsIod [[e
WOJJ SanI[eIe] pue SaLIN[UI Jo Joquinu 3y} 0405 Aq 99npay o
suolssiwa ajenomted [asaI] o
SUOISSIWD
ape[nonIed 0} 9]qEINQLINE BUWIYISE JO SOUIPIOU] o
SI10Je2IpU] POJRIO0SSY
seore
pajordur A1yS1y ur suononpar 1938213 SASYOY e
%0¢
Aq (01N suorssiws sje[nonted 951802 9oNpay
%01 4q (S'TINd) saremonred
auyy 0} aInsodxs woiy syjesp aijewoaid onpay e
:SUOISSIUID
Tepnonted 0} ainsodxs woly sypesp sinjewsid sonpey o

"S9010YD [2ARI) S[eNPIAIPUI

opIng ey swrsped Juswdojeasp oy sadeys Apoanp Ajoyine asn-puey ,sa1unod

pue sanr) “Aejd o} ojor 1593319 9y} oAy SUOWUISA0S [R0] ‘eumonpseryur uoneuodsuen
Jo uBisap pue uoneiado oy pue SUOISIIAP ISN-puE] ssuanpyur djay ues sarouade [euoiSor
Aq sao10yd Aotjod oy ‘[eaey; uersopad pue 9[0421q 210w JuISeINOOUD pUE SUCISI][00
Buronpa ‘Ayrenb are Surroxdun sopnpour sanunuIwIos oJes pue Ayjesy Sunoworg
s[prunwure? AyJes » APEdIH

JU9PISaL SWOIUI-MO[ JuaLIng Suroeldsip Jnoysim
(51813pOW-2A0QE “Q1RIOPOW ‘MO[ ‘MOJ-AISA) [9AS] awodsuy
Aq y3mo13 reak-¢z parosfoad s uordai sy Jo 94001 SSNOH

"UI30U0) JO SANIUNWIIOD SWIOIUI-MO] Ul ALISAO
J0 UORENUIZUOS ) 3NPIX 0} OS[E INQ ‘SIRUNOD SUIU [[B UI PUE S[3AS] SWIOSUI [[& Jo sajdoad
Joy 3uisnoy jo Ajddns pue AjjiIqepogye smsus o AJuo jou saxidse uordar oy, ‘spuspisor
va1y Aeg [[e 10§ AN[IqeAl] Szrwxew o} [enuasss sy Aiddns Suisnoy JUSIIYNS UL ISISAIP
uISnoy ayenbapy

%S1 Aq syony
Anp-y31[ pue sIed WOy SUOISSIWS 200 endes-1ad sonpoy

‘SplMuOEU pUE S1E}S Y} PUNOIe SUOISAI JSY}0 JOJ [SPOW € SE JOB Ued Baly Aeg
3y ‘sar3o[ouyoa} aapeAoUUl Yum satorjod aarssaiSTe Sutuiquios £g ‘se13erens uondepe
Y3noJy) oSsu [9A9]-B3S 0] onp oureIoys oy prendojes jsnw uoI3al Ino ‘aIoULIdYNg
SYONI) pue SIEd WOl SuolssIwe sef osnoyuadrd 2onpar o} eluwiojie) noySnoxny
seare uenjodonow soxnbar /¢ ||ig Sjeuss ‘paapu] ‘Aeg oosIouRIL ues JO saIoys oy
PUOAaq Jej SaIUNWWIOD SIA[OAUT YD S1eWI|d JO a3us|eys ay) ynm Ajaandsyye Suresq

U01)3930.1J djeuii])

(pajou ssaun SpPAd| S00T WIO01J) J93IE ], IIUTWAOJId]

1809,

$)93.1.,], IUBULIOLId] PUE S[E0) SOS/dIN

['V Juowygoeny




"3J1] Jo ssof a[qeyusaaid Aue proae o) pue
AJIND3S INJONISEIJUT SINSUD 0} PIsu ) 199[JAI JSnW senuond Suipuny sig)sesip sinng
Aue yo syoedun [enusjod oY) szruuIw o) pue swajsAs ammjonnseyjur 01 s3ewep jusaaid o)
oM ISNW — $310USTE AJEIS PUE [EIOPIJ YIIM UONEISd00D Ul — S[RIDYJO JUSWUISA0S BIIY
Keg ‘aJ11 Jo Ayirenb pue Aifeja srwouods s uoidar sy satesaxd o 1 "aInjonsseljul ealy Aeg
Jo A31moas 3y} 01 1B3IY) B SI SIOISESIP SPRWURW JO [RINJRU wolj a3eurep 10y jenusiod oy

9J1] [NJasn JO 94,()G O} 33k JoSSe JIsuen) 9FeIoAL dnpay o
So[IW-aUe] [B)0} JO 040 | Uey) SS9

0} sSAeMYy3IY 91e3S JO SA[IW-OUE| PISSANISIP ISBAINA(  ©
191329 1o G/ 0}

(1Dd) xapur uonipuod juswaAed peol [eo0] aseaIou) o

:aredal

poo3 jo ajesrs e ul wa)sAs uonepodsuen sy) ureurely O
%01

Aq endes Jod pojeaen safiw 9[o1YaA s[iqowone aseaIddq o
sepouwr ojne

-uou 10y 9401 £q own [3aen din-1od oBeroae aseardaq o

"ap1muoi3al ypmois s1uIouoss sjowoxd
pue seare ueqn Jupsixs ur yuowdo[aAap [jyur poddns ‘eFeurep SOIJoA dzIwrurw ‘Ajayes
100)01d 0} AIessadsu S1 2OUBUSIUIBW PANUNUO)) "SJUdWdACIdWI 9AN)09]Ja-1S00 “pajadie)
Sunyew pue paziun A[[ny jou are jey) sjosse SurSe10ns] se [[om se aredar poo3 jo syeys v ur
syesse Junsixa Juiazesaid sarmnbasr wsysAs uoneyodsuer ay3 Jo Aousronyye oy Surziunxep
SSAUIANIIJY Wid)SAG oneI0dsuea],

(sxeq[op juarino ur) reak 1od 941°7 Jo
a3eroAe ue — o4/ 8 Aq (YD) 19npoid [euoiSar ssod ssealouy

"A[Iqer[a1 3500q pue KNIqissedde sA01dW ‘S1S03 [€)0} J0 ‘sa010yd puedxa os[e nq
saury [aAeI} 9onpal Auo J0u [jim [eod siyy yo ymsind ur sarorjod asn-pue] pue uonenodsuern
AAABS SOLISNPUL PUB S[OAS] [[INS [[e JO S[EnpIAIpUT 10§ sontunuoddo  juswiKojduus
Ignusld pue ‘Yimoi8 pue ssoursng oy oyun|d Ayesy e sopnjoul SIyJ, °sjudPIsaI
vaIy Aeg [[e JoJ 951 jo Ayenb panunuoo amsus o) sAnerdun st Awouoos Juons y
TEIA IWOU0dH

Buisnoy pue uoneuodsuen
Aq pawINsu0d SWodUl PIOY2SNOY SJUSPISL SWOIUI
S[PPIW-12MO] pUE SWOOUI-MO] JO SIBYS ) 94| AQ 35BaI0(]

"SPOOYI0QUSIAU BWIOOUI-MO] Ul PITEIURdU0D A]91UonI0doIdsIp jou ale uonnjjod asiou 1o
uonnjjod Jojem ‘uonnyjod Ire ey pue ‘panquUysip A[usAd are jusunsaAul uoneodsuer) Jo
YI[e SUSpIng pue sjyyausq ay3 Jeyy S)USpIsal pajqesip pue Jotuss jo suonemndod Suimord
N0 0} os[e Inq SIA[ISWIAY uodsuer; ued oym SO} 0} A[UO JOU J[qE[IBAE AIE suondo
Amiqowr jey ¢Asuow 10 Sw JO 10D [PWIUIW © Je PaydLal 9q AeW SUOHEBUNSAD [BIIUSSI
Jey) ‘sawoou [1e jo sjdoad 10§ s|qe[ree st Suisnoy Aypenb-ySiy ey} 2INSUS 0} MIOM snu
sarouage [euoi3ay "Ayjeam oy} 10J AJUO PIAIISAI a3o11a1d e j0u st 9J1] Jo Anpenb Y3y v
SS330Y o[qejnby

AJuo sesodind [eonAeue Joy

‘sease SurLpno

(Pajou ssajun s3] S007 Ea....«_v..uouas_m. JDUBUILIOYII]

ur juswidojeaap [euonippe onsind Uey) Ioyjel sesre ueqin SUNSIXS W YImoId SnooJ pnoys

€09

T30 7 93eq
110Z ‘1€ Arenuef
§}981 ], 90UBULIONIS PUR S[EOD) SOS/dLY (1'V wuawyoeny

55



Attachment A.2
Programmatic Categories

Programmatic categories are groups of similar projects, programs, and strategies that are included under a single
group for ease of listing in the RTP/SCS. Projects within programmatic categories must be exempt from regional
transportation conformity. Many projects which address the concerns of communities, such as pedestrian bulbouts,
bicycle lanes, transit passenger shelters, ridesharing, etc. are often taken into account in a programmatic category.
Therefore individual projects of this nature do not need to be specified. Projects grouped in a programmatic
category are viewed as a program of multiple projects. Projects that add capacity or expand the network are not
included in a programmatic category. Projects that do not fit within the identified programmatic categories are
listed separately in the RTP/SCS. Programmatic categories to be used include, but are not limited to the following;:

1.

15.
16.

17.
18.

19.

20.
21.
22.
23.
24,
25.
26.

27.

28.
29.

30.

Bicycle/Pedestrian Expansion (new facilities, expansion of existing bike/pedestrian network)
Bicycle/Pedestrian Enhancements (enhancements, streetscapes, TODs, ADA compliance, mobility and
access improvements)

Bicycle/Pedestrian Facilities Rehabilitation

Lifeline Transportation (Community Based Transportation Plans projects such as information/outreach
projects, dial-a-ride, guaranteed ride home, paratransit, non-operational transit capital enhancements (i.e.
bus shelters). Does not include fixed route transit projects.)

Transit Enhancements (ADA compliance, mobility and access improvements, passenger shelters,
informational kiosks)

Transit Management Systems (TransLink®, Transit GPS tracking systems (i.e. Next Bus))

Transit Safety and Security Improvements (Installation of security cameras)

Transit Guideway Rehabilitation

Transit Station Rehabilitation

. Transit Vehicle Rehabilitation/Replacement/Retrofit
. Transit O&M (Ongoing non-capital costs, preventive maintenance)
- Transit Operations Support (purchase of operating equipment such as fareboxes, lifts, radios, office

and shop equipment, support vehicles)

. Local Road Safety (shoulder widening, realignment, non-coordinated signals)
- Highway Safety (implementation of Highway Safety Improvement Program, Strategic Highway Safety

Program, shoulder improvements, guardrails, medians, barriers, crash cushions, lighting improvements,
fencing, increasing sight distance, emergency truck pullovers)

Non-Capacity Increasing Local Road Intersection Modifications and Channelization
Non-Capacity Increasing State Highway Enhancements (noise attenuation, landscaping, roadside rest
areas, sign removal, directional and informational signs)

Freeway/Expressway Incident Management (freeway service patrol, call boxes)

Non-Capacity Increasing Freeway/Expressway Interchange Modifications (signal coordination,
signal retiming, synchronization)

Freeway/Expressway Performance Management (Non-ITS Elements, performance monitoring,
corridor studies)

Non-Capacity Increasing Local Road Rehabilitation (Pavement resurfacing, skid treatments)
Non-Capacity Increasing Local Bridge Rehabilitation/Replacement/Retrofit

State Highway Preservation (Caltrans SHOPP, excluding system management)

Toll Bridge Rehabilitation/Replacement/Retrofit

Local Streets and Roads O&M (Ongoing non-capital costs, routine maintenance)

State Highway O&M (Caltrans non-SHOPP maintenance, minor ‘A’ and ‘B’ programs)

Regional Air Quality and Climate Protection Strategies (outreach programs and non-capacity projects
specifically targeting regional air quality and climate protection strategies)

Local Air Quality and Climate Protection Strategies (outreach programs and non-capacity projects
specifically targeting local air quality and climate protection strategies)

Regional Planning and Outreach (regionwide planning, marketing, and outreach)

Transportation Demand Management (continuation of ridesharing, shuttle, or vanpooling at current
levels)

Parking Management (Parking cash out, variable pricing, etc.)

56



Joafoid yoes 1o} synsas /g Jo aouesylubls ssassy o
( Aupgernal Jo anjea ‘ssodind duy uo
paseq awi jo sanjeA Juaiayip ‘sbuines aw jlews Bununoosip
“68) uonenjea swn |anel} Joy seonoeid Bulbiawa MBINGY O©
sjoaloud
Jo sbunes annejes uo awn [aAed} Jo Yoedw Jo S)SB) Apaisusg o
aw |aAely Aq pajeulwop s
[8POW D/g Jus.ind Jey} UIadUO0D O} ssaippe 0} sayoeoidde Japisuo)

ynsai
aAneuenb sjbuls e aney o) Jejeid 'sioxew uoisidep ay)
10} PEOJJOAD UOKEWLIOJUI SBM SBINSEaW aAlepuenb ino-

s
uoneIapISuUo)

asn pue| yelp poddns jou op jey; (9)

suoIssIWe g9 ut aseasout (q) ueld yeup sy} ul
sleob ma) Bunesw Jo 5/g mo) (e) uoisnjoul aiojeq O/g-mo] yum sjoefosd Ansnl, siosuodg uonew.ou|
yum spefoid Ausnl, 1snw siosuodg o pessaippe ) j0 asp
passaippe s|eob jo Jequinu pue J/g Buiddew peys ajqang e s|eob jo jaquinu pue /g Buiddew peys sjqgng e 9 sisayjuis
Juswissasse alejenb
uolysey aanepenb e u| 3y} ybnoayy painydes ae H/g ul pajosysl Jou s|eos
Juswssasse sjeob ay) ybnouyy painydes ase /g ul pajosyal Jou sjeos)
Jisuel} mau Aq paasss ployssnoy awoou-mol Jad 10 i
soueua)julew swi-uo Joj sbules js0) o LINA Ut uogonpas tad 3s0n ¢
(diysssumoy/Bunesado ajoIyaA) sjsoo Jesn ang o 209D uo uononpai Jad )soy ‘g
saniele; g saunfu; o aoueusjulew awn-uo Joj sbuines js0n o
s|@As)] uoepodsueys) (diysssumosBunesedo sjo1yan) sjs0o sesn ang o
SANoB Ul sabueyo yum pejeldosse sjsoo yjesH o sshele} @ saunfup o
GCZNdPUB OLNd © GCNd pue gLNd ©
¢00 ©° ¢00 o©
(mojaq sajou ass) swiy jpAeIL  © Aejpg o
(smoje awn 41) seeh uozuoy Jo pesisul 1A GZ JoA0 - onel 59 L Buipnjout geoz utones /g °|
sisAleue [spow LN e sishleue [spow DIy e (eaeuenb)
sjoalold papiwwod uo Aayod |eul o) swesboid [euoibar payiwwooun Juswissassy
1oslans - (00| sdeytad) aiow Ajjenusjod Ing sosloid jo sadAy swes e Se ||om se sjoa(oid payiwwoosun sjess-abie| gg 1s0)-)ijousg
uoonpail suolssiwa ajejnoiued pue o) paosioid se yons
‘s|qejieAe assym uolewloul sAjeluenb asn ‘spsfoid Jabie o4 e
puewap Buisnoy sinjny sjepowiwiosse slapjoyaxels pue yejs DA o [sued Aq pajonpuo) e
pue apixolp uogies adnpal o} sjeob Alojnjels e pessalppe (anneyyenb
ymoub pasnooy Joj poddns e s|eob jo Jaquinu/ieob yoes ssaippe syosloid fjom MOH o .>_w.m 12))
‘Uo siseydwa pappe yum pue adAy JUBWISSaSSY
sjabieysjeob mau Bunosyal Ing — g0z uonepodsuel | Jojseaweg e Josfoud ¢ o padnoib ‘passasse (+002) sysloid v o sjeog
sybnoy | [eniu| — yoeouddy 414/S08 §€0Z uoneyuodsuel)

A30[0poIdIA] JudMISSISSY ddURULIONId }93f01g UonE)IodsuRL] werq SO LI — £V yuduidey)y

57



Attachment A.4
MTC Policy Advisory Council Members

Naomi Armenta

Representing the Disabled Community of
Alameda County
narmenta@actia2022.com

Cathleen Baker
Representing the Low-Income Community of
San Mateo County

cabaker@co.sanmateo.ca.us

Paul S. Branson

Representing the Senior Community of Marin
County

kayak707@gmail.com

Richard L. Burnett

Representing the Disabled Community of
Solano County
burnett.richardl@gmail.com

Joanne Busenbark

Representing the Senior Community of Napa
County

joannbusenbark@sbcglobal.net

Carlos Castellanos
Economy Representative
carlosc@ebaldc.com

Bena Chang
Economy Representative

bchang@svlg.net

Wilbert Din

Representing the Minority Community of San
Francisco

wil_din@yahoo.com

Richard Hedges
Economy Representative
hedghogg@ix.netcom.com

Allison Hughes
Representing the Disabled Community of San
Francisco

58

allisonh@rdtsi.com

Dolores Jaquez

Representing the Senior Community of
Sonoma

doloresjaquez@yahoo.com

Randi Kinman
Representing the Low-Income Community of
Santa Clara County

randikinman@yahoo.com

Federico Lopez

Representing the Disabled Community of
Contra Costa County
fwlopez@comcast.net

Marshall Loring

Representing the Senior Community of San
Mateo County

cmarsh.L@att.net

Evelina Molina

Representing the Low-Income Community of
Sonoma County

youthgreenjobs@gmail.com

Cheryl O’Connor
Economy Representative

coconnor@hbanc.org

Kendal Oku

Representing the Minority Community of
Marin County

kandpoku@gmail.com

Lori Reese-Brown

Representing the Minority Community of
Solano County

Bro7L@aol.com

Gerald Rico

Representing the Minority Community of
Napa County

ricochip@sbcglobal.net




Frank Robertson

Representing the Minority Community of
Contra Costa County
bostonlegacy@comcast.net

Linda Jeffery Sailors
Economy Representative
madammayor@comcast.net

Dolly Sandoval

Representing the Senior Community of Santa
Clara County

dolly@dollysandoval.com

Egon Terplan
Environment Representative
eterplan@spur.org

59



Cost Estimating Guide

2008 Update

CONTRA COSTA

Q transportation

authority

60

ATTACHMENT 2
TAC Agenda Item 9
March 3, 2011



CONTRA COSTA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
2008 Update of the Cost Estimating Guide

Summary of Changes

CCTA’s Cost Estimating Guide (Guide) was last updated in July 2003. That version, as well as
previous ones, contained specific unit prices for typical project bid items, and “rule of thumb”
percentages to use for estimating a variety of other project elements. Global and domestic markets
are more unpredictable than ever — as evidenced by the very high escalation in construction costs
over the first few years since the last update of the Guide, and notable drops in construction costs
more recently. For this reason, the CCTA will no longer recommend specific prices or a specific
escalation rate to use in the development of project cost estimates. There are many resources
available to assist in determining appropriate unit costs when developing cost estimates. As such,
CCTA has provided a list of some of these resources at the end of this Guide. It is expected that
project proponents will use up-to-date cost data from one of the listed sources, or from another
credible source, in developing their project cost estimates. Escalation rates should be justifiable.

With the elimination of published unit prices, the accompanying spreadsheet template has also been
modified. The “rule of thumb” allowances are still provided in the spreadsheet and can be modified
if appropriate. The Guide has been updated to reflect these changes.

The major revisions included in the 2008 update are:

1. Specific unit prices are no longer provided. Instead, references (with links, where available) are
provided at the end of the Guide as potential resources for up-to-date cost data.

2. References to metric units have been removed, as Caltrans no longer uses the metric system.
Accordingly, Appendix D (Conversion Factors) is no longer included in the Guide.

3. The Guide is now available primarily on-line. There is no longer a diskette (formerly Appendix
E) associated with it; instead, the spreadsheet template can be downloaded from the CCTA
website. ( www.ccta.net ). A hard copy of the Guide, along with a CD containing the spreadsheet,
is available upon request.

4. There is no longer a discussion of Value Engineering because it is the Authority’s policy that
value engineering is inherent in the design process and is reinforced during the Peer Review
process.

5. There is no longer a discussion of Estimate Deliverables because there is no formal submittal of a

cost estimate outside of the Peer Review process.

Typographical errors have been corrected and there has been overall editing for clarity.

7. Text has been revised throughout to conform to the revisions identified above.

o

61



Commissioners:
Dave Hudson
Chair

Maria Viramontes
Vice Chair

Janet Abelson
Susan Bonilla
David Durant
Donald P. Freitas
Federal Glover
Brad Nix

Julie Pierce
Karen Stepper

Don Tatzin

CONTRA COSTA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

Robert K. McCleary

Executive Director

October 2008
2008 Update of the Cost Estimating Guide
Prepared by:
Nolte Associates, Inc.

ii

62



CONTRA COSTA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

INTRODUCTION 1
ESTIMATING METHODOLOGY 1
SCOPE OF THE ESTIMATE 3
TYPES OF ESTIMATES 3
PROCEDURE FOR PREPARING CONCEPTUAL ESTIMATES 5
BELOW THE LINE COSTS 6
QUALITIES OF A GOOD COST ESTIMATE 8
CONCLUSION 8
RESOURCES 8

APPENDIX A: COST ESTIMATING USING THE SPREADSHEET TEMPLATE
APPENDIX B: CONCEPTUAL ESTIMATING REFERENCE, FORMS B-1 AND B-2
APPENDIX C: FORMS C-1, C-2, AND C-3

iii

63



CONTRA COSTA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

MEASURES C AND J
COST ESTIMATING GUIDELINES

PROCEDURE

1.0 INTRODUCTION

The Cost Estimating Guide (Guide) sets out a consistent framework for estimating project costs at
the conceptual level. Project proponents are encouraged to use this Guide when preparing cost
estimates for Measure C or J funded projects. Sound financial programming requires consistent and
reasonable cost estimates. Accurate cost estimates help project proponents establish reliable funding
plans for their projects and allow the Authority to program sufficient funding to deliver the projects.

2.0 ESTIMATING METHODOLOGY

The Cost Estimating Guide provides a description of the procedures to be used in estimate
preparation for Measures C and J projects. They are described in the following paragraphs.

Conceptual estimates are prepared during the early planning and project development phases when
detailed information about the project is unknown. Detailed estimates are prepared during the
design phases of project development when more detailed engineering is being performed.

CCTA provides a template for preparing Conceptual Cost Estimates that can be downloaded from
the Authority’s website (www.ccta.net) or requested on a CD. Instructions are included for using the
template are included in Appendix A. The template was prepared using Microsoft Excel (Version
7.0) software. Information regarding the basis for estimating various bid items at the conceptual
level is provided Appendix B. Forms C-1 through C-3 were created in Microsoft Word (Version

7.0).



CONTRA COSTA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

The Conceptual Cost Estimating Reference (Appendix B)

The Conceptual Cost Estimating Reference (Appendix B) includes definitions of cost items and the
basis for unit prices. Unit prices are specified in several forms used in preparing estimates. Forms
B-1, Conceptual Cost Estimate Summary, and B-2, Conceptual Cost Estimate, are shown at the end
of Appendix B.

Forms B-1 and B-2 are the output from the Excel-based Cost Estimating Spreadsheet. The
Conceptual Cost Estimating Reference is applicable for three types of cost estimates:

1) Initial Estimate, prepared when the project is conceived;

2) Project Study Report (PSR) Estimate, prepared as part of
the PSR or other scoping document; and

3) Project Report/Environmental Document (PR/ED) Estimate,
prepared as part of the Project Report. These estimates are
explained in greater detail in Section 5.

The spreadsheet template no longer contains specific unit prices, although it still contains “rule of
thumb” numbers for project elements that are typically estimated as percentages at the conceptual
level. The percentages used in the Excel estimating template are to be used as a guide and should not
interfere with good estimating practice. The estimator may deviate from the Guide if better

information is available.

Unit pricing should be carefully considered. Prices can vary greatly for the same material in different
areas or quantity, and at the time of this writing, markets appear to be somewhat volatile. There are
several sources of cost data that can be used to determine appropriate unit prices. The California
Department of Transportation (Caltrans) publishes its Contract Cost Data reference annually,
documenting actual bid prices from construction contracts issued in the previous year. A detailed
discussion of the Caltrans Contract Cost Database reference follows in the Detailed Cost Estimate

section below.

Proponents should document the scope of the project, basis for quantities, basis for pricing,
assumptions, inclusions, and exclusions as accurately as possible. The cost estimate should be
carefully reviewed before being finalized. A completed and signed Estimate Review and Sign-Off
Sheet (Form C-3) is to accompany the Conceptual Estimate. Form C-3 is provided in Appendix C.

Detailed Cost Estimate (Please refer to Caltrans Contract Cost Database)

Proponents who choose not to use the Caltrans Contract Cost Data reference for developing detailed
cost estimates may use other sources, but should justify the basis of their unit prices. Detailed
estimates are to be summarized using the format of Form B-1 - Conceptual Cost Estimate Summary.

The Caltrans Contract Cost Database is a summary of cost (by item) for highway construction
projects. A six-digit item code has been assigned to each standard contract item. The first two digits

2

65



CONTRA COSTA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

of the item code normally relate each corresponding contract item to its respective section of the
California Department of Transportation Standard Specifications. Prices shown in this summary are
the mathematically weighted average of the low bidders’ prices and are affected by location (Caltrans
District Number), time, quantity in the job and size of the item (relative to the size of the job).

This Contract Cost Data is published annually by the Department of Transportation, Office of Office
Engineer. A copy can be purchased by sending a request and remittance to:

California Department of Transportation
Publication Distribution Unit
1900 Royal Oaks Drive
Sacramento, CA 95815-3800
Phone Number: (916) 445-3520

or
http://caltrans-opac.ca.gov/publicat.htm

Caltrans also makes the database available online. As of this printing, it can be found at:
http://sv08data.dot.ca.gov/contractcost/.

3.0 SCOPE OF THE ESTIMATE

The project should be developed in sufficient detail to support the type of cost estimate prepared. In
some cases it may be necessary to do additional work to adequately define the project scope. For
example, it may be necessary to obtain a geotechnical report, information on potential for
contaminated soil, or as-built drawings of existing facilities to refine cost estimates.

Any estimate should include a summary narrative describing the scope of work upon which the
estimate is based.

40 TYPES OF ESTIMATES

Seven project development milestones have been identified for which cost estimates may be
prepared. They follow the normal chronological course of events associated with developing a
capital project. The seven types of estimates corresponding to these milestones comprise two major
categories: Conceptual Estimates and Detailed Estimates. These are shown below.

Conceptual Estimates Detailed Estimates

e Initial Estimate 35% Submittal Estimate
e PSR Estimate 65% Submittal Estimate
e PR/ED Estimate 100% Submittal Estimate
Final Engineer’s Estimate

66



CONTRA COSTA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

During the Authority’s peer-review process, a detailed cost estimate is required to be submitted
along with the design plans.

Conceptual Cost Estimates

Initial Estimate

An initial estimate, based upon the project concept, is usually the first cost estimate prepared for
a new project. The project may not be sufficiently defined to allow use of the Guide. If the Guide
is not used, the proponent should state how the initial estimate was derived.

Project Study Report (PSR) or equivalent Estimate

A PSR will generally be required for all projects involving Caltrans facilities. The estimate for a
Project Study Report or any similar scoping document should be developed using the format of
the Conceptual Cost Estimate Summary (Form B-1) and Conceptual Cost Estimate (Form B-2).
Both forms can be found in Appendix B and are contained in the spreadsheet template.

Note: Caltrans has a defined Project Study Report Cost Estimate format.

Project Report/Environmental Document (PR/ED) or equivalent Estimate
The PR/ED Estimate is based upon engineering studies prepared in support of the environmental
document.

Note: Caltrans has a defined Project Report Cost Estimate format.

Detailed Cost Estimates

35% Submittal Estimate is based upon documents prepared for the 35% design submittal. This
submittal will define the major elements of the project

65% Submittal Estimate is required for projects for which sufficient detail was not provided for
major work elements in the 35% Submittal Estimate or if the project scope has changed
significantly.

100% Submittal Estimate is based upon documents prepared for the 100% design submittal.
Costs evaluated for this submittal address the final definition of the project, completed
specifications, and a detailed implementation schedule. The estimate should also consider any
special terms or conditions in the contract.

Final Engineer’s Estimate is based on the advertised contract bid documents and any subsequent
addenda. Documents upon which this estimate is based include any review comments, which
may have been incorporated into the project since preparation of the 100% estimate. The Final

4

67



CONTRA COSTA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

Engineer’s Estimate may be the same as the 100% Submittal Estimate if no changes have
occurred nor addenda issued.

5.0 PROCEDURES FOR PREPARING CONCEPTUAL ESTIMATES

In order to obtain consistent cost estimates, the Authority has established a standard project work
breakdown structure and has developed “rule of thumb” allowances for certain work elements
based on typical state highway projects (See Appendix B). Proponents should select unit prices for
bid items by using the Caltrans Contract Cost Database, the RS Means Guide, or another
professionally acceptable source for construction cost data. Descriptions and definitions of typical
bid items are included in Appendix B and should be referred to during the development of the
estimate.

Estimate Format

Conceptual estimates can be developed using the format of the Conceptual Cost Estimate Summary
(Form B-1) and Conceptual Cost Estimate (Form B-2). Both forms can be found in Appendix B and
are contained in the spreadsheet template.

Cost elements contained on Form B-2 should be adequate for most conceptual estimates for
Measures C or-J projects. Blank spaces are provided on the form for items of work not listed under
each major category of cost.

Form B-1 is a total project cost summary containing estimates of both basic contract and other costs.
When the spreadsheet software is used, costs associated with contract work from Form B-2 are
automatically summarized into 6 major categories of work on Form B-1. Items not in the contract
and other markups are added below the line. See Section 7.0, Below the Line Costs, for a detailed
discussion of these items. The Excel spreadsheets produce forms B-1 and B-2.

Quantity Takeoff

Quantity takeoffs should be prepared using the prescribed format and should be based on available
conceptual engineering. Appendix B, Basis of Quantity and Unit Cost Measure, describes the basis
of measurement to be used. Quantity takeoffs may be calculated on any standard takeoff sheet or by
using their own spreadsheet. A sample takeoff sheet is provided as Form C-1 in Appendix C.

Pricing

The conceptual cost spreadsheet developed by the Authority no longer contains Guide unit costs in
Form B-2. It does however provide allowances for various soft costs and those bid items which are
typically estimated as a percentage in the conceptual phase of a project. These Guide allowances are
preset in the spreadsheet template. Appendix B contains a description of the assumptions supporting

5

68



CONTRA COSTA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

the Guide allowances. These are intended as a guide and may be adjusted if deemed appropriate. All
allowances that deviate from the Guide should be highlighted by shading the proponent cost cell.
When the estimator feels it is necessary to make significant deviations from the Guide, an
explanation of deviations should be provided.

On occasion, it may be necessary to develop the cost of a particular line item in more detail
(especially if the unit is composed of several items) or to demonstrate the derivation of a unit price
should the Guide not be used. Form C-2, Unit Price Estimate, is provided for this purpose. The form
may also be used to explain the derivation of a lump sum item.

6.0 BELOW THE LINE COSTS

Items below the “Total Contract Cost” shown on the estimate summaries (Form B-1) are termed
"Below The Line Costs". These costs are defined as follows:

Work by Others

Certain items of work may be excluded from the work of the prime construction contract. For
instance, relocation of a railroad track or a gas line may be accomplished by force account by the
railroad or the local utility, or the owner may procure an item and provide it to the contractor for
installation. Detailed information should be entered on Form B-2. The total cost shown on the
estimate summary will automatically adjust.

Land and Right-of-Way

Initially, right-of-way to be acquired for construction of the project should be approximated using
unit prices for comparable land values. Once the proposed take is specifically defined, special
expertise is required to develop the cost. The appropriate detail should be entered on Form B-2. The
form allows cost input for land, relocation costs, land acquisition services, hazardous material
remediation, and contingencies. The total will be automatically included on the estimate summary.

Design Development Contingency

Contingency is an allowance to cover the unknowns inherent in design development and
imperfections in estimating. The Contingency Guidelines in Table 1 show the contingency that is
recommended to be used during each phase of project development as a percentage of estimated
construction cost. The contingency decreases as more detailed engineering is performed. This table
should be used to determine the appropriate contingency percentage, unless there is justification for
deviation from these guidelines.

For conceptual level estimates the design development contingency is typically set at 25%. This
percentage is applied automatically on the preceding subtotal shown on form B-1. The contingency

6

69



CONTRA COSTA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

section in the spreadsheet template provided along with this Guide should be used during the
corresponding project development phase. Note that the recommendations below allow for selection
of a lower or higher contingency at some of the early phases of project development. The rule of
thumb should be to assume the higher value for contingency unless there is some specific
Justification for reducing it. A small project that is well-defined from the outset may be justified in
using 15% contingency at the PR phase, for example.

Type Estimate Description Probable Contingency as to
Percentage of Construction Cost

1 Initial or °
PSR
2 PSR or °
PR
3 PR or °
35% Submittal
4 35% Submittal or °
65% Submittal
5 100% Submittal or ®

Engineer’s Estimate

l | ]

25% 20% 15% 10% 5%
Table 1: Contingency Guidelines

Engineering and Management

Included in this category are pre-design, design engineering, construction staking, and construction
management services. Pre-design services include engineering and environmental studies necessary
to obtain environmental clearance.

Construction Contingency

This is a reserve to cover construction and engineering change orders. The estimate summaries
anticipate that 10% of project cost is a reasonable amount to allow for this item. This percentage may
be overridden if it is deemed appropriate.

70



CONTRA COSTA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

8.0 QUALITIES OF A GOOD COST ESTIMATE

In general, a cost estimate should attempt to answer a series of questions as shown below:

Scope: What is included? What is excluded? Does the scope of the estimate match the
scope of defining documents? Any variations must be identified and the reason for the

deviation explained.

Quantities: Are the quantities reasonable? Is the method clear and easy to follow? Has
the math been checked? Do the totals come forward to the summaries? A good technique
is to use parametric checks from other experience, i.e. 1000 pounds of reinforcing steel
per cubic yard of concrete would be extraordinary.

Pricing: Are the unit prices reasonable? Do the allowances follow the Guide pricing? If
not, are the explanations reasonable? Does the pricing cover the type and quality of
materials contemplated? Are incidentals like sales tax and freight covered? Have unusual
working conditions been factored into the pricing?

Major items: The major items of work should be investigated with care. A faulty
assumption on a major work item will have a large effect on project cost.

Presentation: Is the estimate presentation clear? Is it easy to follow? Is the basis of the
estimate documented in a concise fashion so that it will be readily understood by an
unfamiliar party?

9.0 CONCLUSION

The Cost Estimating Guide is intended to assist project proponents in developing reliable cost
estimates for projects that may receive Measures C or J funding. Persons using the Guide are
encouraged to suggest improvements or corrections to Contra Costa Transportation Authority at
Hookston Square, 3478 Buskirk Avenue, Suite 100, Pleasant Hill, CA 94523.

10.0 RESOURCES

The following resources are provided for the convenience of project proponents and were current at
the time of this writing. CCTA is not responsible for any changes to others’ websites that might
render the information below obsolete or incorrect.

e Caltrans Cost Estimating Resources
Caltrans provides a number of resources for preparing cost estimates at various stages of
project development. For an overview of cost estimating resources, try the Caltrans Cost

8

71



CONTRA COSTA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

Estimating webpage, which contains a “...collection of policy, tools, guidance, training, best
practices and lessons learned... ... to assist in the development of cost estimates that are
complete and accurate, reflecting the true scope of work to be performed and reflecting

current market trends”. http://www.dot.ca.gov/hg/oppd/costest.htm.

e (Caltrans Contract Cost Database
Caltrans maintains a database of contract bid prices, which can be found at
http://sv08data.dot.ca.gov/contractcost/.

e RS Means Construction Publishers and Consultants
RS Means publishes several resources for construction cost data. These may be purchased by
contacting RS Means, 63 Smiths Lane, Kingston, MA 02364-0800. Phone: (781) 422-5000.

72



CONTRA COSTA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY APPENDIX A

MEASURES C AND J

COST ESTIMATING USING THE SPREADSHEET TEMPLATE

A Conceptual Cost Estimate template, in standard English units, has been prepared for proponent
use. The template is available on the CCTA website and can be used with Microsoft Excel version
7.0 or later. The Excel template filename is designated as follows:

CONCEPTUAL COST ESTIMATE

........................ CONCEPT-EST.XLS

This template will assist you in preparing Estimate Details and an Estimate Summary. Instructions
on opening the template in Microsoft Excel are explained below.

USING THE MICROSOFT EXCEL SPREADSHEET

1. Download the spreadsheet from the CCTA website: www.ccta.net and open the file.
2. Go to the worksheet labeled “CONC-EST-CCTA” and scroll down to line 373 to input or
revise items a. through k. below.

a.

e e

eI

Revision Number:

Date:

By:
Project Name:
Type of Estimate:

Proponent:

Source of Cost Data:
Design Consultant:
Contract No:

Percent for Contingency:

A-1

73

Use 0 if this is the first estimate you have
prepared for this project. Add the revision
number, if this is a revision.

The computer will automatically set the date
to today's date. If you wish to change the
date (i.e. if your computer is not set to the
correct date), enter the date in the following
format: 'dd-mmm-yy (e.g. '19-nov-98).

Who prepared the Estimate.

Project Title.

Refer to Section 4.0, Types of Estimates,
for types of estimates.

Project proponent.

Source for unit prices.

If applicable.

If applicable.

25% is used as a default. This may be
modified by referring to Table 1,
Contingency Guidelines and the



CONTRA COSTA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY APPENDIX A

corresponding discussion in Section 7.0,
Below the Line Costs.
k. Percent for Construction

Contingency: 10% is used as a default. This may be
modified by referring to Table 1,
Contingency Guidelines and the
corresponding discussion in Section 6.0,
Below the Line Costs.

4. The following steps will assist you in entering your estimate data.

a.

For each item, enter the unit price you have selected, making sure that the price is
based on the same unit of measure that you are using for that item.

When the quantity for a particular item is input, the Total Cost for that Item will be
calculated automatically.

Items for which the “unit” is a percentage do not require an input in the quantity field.
If you wish to change units from percentage to another unit of measure, create a new
line item. Input the unit of measure, price, and quantity. For the quantity, enter a “1”
for lump sum, or the quantity for any other unit of measure.

If an item needs to be added, space down to the next blank item for that particular
Group Code and input the Item Code, Item Description, Unit, Price and Quantity.

For line items in group code 09, Engineering and Management, space is provided to
add additional categories. These are set up to be lump sum entries. Proponents may
override the lump sum units with % calculations by the appropriate Excel
manipulations should this change be desired. For lump sum entries place a 1 in the
quantity field and a dollar amount in the proponent price column.

To move from one part of the worksheet to another, use the <F5> key as follows:
Enter REV to go to the initial data entry screen; _1, _2, etc. to go to Group Codes 01,
02, etc. and S to go to the summary screen. '

5. Save your work.

6. Print your reports. In order to print both the summary sheet, B-1, and the detailed
estimate, B-2, be sure to select “Entire Workbook” in the print options dialog box.

A-2

74



CONTRA COSTA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY APPENDIX B

CONCEPTUAL COST ESTIMATING REFERENCE

BASIS OF QUANTITY AND UNIT COST MEASURE

ADVANCE WORK

Temporary Work (Primarily for maintaining traffic)

Temporary work, detours, etc., includes all labor materials and incidental costs for the installation
and removal of all items necessary to maintain reasonable flow of traffic and safety during
construction of the proposed work. The scope includes, but is not limited to, such items as temporary
pavement, signs, signals, barriers, striping, traffic control, traffic management plan, etc.

Unit of Measure: LS (lump sum).

Guideline Unit Cost: 10% of Total Construction Bid Items

For freeways, interchanges, or major arterial projects that will require significant detours or
construction staging, additional costs may need to be included in the estimate.

Maintenance of Utilities

Maintenance of utilities includes all labor, materials and incidental costs for temporary relocations,
supports, protection, and restoration of electrical or mechanical utilities located in the work areas as
required to maintain service with minimal or no interruption. This does not include utility
relocation, which is discussed under land and right-of-way costs.

Unit of Measure: LS (lump sum).

Guideline Unit Cost: 3% of Total Construction Bid Items

Particular attention should be given to these items. Costs could be significantly larger than the
percents shown, especially if project requires significant rehabilitation and involves traffic
management, detours and construction staging.

Mobilization
Mobilization provides reimbursement of cost to the contractor prior to “move in”.

Unit of Measure LS (lump sum).

Guideline Unit Cost 10% of Total Construction Bid Items

B-1

75



CONTRA COSTA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY APPENDIX B

Clearing and Grubbing

Clearing and grubbing includes all labor, materials and incidental costs for clearing from the entire
area of the construction right of way all vegetation, shrubs, trees including the removal of stumps and
disposal of the cleared items.

Unit of Measure: 2.5% of Total Construction Bid Items

Demolition

Demolition includes all labor, materials and incidental costs for the removal of all items within the
right of way that interfere with the construction of the proposed work. Exceptions are those items
which are to remain functional during construction and which will be an integral part of the finished
project. Demolition includes the cost of hauling and disposing of all demolished items. Removal and
disposal of hazardous materials should be included under miscellaneous costs.

Demolition of Typical Items (Excluding Bridges, Major Structures, & Buildings):

Unit of Measure: LS (lump sum).

Guideline Unit Cost: 2% of Total Construction Bid Items

Demolition of Bridges, Major Structures, & Buildings:

Removal of buildings and miscellaneous structures can involve significant costs and should
be estimated separately.

Unit of Measure: LS (lump sum).

EARTHWORK

General

Earthwork includes all labor, materials and incidental costs for all earthwork operations including
haulage, testing and disposing of excess excavation, backfill compaction, and grading. Excavation
for drainage ditches will be included under "Drainage".

Earthwork (Roadway Excavation) costs can vary significantly between larger and smaller projects.
Often for smaller projects, the significant portion of the roadway excavation is associated with
grading for the roadway pavement section. This is more labor intensive and therefore more costly
than for larger projects with a larger volume of mass earthwork. It is important to use a unit price that
is consistent with the size of the project.

B-2

76



CONTRA COSTA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY APPENDIX B

Roadway excavation
Roadway excavation includes but is not limited to, excavation, embankments using excavated

materials, compaction for embankments, haulage, and disposal of over-excavation.

Unit of Measure: CY (cubic yard) of excavated material

The unit price per cubic yard is typically based on a cut and fill operation in soft soil. If conditions
suggest that rock excavation will be required, an appropriate allowance should be included.

Imported Borrow
Imported borrow includes, but is not limited to, imported material, its placement and compaction,

including haulage.

Unit of Measure: CY (cubic vard) of imported borrow in place

Typically, the unit price per cubic yard is based on the availability of suitable borrow material within
10 miles. Similar to Roadway Excavation, unit prices for Imported Borrow can vary significantly
between smaller and larger volume projects and should be selected to be consistent with the specific

project.

Erosion Control
Erosion Control includes all slope and unpaved areas that will not be landscaped. It consists of, but is

not limited to, placing soil retention netting, hydro-seeding and mulching or, where required. Other
methods of erosion control, such as rip-rap, concrete or asphaltic cover need to be estimated
separately.

Unit of Measure: AC (acres) of applicable area

DRAINAGE

General
Drainage includes all labor, material and incidental costs for providing adequate drainage of the

roadway, and all connections to existing storm sewers, modifications to existing catch basins and
manholes as required.

B-3

77



CONTRA COSTA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY APPENDIX B

Drainage Ditches
Drainage ditches include excavation and lining, or seeding as required.

Unit of Measure: LF (linear feet) of ditch

Drainage ditches vary in size, and therefore, cost per linear foot. A large ditch might be concrete
lined with an average cross section of 3 ft bottom width, 9 ft top width, and 3 ft depth; while a small
ditch might be a concrete lined V-ditch with a 1:1 slope and a top width of 4 ft. It is important that
the unit price selected is appropriate for the size of ditch that will be required. Roadside ditches
would typically only be appropriate in rural or semi-rural settings, as urban projects would normally
have curb & gutter.

Reinforced Concrete Pipe (RCP)
Reinforced concrete pipe includes manufacturing, hauling, excavation, and placing the RCP,
endwalls, all connections and modifications to existing storm drain systems, as required.

Unit of Measure: LF (linear feet) of RCP

Drainage Structures (Manholes, Catch Basins)

Drainage Structures include excavation, furnishing and installing manholes and catch basins (inlets)
with covers and grates.

Unit of measure: EA (each)

Unit prices vary for Manholes and Catch Basins (Inlets), and for smaller and larger projects.

Box Culverts (RCB)

Box culverts include excavation, furnishing and placing the culvert, and end structures. Because box
culverts vary greatly in size, it is important to use a unit cost that is appropriate for the specific
project.

Unit of Measure: SF (square feet) of box culvert

78



CONTRA COSTA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY APPENDIX B

PAVEMENT

General

Pavement includes all labor, materials and incidental costs for compaction, fine grading, and placing
sub-base, base, wearing and finish course. Striping and pavement markings, including all delineator
buttons and reflectors, will be estimated separately.

Typically city street and arterial projects (non-freeway/expressway) will include curbs & gutters,
sidewalks, and sometimes raised medians. Estimate line items are included for these items.

Roadway Pavement Sections and corresponding costs vary significantly between
Freeway/Expressways and local streets and arterials. Costs also vary between smaller and larger
projects. It is important to select unit costs that consider these variations.

Asphalt Concrete Pavement (AC)
Asphalt Concrete pavement should include the area of main road, shoulders, and ramps. Typical road
sections might be as follows:

Local Streets and Arterials:

Asphalt Concrete (Type A) 0.5ft
Class 3 Aggregate Base 0.75 ft
Class 4 Aggregate Sub-base 1.0 ft
Freeway:
Asphalt Concrete (Type A) 0.67 ft
Class 3 Aggregate Base 0.83 ft
Class 4 Aggregate Sub-base 1.33 ft
Unit of Measure: SF (square foot) of asphalt concrete pavement

The Asphalt Concrete pavement unit price should also include the necessary surface coating(s) such
as prime coat and tack coat.

Portland Cement Concrete Pavement
Portland Cement Concrete pavement should include the total area of Portland Cement Concrete
pavement based on a typical structural section. The structural section below is typical for a Long Life

B-5

79



CONTRA COSTA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY APPENDIX B

(40-year Design Life) pavement, as the majority of freeways in Contra Costa County will require it.
Normal (20-year Design Life) pavement would be approximately 20% less in unit cost.

Portland Cement Concrete 1.00 ft
Lean Concrete Base (LCB) 0.50 ft
Class 4 Aggregate Sub-base 0.75 ft
Unit of Measure: SF (square foot) of PCC pavement

Pavement Striping & Markings
Pavement striping includes striping with reflective paint, all delineator buttons and reflectors

required.

For Conceptual Pavement Striping & Markings Costs:

Unit of Measure: 2% of Total of Group Codes 02, 04, & 06

For a more detailed Pavement Striping Cost:

Unit of Measure: LF (linear foot) of Striping

For a more detailed Pavement Markings Cost:
Pavement markings will include all markings such as direction arrows, lettering, etc. with
reflective paint and all delineator buttons and reflectors required.

Unit of Measure: SF (square foot) of marked area

Sidewalk and Curb & Gutter
Sidewalk, Curb, and Curb & Gutter are assumed to be constructed of PCC.

Curb or Curb & Gutter:

Unit of Measure: LF (linear foot) of Curb or Curb & Gutter

Sidewalk:
Unit of Measure: SF (square foot) of Sidewalk

80



CONTRA COSTA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY APPENDIX B

STRUCTURES

General
Structures include all labor, materials and incidental cost for structural earthwork, foundations, and

superstructures.

Bridges
Bridges include structural excavation and backfill, piles, abutments, foundations, piers, girders and

beams, the bridge deck, and cast in place curbs.

Unit of Measure: SF (square foot) of Bridge Deck

It is useful to consider bridges as either being “relatively straight forward and uncomplicated” or
“more complex”, with the unit price reflecting this assessment. Unique or extremely complex bridges
should be examined more closely and unit prices adjusted accordingly.

Retaining Walls
Retaining walls include structural earthwork, piling, footing and stem wall.

Unit of Measure: LF (linear foot) of Retaining Wall

Costs for retaining walls will vary greatly, depending on height. If the project will have multiple or
very long walls, you should use different unit costs for sections with significantly different heights.
The guide suggest unit prices for Retaining Walls in increments of 5 ft and 10 ft, up to a wall height
of 30 ft.

Sound Walls
Sound Walls include structural earthwork, piling, concrete base, and reinforced masonry wall, pre-

cast or cast in place concrete wall.

Unit of Measure: LF (linear foot) of Sound Wall

A unit price should be selected that reflects the height of wall that is likely to be used. For conceptual
purposes, a typical sound wall could be assumed to be a 16 ft high, 8 in. thick concrete masonry wall,
on a 1 ft-8 in. high concrete base, with 16" drilled piers, at 16 ft center to center.

B-7

81



CONTRA COSTA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY APPENDIX B

MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS

General
Miscellaneous items include all labor, materials, and incidental costs for supply and installation.

Fencing
Fencing includes all posts, rails, chain link fabric, and hardware as required.

Unit of Measure: LF (linear foot) of fence

Unit prices will vary, depending on fence height, whether there is barbed wire on the top, and the
size of the project.

Railings and barriers
Railings and barriers include metal beam guardrails and cast in place or pre-cast concrete barriers.

All posts, brackets and hardware are included.

Unit of Measure: LF (linear foot) of Railing or Barrier

Traffic Signals
Traffic signals include, but are not limited to, signals, supports, controllers, and power supply.

Unit of Measure; INT (intersections)

Costs for Traffic Signals will differ depending on whether for a Partially Modified Existing System,
a New, or a Totally Reconstructed Traffic Signal System.

Roadway Lighting
Roadway lighting includes fixtures, posts, cabling and power supply, panels and controls

Unit of Measure: EA (each) individual street lights/electroliers.

The specific street light/electrolier spacing requirements for the individual jurisdiction that will
operate the roadway should be utilized to estimate the approximate total number of lights/electroliers
required.

82



CONTRA COSTA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY APPENDIX B

Signing
Signing includes all directional and traffic control signs such as Speed Limit, Do Not Enter, Merge,
Yield, etc.

Unit of Measure: for off ramps: RMP (ramps)
for on ramps: RMP (ramps)
for additional highway signs: mi (miles) of roadway
for truss signs: EA (each)
for roadside signs: EA (each)

Signing for on-ramps should be based on 8 signs on wood posts associated with the ramps and
freeway merge.

Signing for off-ramps should be based on 2 truss signs and 10 signs on wood posts associated with
the ramps and located both on and off the freeway.

A good rule of thumb for additional highway signs is to assume 1 additional truss sign and 10
additional signs on wood posts per 5 miles of roadway.

A typical truss sign is a 48 foot cantilever sign with foundations and lighting.
Typical roadside signs either have a single wood post or two wood posts.

Landscaping
Landscaping includes all seeding, planting of shrubs and trees, fertilizing and mulching, except for

hydro-seeding as included under erosion control and irrigation. No provision is made for
hardscaping in this unit price.

Unit of Measure: SF (square foot) of landscaped area

A typical assumption for freeway / expressway locations is based on 1 shrub or tree per 100 SF,
wood chip mulch over the entire area and irrigation. Maintenance period is one year.

For city street and arterials, roadside or median locations, the average level of treatment is
significantly denser than typical freeway landscaping. It may also include some hardscape treatments
within the total landscaped area.

B-9

83



CONTRA COSTA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY APPENDIX B

Construction Storm Water BMP’s

Increased legislation concerning handling construction storm water has resulted in the addition of
significant construction costs to projects. The guideline costs for this storm water handling provides
for the use of construction related Best Management Practices (BMP’s) and development of project
specific Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plans (SWPPP).

Unit of Measure: LS (lump sum).
Guideline Cost:  3.0% of Total Construction Bid Items for Codes 2.3.4.5. &6.

Ramp Metering System

Typically all on-ramps to freeways will require the installation of a Ramp Metering System.

Unit of Measure: EA (each) lane of an on-ramp lane installation.

WORK BY OTHERS

General

Work by others shall include all labor, materials and incidental items furnished by companies or
agencies other than the construction contractor. Typical items included here are utility construction
or relocations provided by a Utility company, force account work by a railroad company, and
materials furnished by others (i.e. owner). For State Highways, Caltrans furnishes various items
such as signal controllers, Resident Engineer’s Office, COZEEP (additional CHP patrols and
enforcement in construction zones), monument disks, padlocks, route shields for funding signs, and
sign panels.

Units of Measure: LS (lump sum).

ENGINEERING AND MANAGEMENT

General
The costs for engineering and management have been broken down into the following categories:

Engineering Studies

Engineering studies includes all costs associated with conceptual engineering activities. This may
include alternative configuration studies, site investigations, information gathering, and other
engineering studies and reports as needed, except as included with Environmental Studies.

B-10



CONTRA COSTA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY APPENDIX B

The guideline cost is 3% of estimated Total Construction Cost.

The stated 3% general allowance should be reviewed for appropriateness for each individual project,
as project complexity and size can have dramatic effect on this cost.

Environmental Studies
Environmental studies shall include all costs of studies and reports as required to obtain an
environmental permit. All consulting fees, regulatory requirements and cost shall be included.

The guideline cost is 3% of estimated Total Construction Cost.

The stated 3% general allowance should be reviewed for appropriateness for each individual project,
especially for smaller projects. Certain types of environmental studies have a minimum cost,
regardless of the construction value of the project, so their potential cost impact can easily be under
estimated for smaller projects.

Design Engineering

Design Engineering shall include all engineering costs from preliminary engineering to final
construction drawings, including right of way engineering. All consulting fees, fieldwork necessary
for design, and coordination costs with regulatory agencies and authorities shall be included. The
extent of approval requirements associated with Caltrans makes it appropriate to have a varying
allowance for Design Engineering depending on the degree of Caltrans involvement.

Caltrans Involvement Design Engineering Allowance
Category 1: Having No Direct Caltrans Involvement 12% of Total Construction Cost
Category 2: Requiring a Caltrans Encroachment Permit 13% of Total Construction Cost

Category 3: Having Direct Caltrans Involvement and Approval 14% of Total Construction Cost

The Guide is set to automatically calculate Design Engineering Costs at 13%. To use another
percentage rate, enter the new rate in the Proponent Price Column.

Design Services During Construction

Construction Engineering includes all design services during construction (i.e. review of shop
drawings and contractor submittals, responding to Requests for Clarifications, and the preparation of
construction Record Drawings).

The guideline cost is 1.5% of estimated Total Construction Cost.




CONTRA COSTA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY APPENDIX B

Construction Staking
Construction Staking includes all staking costs for the location of the proposed structure.

The guideline cost is 2.5% of estimated Total Construction Cost.

Construction Management
Construction Management includes all supervision, inspection, administrative support and materials

testing necessary to ensure the work is being constructed to the appropriate standards.

The guideline cost is 13% of estimated Total Construction Cost.

LAND AND RIGHT-OF-WAY

General
Land and right-of-way shall include all costs associated with purchase of land, easements and

right-of-way such as purchase price, cost of relocating current businesses or residences, right-of-way
engineering, and acquisition services.

Land Costs
Land costs are to include the purchase price of land, easements and right-of-way.

Unit of Measure: LS (lump sum).*

Relocation Costs
Relocation costs shall include all costs associated with the relocation of a current tenant and may

include locating a suitable replacement property, interest payments during a construction of the
replacement property as well as all costs associated with relocating all movable property to the

replacement property.

Unit of Measure: LS (lump sum).*

* backup information should be provided.

B-12

86



CONTRA COSTA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY APPENDIX B

Acquisition Services

Acquisition services include the costs of all services necessary to bring the purchase of land,
easements and right of way to a satisfactory conclusion. This includes legal services, title searches,
appraisal preparation, negotiations with current owners, financial and real estate consultants, etc.

Unit of Measure: LS (lump sum).*

Right-of-Way Engineering

Right-of-way engineering includes developing plans for land requirements, reapportionment of
assessment districts, surveying, documenting the land and easement limits. For Caltrans facilities,
services include preparation of right of way appraisal maps and record of surveys.

Unit of Measure: LS (lump sum).*

Utility Relocation Costs
Include all utility relocation costs, excluding any costs for maintenance of utilities, which are

included under advance work.

Unit of Measure: LS (lump sum).

* backup information should be provided.
B-13

87



CONTRA COSTA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY APPENDIX C

FORMS

The forms found in this appendix were created in Microsoft Word. Forms are as follows:

Quantity Sheet Form C-1
Unit Price Estimate Form C-2
Estimate Review and Sign-Off Sheet Form C-3

88



FORM C-1

QUANTITY SHEET

JOB NO. SUBJECT REF. NO.

SHEET OF
TITLE DATE

BY
DRG. CHECKED BY
R

HEIGHT
DESCRIPTION NO. |y eNGTH | WIDTH OR QUANTITY TOTAL
PCS WEIGHT QUANTITY

C-1

89




FORM C-2
UNIT PRICE ESTIMATE

TITLE JOB NO.
SUBJECT DATE
LOCATION BY
CLIENT SHEET OF
CHECKED BY
UNIT
CODE DESCRIPTION QUANTITY COST AMOUNT TOTAL
C-2




FORM C-3
MEASURE C/J
ESTIMATE REVIEW AND SIGN OFF SHEET

PROJECT NAME:
ESTIMATE: DATE:
PROPONENT: ESTIMATOR:

DESIGN CONSULTANT:

INCLUDED IN ESTIMATE
YES NO
CONTRACT COST L[]
WORK BY OTHERS 1]
LAND AND RIGHT OF WAY L[]
ENGINEERING AND MANAGEMENT [ | [ |
CONTINGENCY L1 ]
PROJECT RESERVE [ | ]
ESTIMATE REVIEW

REVIEWER:

POSITION:

TELEPHONE:

SCOPE PROPERLY COVERED

PRICING DEVIATIONS
EXPLAINED

INDIRECTS REASONABLE

[ ]
QUANTITIES REASONABLE [ ]
[ ]
[ ]

JULUDOH

MAJOR ITEMS REASONABLE

C-3

91



ATTACHMENT 3
TAC Agenda Item 9
March 3, 2011

METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION PLAN
for the SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA

2010 Update
FINAL DRAFT

DRAFT: July 9, 2010
REVISED DRAFT: Oct. 15, 2010
FINAL DRAFT: Dec. 3, 2010

Joseph P. Bort MetroCenter

METROPOLITAN 101 Eighth Street
Oakland, CA 94607
M T TRANSPORTATION Phone: 510.817.5700
COMMISSION TTY/TDD: 510.817.5769

Fax: 510.817.5848
Web: www.mtc.ca.gov

92



II.

I1I.

METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION
Public Participation Plan
Table of Contents

TOtEOAUCHON ..o e

A.  MTCs Commitment to Public Patticipation .......cccooeveevevccererrse

B.  Federal and State ReqQUIrements. .....cccccccceevevvrrrerroeeceeeseesoesecessese oo

SAFETEA ...ttt et ee et et e s e e e e e e e
Title VI of the Civil Rights ACt 0f 1964 .......covvivmiieereeceeeeeeeeee e
EXECULIVE OLAEIS..c.c.vuiuieiiiiieieeeereieceetee et eeete e seeeees e eres s es s s st e e
2008 California LegisIation .......ccccoerereniiieiiiecieereecseseece oot se e s e s e
Other REQUITEMENLS......criuiuiernreciieie et esees e e eseesesseseee s s e s e s ses s eeesen s

C.  Development of the Public Participation Plan...............c.cooeeen......

D. What We Heard from the PUbLC oo

Continuing Public ENGAZEMENt ............cucmirrerereeeeeeose oo,

MTC’s Policy AdViSOry COUNCIL ..ccuvmeniriiriteiteiecee et ee s esses s
Bay Area Partnership ......c.couvueiieiieneeetee et er s
Working With Neighbofing Regions..........couvruriueiuiereceoceeeessees e seese oo seeessesvessras
Commission and Committee MEEHNES .........ccrereeerrrimmeresieinreseeseseesesesesesee oo seeesseeeees
Database Keeps Interested Persons in the LOOP ot
Public Meetings, Workshops and FOTUmS. ..........c.evuevreeerue oo eeses e ves e
MTC’s Library: Information for the AsKing ........cocovvmrveervuenrerimeesececsereeeeeeeesees e
PUDBLLCAHONS .-ttt ettt et e v e s s esee s e e oo
WeDbSite: WWW.IMEC.CAZOV ...ccuruuiruiurieereere ettt see st s eeee s eesseseeseressssesseeseessssees e
Media Outlets Help Engage Mote Persons. .....cocomwwrerveerererreieceseveseoesereseeseresseeessenen
Staff Dedicated to Assistance and OUtreach.........ooveueeeeeeeeeoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeoee,

Public Participation TeCRNUQUES ......ovvvvreorrososimrerrreeresssscoeeeeeeeee e esessesseeeseeeseon

Metropolitan Transportation Commission
Final Draft Public Participation Plan

93

Page 1



IV.  Public Participation Procedures for the Regional Transportation Plan (RTP)
and the Transportation Improvement Program (TIP).........oooooooovooecccccererreeesre, 22
A.  Regional Transportation Plan ... 24
B.  Transportation Improvement Program .......cemervveecosococeceessssserssn 28
V. Interagency and Tribal Government Consultation Procedures for the Regional
Transportation Plan (RTP) and the Transportation Improvement Program
(TIP) ot sessssss s sassss e sess e e reses oo eeeeeeees oo 34
A, Public Agency Consultation...........cceerercoemierereorerssssssososeeere oo seeerssss 34
B.  Other Protocol for Working with Public Agencies ... 37
C.  Tribal Government CONSUItAtON ........vuuuvuvervvveerereveee e eeeseseeeeseeeses s, 40
VI Evaluation and Update of the Public Participation Plan............occccccoorvciveers, 41
Appendices
Appendix A: A Public Participation Plan for the Bay Area Sustainable Communities Strategy
and Regional Transportation PIan .......ccoeeeeveeiueeververeeoeseeneeeoeeeeee s, 42
Appendix B: Public Participation Plan Outreach: Summary of Comments
from 2007 Presentations, Focus Groups and Web Sutvey ......ccoooovvvvveveeroerrrecce 68
Appendix C: 2007 Tribal Government and Interagency Consultation .............cooc..covveeeereernerernenn. 72

Separately Bound Appendix

Appendix D:  Public Participation Plan QOutreach: Detail of Comments and Notes

from 2007 Presentations, Focus Groups and Web Survey

(These appendices are available from the MTC website, www.tntc.ca.gov, or by calling MTC’s Public
Information Office at 510.817.5757.)

Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page ii
Final Draft Public Participation Plan

94



Metropolitan Transportation Commission
Public Participation Plan

I know of no safe depository of the ultimate powers of the society but the people
themselves; and if we think them not enlightened enough to exercise their control
with a wholesome discretion, the remedy is not to take it from them but to inform

their discretion.
— Thomas Jefferson

I. Introduction

The Metropolitan Transportation Commission is the transportation planning and financing agency
for the nine-county San Francisco Bay Area. It also serves as the Bay Area Toll Authority (BATA),
with oversight of the toll revenue from the region’s seven state-owned toll bridges. And, as the

Service Authority for Freeways and Expressways (SAFE), MTC oversees a region-wide network of

freeway call boxes and roving tow trucks.

The Metropolitan Transportation Commission’s public involvement process aims to give the public
ample opportunities for eatly and continuing participation in critical transportation projects, plans
and decisions, and to provide full public access to key decisions. Engaging the public early and often
in the decision-making process is critical to the success of any transportation plan or program, and is
required by numerous state and federal laws, as well as by the Commission’s own internal

procedures.

This Public Participation Plan spells out MTC’s process for providing the public and interested

parties with reasonable opportunities to be involved in the regional transportation planning process.

Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 1
Final Draft Public Pasticipation Plan

95



A. MTC’s Commitment to Public Participation

Guiding Principles
The Metropolitan Transportation Commission’s public involvement procedures are built on the

following guiding principles:

1. Public participation is a dynamic activity that requires teamwork and commitment at all
levels of the MTC organization.

2. One size does not fit all — input from diverse perspectives enhances the process.

3. Effective public outreach and involvement requires rélaﬁonship building — with local
governments, with stakeholders and advisory groups.

* 4. Engaging interested-persons in ‘regional’ transportation issues is challenging, yet possible, by
making it relevant, removing batriers to participation, and saying it simply.

5. An open and transparent public participation process empowers low-income communities and
communities of color to participate in decision making that affects them.”
"This environmental justice principle was adopted by the Commission in March 2006, as
proposed by its Minority Citizens Advisory Committee.

MTC undertakes specific strategies to involve the public, including low-income persons and

communities of color, in MTC’s planning and investment decisions.
s P g

Strategy 1: Early Engagement Is Best

MTC structures its major planning initiatives and funding decisions to provide for meaningful
opportunities to help shape outcomes. For example, because MTC’s regional transportation plan is
the blueprint for both new policies and investments for the Bay Area, updates to the RTP are one of

the best places for interested persons to get involved.

Strategy 2: Access to All
MTC works to provide all Bay Area residents opportunities for meaningful participation, regardless
of disabilities or language batriers. Further, we recognize that one should not need to be a
transportation professional to understand our written and oral communications. In this spirit, we:
® provide auxiliary aids or interpreters to persons with disabilities or language
translation barriers
® strive to communicate in plain language and provide appropriate public

education materials, and

Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 2
Final Draft Public Participation Plan

96



®  use visual tools to translate detailed data into information that is more readily

understood.

Strategy 3: Response to Written Comments
MTC pays close attention to the views of the public. MTC is committed to responding to every
letter, fax and e-mail sent by individual members of the public.

Strategy 4: Inform Commissioners and Public of Areas of Agreement and Disagreement
MTC staff summarizes comments heard by various parties so that the Commissioners and the public

have a clear understanding of where there is consensus on a given issue and where there is not.

Strategy 5: Notify Public of Proposed or Final Actions

MTC staff makes every effort to ensure that meeting minutes reflect public comments and
document how comments are considered in MTC’s decisions. We sttive to inform citizen
participants on how public meetings/ participation are helping to shape or have contributed to
MTC’s key decisions and actions. When outcomes don’t correspond to the views expressed, every

effort is made to explain why not.

Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 3
Final Draft Public Participation Plan

97



B. Federal and State Requirements

SAFETEA

The Safe, Accountable, Flexible, Efficient Transportation Equity Act: A Legacy for Users — better
known as SAFETEA — signed into law in 2005, underscores the need for public involvement and

requires metropolitan planning agencies such as MTC to “provide citizens, affected public agencies,
representatives of transportation agency employees, private providers of transportation and other

interested parties with a reasonable opportunity to comment” on transportation plans and programs.
p PP P p prog

SAFETEA legislation also requites MTC — when developing the Regional Transportation Plan and
the Transportation Improvement Program (TTP) — to coordinate transportation plans with
expected growth, economic development, environmental protection and other related planning
activities within our region. Toward this end, this Public Participation Plan outlines key decision

points for consulting with affected local, regional, state and federal agencies and Tribal governments.

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 requires that transportation planning and programming be
non-discriminatory on the basis of race, color, national origin or disability. The federal statute was
further clarified and supplemented by the Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 and a series.of
federal statutes enacted in the 1990s relating to the concept of environmental justice. The

fundamental principles of environmental justice include:

© Avoiding, minimizing or mitigating disproportionately high and adverse health or
environmental effects on minority and low-income populations;

o Ensuring full and fair participation by all potentially affected communities in the
transportation decision-making process; and

© Preventing the denial, reduction or significant delay in the receipt of benefits by minotity
populations and low-income communities.

Executive Orders
An Executive Order is an order given by the president to federal agencies. As a recipient of federal
revenues, MTC assists federal transportation agencies in complying with these orders.

*  Executive Order 12898: Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and
Low-Income Populations

Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 4
Final Draft Public Participation Plan

98



In February 1994, President William Clinton signed Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions
to Address Environmental Justice for Minotity Populations and Low-Income Populations,
which mandates that federal agencies make achieving environmental justice part of their
missions.

®  Executive Order 13166: Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency

Executive Order 13166 states that people who speak limited English should have meaningful
access to federally conducted and federally funded programs and activities. It requires that
all federal agencies identify any need for services to those with limited English proficiency
and develop and implement a system to provide those services so all persons can have
meaningful access to services. MTC’s Plan for Special Language Services to Limited English
Proficient Populations can be found in English, Spanish and Chinese on MTC’s website at
http:/ /www.mtc.ca.gov/get_involved/lep.htm.

®  Executive Order 12372: Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs

Executive Order 12372 calls for intergovernmental review of projects to ensure that federally
funded or assisted projects do not inadvertently interfere with state and local plans and
priosities. The Executive Order does not replace public participation, comment, or review
requirements of other federal laws, such as the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA),
but gives the states an additional mechanism to ensure federal agency responsiveness to state
and local concerns.

2008 California Legislation

Under a new state law (SB 375, Steinberg, Chapter 728, 2008 Statutes), MTC and the Association of
Bay Area Governments must develop a regional Sustainable Communities Strategy to integrate
planning for growth and housing with long-range transportation investments, including goals for
reducing greenhouse gas emissions for cars and light trucks. The law also calls for a separate Public
Participation Plan for development of the Sustainable Communities Strategy and the regional
transportation plan. In the Bay Area, MTC and ABAG ate working together with the Bay Area Air
Quality Management District and the Bay Conservation and Development Commission to develop
the region’s response to this new law. Appendix A of this plan includes a Public Participation Plan

for the Sustainable Communities Strategy and the regional transportation plan.

Other Requirements

A number of other federal and state laws call on MTC to involve and notify the public in its
decisions. MTC complies with all other public notification requirements of the state’s Ralph M.
Brown Act, the California Public Records Act, the California Environmental Quality Act, as well as
the public participation mandates of the federal Americans with Disabilities Act, those contained in
the state’s Katz-Kopp-Baker-Campbell Transportation Blueprint for the Twenty-First Century
(Government Code Section 65080), and other applicable state and federal laws.

Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 5
Final Draft Public Pasticipation Plan

99



C.  Development of the Public Participation Plan

MTC’s Public Participation Plan was first adopted in September 2007, and updated in 2010. The
2010 update reflects a re-structuring of MTC’s advisory committees into a single, broad based Policy
Advisory Council; the addition of a Public Participation Plan for the Sustainable Communities
Strategy and regional transportation plan; plus other minor edits.

In drafting the 2007 Public Participation Plan, MTC staff consulted with a wide range of interested
parties as required by the SAFETEA legislation. The comments and guidance resulting from the
public outreach process undertaken as part of the 2007 Public Participation Plan remain relevant and
continue to inform the principles and procedures contained in this revised 2010 Plan. As part of the
update, MTC will consult with its Policy Advisory Council, as well as an advisory group to the
development of the SCS. Focus groups held with limited English proficient persons also will serve

to inform procedures contained in this plan.

Details of the 2007 outreach efforts — which included six focus groups with various stakeholders; a
web survey; and outreach to local, state and federal environmental resource agencies plus Native

American tribal governments — are described in Appendix B and C.

D. What We Heard From the Public

This section includes a summary of comments received on the Draft July 2010 update to the Public

Participation Plan. In reviewing the comments, several themes emerged:

Involve More Bay Area Residents — A number of those submitting comments noted how important it is to
broaden outreach and public participation to include a wider range of participants, including those who
have not traditionally been involved. Citing MTC’s work with the Association of Bay Area Governments
on a new Sustainable Communities Strategy, many observed how important it is to cover new ground and
involve more people, including more outreach to local governments and local elected officials, schools,

public health officers, low-income communities, and communities of color.

Simplify and Demystify — Citing the complex nature of transportation and land-use planning, many who
commented cited the importance of communicating in plain language and of crafting presentations so
that a given community or audience can understand why it is important to participate. A number of
comments called for more discipline at MTC to avoid or minimize use of complex, technical terms and

planning jargon, as well as provide better explanations of how the technical work is conducted.

Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 6
Final Draft Public Participation Plan

100



Build Relationships in Under-served Communities — Many noted the importance of taking the time to work
over the long term in low-income communities and communities of color in order to build capacity and
allow for more effective participation. Several comments from MTC’s Policy Advisory Council and other
advisors asked for “tool kits” so that individuals and organizations could work in concert with MTC and

ABAG on public outreach on the Sustainable Communities Strategy.

Make the Process More Transparent— Another key comment was the need to identify key planning and
decision milestones so that the public can understand when they should get involved in the process
and provide input on key decisions. A number of comments stressed the need to circle back to
participants and communicate how comments were considered in shaping final actions. Specific to
the Regional Transportation Plan and the Sustainable Communities Strategy, many asked that more

specifics about process and schedule be included in the final plan.

More Electronic Access — A number of people who commented asked for expanded access to
information via the web, and encouraged MTC to use social media to enable interactive online

dialogue.

Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 7
Final Draft Public Participation Plan

101



II.  Continuing Public Engagement

MTC is committed to an active public involvement process that provides comprehensive

information, timely public notice and full public access to key decisions.

Access to MTC’s Decisionmakers

Elected Officials Stakeholders Public Involvement

[ ] ]
Commiission
BATA MTC SAFE

BayAms  Metropolban Soniga

T Tonmportatn Authorky
Authorky Cormnbsion for Fresusys
and Expressogys

Ad Hoc Bay Area Policy Advisory
Committies Partnership Council
« Transit Sustainablility * Federal and State Agencies  « Environment

Project Steering ¢ Regional Agendes = Equity

Committes « Transit Operators « Economy
* Regional Advisory » Congestion Management

Waorking Group Agendies

for Sustainable

Communities Strategy (SCS) * Alrports/Seaports
* SCS Bxecutive Working Group * C!tvIC;untv Public Works
Agencles

MTC provides the public with myriad opportunities for continuing involvement in the work of the

agency, through the following methods:

MTC’s Policy Advisory Council

As part of the evaluation of MTC’s public participation program for the Transportation 2035 Plan,
MTC looked at the effectiveness of three existing citizen advisory committees. After months of
discussion and dialogue, the Commission approved a reorganization of its three separate advisory
committees — the Elderly and Disabled Advisory Committee, the Minority Citizens Advisory
Committee and the multi-interest MTC Advisory Council — into a single 27-member advisory panel
reflecting the “Three E’s” of the Economy, The Environment and Social Equity. (Mote information
on the review of the advisory committee structure can be found in a report on MTC’s website:

http://apps.mtc.ca.gov/meeting_packet_documents/ agenda_1346/3_AdvCommEvalAtt-2.pdf.)

Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 8
Final Draft Public Participation Plan

102



The Policy Advisory Council — which met for the first time in March 2010 — was created to bring
a range of interests to a single table to offer the Commission policy advice. The Council will be
consulted during the development of MTC policies and strategies, and their recommendations on
various issues will be reported directly to the Commission. The Council may pursue its own
policy/program discussions and forward independent ideas to the Commission for consideration.
The Council will address Commissioners directly at MTC committee and Commission meetings.
MTC Resolution No. 3516 spells out the role and responsibilities of the Policy Advisory Council,

including ways to encourage more dialogue between Commissioners and the Council.

All Policy Advisory Council meetings are audiocast and archived on MTC’s website. Meetings are
open to the public. In fact, tracking the agenda and discussions of MTC’s Policy Advisory Council is
one of the best ways for interested persons to engage eatly in the major policy and fiscal issues
confronting MTC. Agendas are posted on MTC’s website and persons can request to be placed on
the mailing list.

@' Get Involved: Serve on MTC’s Policy Advisory Council
A major recruitment is done periodically to fill advisory council seats.
However, MTC may open recruitment té fill interim vacancies. Check MTC’s
website for current opportunities (www.mtc.ca.gov/get_involved/) or call
MTC’s Public Information Office at 510.817.5757.

Bay Area Partnership

The Bay Area Partnership collaboratively assists the Commission in fashioning consensus among
federal, state, regional, and local transportation agency partners regarding the transportation
investment policies to be adopted and implemented by the Commission. MTC Resekition3509
Resolution No. 3985 specifies the membership and role of the Partnership Board in advising MTC.
Membership includes the chief staff from all public agencies representing:

transit operators

transportation facilities

congestion management agencies

public works agencies

airports and seaports

regional, state and federal transportation, environmental, and land use agencies

0O O 0O 0O 0o

Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 9
Final Draft Public Participation Plan

103



The Partnership Board has one primaty subcommittee — the Partnership Technical Advisory
Committee (PTAC) — that delves into the more technical aspects of transportation investment
policy issues prior to their presentation and discussion among Partnership Board members. Agendas
and meeting materials for PTAC are available on MTC’s website or by calling MTC’s public

information office.

In addition to the panels listed above, MTC facilitates policy and technical discussions through

numerous ad hoc working groups, and serves on other multi-agency advisory committees.

Working with Neighboring Regions

MTC and its counterpart agencies in adjacent regions often coordinate with each other to identify
transportation programs and projects of mutual interest for key travel corridors traversing both
regions. While no formal agreements ate in place, MTC works closely with the neighboring regions
on a number of planning initiatives with the Sacramento, San Joaquin, Stanislaus, Santa Cruz and
Monterey regions, among others. When updating long-range plans and Transportation Improvement
Programs, the regions do keep each other informed and solicit input on planning and programming
activities. For air quality planning purposes, MTC has an agreement with the Sacramento Area
Council of Governments to detail agency responsibilities relating to transportation conformity and
to coordinate the funding of certain projects receiving federal air quality funding in eastern Solano

County, which is within the Bay Area but falls partly in the Yolo-Sacramento air basin.

Commission and Committee Meetings

MTC encourages interested persons to attend MTC Commission and standing committee meetings to
express their views. Items on the Commission agenda usually come in the form of recommendations
from MTC’s standing committees. Much of the detailed work of MTC is done at the committee level,
and the Commission encourages the public to participate at this stage, either in person or by tracking
developments via the web. At times it is necessary to impose a time limit on public comments in order

to allow all attendees the opportunity to speak.

Current MTC standing committees are shown below:

Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 10
Final Draft Public Participation Plan

104



MTC Standing Committee Structure & Responsibilities

Legislation Administration Planning Programming & Operations
Committee Committee Committee Allocations Committee
Committee
Annual MTC Oversight of Regional Annual Fund Transportation
Legislative Program Agency Budget and Transportation Plan Estimate System
Agency Work Management and
Positions on Program Other Regional Fund Allocations Operational
Legislation & Plans (airports, Activities
Regulations Agency Financial seaports) State Transportation
Reports/Audits Improvement Contracts Related
Public Participation State and Federal Program (STIP) to System
Contracts Air Quality Plans Management and
Policy Advisory Federal Operations
Council Commission Corridor Planning Transportation
Procedures Studies Improvement Service Authority
Program (TIP) for Freeways and
Staff Salaries and Transportation and Expressways
Benefits Land Use Initiatives (SAFE)

(m>

Joseph P. Bort MetroCenter

Lawrence D. Dahms Auditorium

Get Involved: Accessible Meetings
All Commission public meetings, workshops, forums, etc. are held in locations accessible
to persons with disabilities. Monthly meetings of the Commission, and those of MTC
standing committees and advisory committees, usually take place at MTC’s offices:

101 Eighth Street (across from the Lake Merritt BART Station)
Oakland, CA 94607

Assistive listening devices or other auxiliary aids are available upon request. Sign-language
interpreters, readers for persons with visual impairments, or language translators will be
provided if requested through MTC Public Information (510.817.5757) at least three
working days (72 hours) prior to the meeting (five or more days’ notice is preferred).

Metropolitan Transportation Commission
Final Draft Public Participation Plan

105

Page 11




Access to MTC Meetings

Web Access to MTC Meetings If You Have Limited or No
[www.mtc.ca.gov] Web Access
Meeting WHAT ... WHEN ... HOW LONG...
Materials is available on the is it posted on the is it available on the
web? web? web?
Meeting ¢ Commission One week prior to 6 months Mailed to interested public or
Agendas meemgs meeting” available at meeting
4 Standing
committees
4 Advisory
committees
Meeting Same as above Same as above 6 months Same as above
Packets
Audiocast of | ¢#Commission Listen to meeting 6 months Meeting minutes will be
Meetings meetings live mailed to interested public;
4Standing copies of electronic recordings
committees are available’
#Partnership Board
meetings
4 Policy Advisory
Council meetings
Monthly Schedule of all Posted and updated | Posted and updated | Mailed to interested public or
Tentative Commission and continuously continuously available at MTC”
Meeting advisory committee
Schedule meetings

" Contact the MTC Library or the Public Information Office to request meeting materials.
" Final agendas are posted 72 business hours in advance of the meeting time in the MTC Library.

Database Keeps Interested Persons in the Loop

MTC maintains a master database of interested persons, public agency staff, and stakeholders. The

database, which includes mailing information, e-mail addresses and other contact information, is

organized around issues or events. This allows MTC to send targeted mailings to keep the public

updated on the specific issues they are interested in, including information on how public

meetings/participation have contributed to its key decisions and actions.

@' Get Involved: Sign Up for MTC’s Database
Signing up to receive mailings or periodic email concerning major MTC
initiatives is 2 good way stay informed. Any member of the public may
request to be added to MTC’s contact database by calling MTC’s Public
Information Office at 510.817.5757 or e-mailing info@mtc.ca.gov.

Metropolitan Transportation Commission

Final Draft Public Participation Plan

106

Page 12




Public Meetings, Workshops and Forums

Public meetings on specific issues are held as needed. If statutorily required, formal public hearings
are conducted, and notice of these public hearings is placed in the legal section of numerous
newspapers in the MTC region, including newspapers circulated in minority communities of the

Bay Area. Materials Propesals (in the form of compact discs or printed documents) to be considered
at MTC public hearings are mailed to major libraries throughout the MTC region prior to public
hearings, and are made available to interested persons upon request. In addition, materials are placed
on file in the MTC Library. The MTC Public Information Office can provide the names and

addresses of libraries that received the public hearing documents.

MTC also conducts workshops, community forums, conferences and other events to keep the
public informed and involved in vatious high-profile transportation projects and plans, and to elicit
feedback from the public and MTC’s partners. MTC holds meetings throughout the nine-county
San Francisco Bay Area to solicit comments on major plans and programs, such as the long-range
Regional Transportation Plan. Meetings are located and scheduled to maximize public participation

(including evening meetings).

For major initiatives and events, MTC typically provides notice through posting information on

MTC’s website, and, if appropriate, through mailed notices, e-mail notices, and news releases.

@ Get Involved: Alternative Language Translations
If language is a barrier to your participation in meetings, MTC can arrange for
an interpreter or translate meeting materials. Sign-language interpreters and
readers for persons with visual impairments are also available. Please call MTC
Public Information (510.817.5757) at least three working days (72 hours) prior
to the meeting (five or more days’ notice is preferred).

MTC’s Library: Information for the Asking

The MTC Library, located in the Joseph P. Bort MetroCenter (the building that houses MTC
offices) at 101 Eighth Street in Oakland, is open to the public week days. Check the web site or call
MTC Public Information (510.817.5757) for exact hours. This special library has an extensive
collection of reports, books, and magazines, covering transportation planning, demographics,
economic analysis, public policy issues and regional planning in the San Francisco Bay Area. It is
designed to meet the information needs of government agencies, researchers, students, the media
and anyone else who is interested in transportation, regional planning and related fields. Special

features include:

Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 13
Final Draft Public Participation Plan

107



» Extensive reference assistance by telephone, e-mail, fax and in-person

¢ Two public access Internet terminals

e Newspaper and magazine reading areas

o Coin-operated copier

e Open stacks
The commitment to using technology to extend public outreach continues with MTC Library staff
posting on MTC’s web site the headlines of transportation and related stories from Bay Area daily
newspapers as well as key statewide and national journals and other such publications. Readers can
view the headlines each morning on MTC’s website or subscribe to the service via e-mail or by RSS

feed (a method of electronic notification of web updates).

The library makes public resource materials available for download by posting on the MTC website:
http:/ /www.mtc.ca.gov/library/pub.php and including URLs whenever available for all materials in
our publicly available catalog http://slk060.liberty3.net/mtc/opac.htm.

@' Get Involved: The Facts at Your Fingertips
MTC’s publications listed on MTC’s web site can be ordered by phone
(510.817.5836), e-mail (library@mitc.ca.gov) or by completing an online form.
The entire Library collection can be searched using the online catalog. A wide
range of MTC publications are available for downloading.

@' Get Involved: Keep on Top of Transportation News

MTC’s Library compiles an electronic news summary with links to
transportation-related articles appearing in major Bay Area and national news
outlets. To subseribe, visit MTC’s web site:
www.mtc.ca.gov/news/headlines.htm

Publications
The Public Information Office publishes a vatiety of materials to inform the public about MTC’s

work, issues relating to Bay Area transportation and guides for transit users. They include:

® MTC’s print and electronic newsletter, Transactions, offering news about MTC’s activities, along
with general transportation news for the nine-county San Francisco Bay Area. Between 13,000

and 15,000 copies are circulated free of charge to interested persons, the news media, public

Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 14
Final Draft Public Participation Plan

108



officials, legislators, transit staff, national transportation groups, environmental groups, business
groups and libraries.

® The ABC’s of MTC, serving as a primer on MTC’s roles and responsibilities for the region’s
interested persons and local policy-makers, and providing basic information on the Bay Area’s
transportation network.

®  MTC’s Annual Report, providing information about MTC allocations and expenditures.

MTC also publishes guides for transit riders and other materials to help Bay Area residents learn
more about transportation. These publications include working papers, technical memoranda,
reports based on data from the U.S. Census and other sources that describe regional travel
characteristics and travel forecasts. They are available to the public through the MTC Library,
located at MTC offices. Most can be found on MTC’s web site. A charge may be levied to recover

the cost of producing and (if applicable) mailing the publication.

@ Get Involved: Accessible Documents

MTC provides accurate, high-quality and culturally sensitive translations to
more actively involve non-English speakers_and disabled communities in its
public comment process when appropriate. A request for language
interpreters at a meeting must be requested at least three working days (72
hours) prior to‘the meeting (five or more days’ notice is preferred).

@' Get Involved: DataMart Offers a Wealth of
Transportation Information

Interested persons can access a wealth of data on Bay Area travel and
commute patterns online at: Www.mtc.ca.gov/maps_and_data/
Included is access to maps, census data, transit operator statistics,
background on travel models, and research papers.

Website: www.mtc.ca.gov
MTC’s website — www.mtc.ca.gov — is targeted to audiences ranging from transit riders seeking

bus schedules to transportation professionals, elected officials and news media seeking information

on particular programs, projects and public meetings.

Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 15
Final Draft Public Participation Plan

109



Updated daily, the site provides information about MTC’s projects and programs, the agency’s
structure and governin’g body and upcoming public meetings and workshops. It contains the names,
e-mail addresses and phone numbers for staff and Commission members; all of MTC’s current
planning documents, publications located in the MTC Library, data from the U.S. Census as well as
detailed facts about the region’s travel patterns. It also includes important links to partner
government agencies as well as to other sites such as the Bay Area’s 511.org for traveler information

and the FasTrak®.org site for users of the region’s automated toll system.

@' Get Involved: Track MTC Via Web

Log onto MTC’s website — WWW.mtc.ca.gov — for meeting agendas
and packets. Live and archived audiocasts of meetings make it possible for
interested parties to “tune in” at their convenience to all Commission and
standing committee meetings.

Media Outlets Help Engage Mote Persons

MTC regularly issues news releases about Commission programs and actions of interest to the
public. These include announcements of public workshops and hearings, recruitment for positions
on MTC’s advisory committees, and employment opportunities through MTC’s high school and
college internship programs. News releases are sent to regional, state and national media —
including minority print and broadcast outlets — and many are translated into Spanish, Chinese and
other languages. In addition to news releases, MTC staff and Commissioners also host press events
and news conferences (often in conjunction with other transportation agencies), visit newspaper
editorial boards, and conduct briefings with Bay Area reporters and editors to discuss key initiatives
such as the Regional Transportation Plan and MTC’s transportation and land-use policy. These
briefings provide an opportunity for both print and broadcast journalists to learn about MTC
programs that may not immediately produce traditional hard news stories, thus providing

background context for subsequent articles or radio/TV pieces.

Staff Dedicated to Assistance and Outreach
In addition to the components of MTC’s public outreach program detailed above, MTC’s
commitment to public participation includes staff dedicated to involving the public in MTC’s work.

Public Information staff provides the following materials and services:

Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 16
Final Draft Public Participation Plan

110



® Public Information staff can make available to the public any item on the MTC website (including
meeting notices, agendas, and materials that accompany agenda items for meetings of the
Commission and its committees and advisory panels) if a person does not have Internet access.

® Public Information staff works with interested organizations to arrange for MTC staff and
commissioners to make presentations to community groups.

® MTC staff participates in region-wide community and special events, especially events in
targeted ethnic and under-represented communities.

* Public Information staff will respond by telephone (510.817.5757), U.S. mail (101 Eighth Street,
Oakland, CA 94607) or e-mail (info@mtc.ca.gov) from the public and the media about MTC.

Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 17
Final Draft Public Participation Plan

11



III.  Public Participation Techmques

MTC selects from an array of options to develop and execute specific public participation programs
to inform its major decisions, such as for corridor studies, new funding policies or updates to the

Regional Transportation Plan.

For example, public involvement elements for the Regional Transportation Plan might include
working with community-based organizations to cosponsor meetings, targeted news releases, 2
regional summit, a telephone and web survey, workshops with interactive exercises and facilitated
discussions, and a companion web site that serves as a ready reference point to track key milestones

in the overall development of the plan.

A menu of participation techniques follows, and includes some tried-and-true approaches as well as

new suggestions we heard from the public while developing this plan.

Public Meetings/Workshops
® Offer customized presentations to existing groups and organizations
® .Co-host workshops with community groups, business associations, etc.
* Contract with community-based organizations in low-income and minority communities for
targeted outreach
* Sponsor a forum or summit with partner agencies, with the media or other community organizations
¢ Encourage opportunities for public input directly to policy board members

Techniques for Public Meetings/Workshops
e Open Houses
Facilitated discussions
Question-and-Answer sessions with planners and policy board members
Break-out sessions for smaller group discussions on multiple topics
Interactive exercises
Customized presentations
Vary time of day for workshops (day/evening)
Conduct meeting entirely in alternative language (Spanish, Chinese, for example)

P o 9 »

Visualization Techniques
e Maps
®  Charts, illustrations, photographs

Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 18
Final Draft Public Participation Plan

112



e Table-top displays and models

® Web content and interactive games
¢ Electronic voting

e PowerPoint slide shows

Polls/Surveys
® For major planning efforts (such as the Regional Transportation Plan and Sustainable
Communities Strategy), conduct statistically valid telephone polls in English as well as in
Spanish and Cantonese
e Electronic surveys via web
° Intercept interviews where people congregate, such as at transit hubs
® Printed surveys distributed at meetings, transit hubs, on-board transit vehicles, etc.

Focus Groups
® Participants recruited randomly from telephone polls
® Participants recruited by interest area

Printed Materials
¢ User-friendly documents (including use of executive summaries)
® Outside review of written materials to ensure clear, concise language
e Post cards
® Maps, chatts, photographs, and other visual means of displaying information

Tatgeted Mailings /Flyers
® Work with community-based organizations to distribute flyers
e Mail to targeted database lists
e Distribute “Take-one” flyers to key community organizations
® Place notices on board transit vehicles and transit hubs

Utilize local media

o News Releases

® Invite reporters to news briefings
Meet with editorial staff
Opinion pieces/commentaties

Purchase display ads

Negotiate inserts into local printed media

Visit minority media outlets to encourage use of MTC news releases
Place speakers on Radio/TV talk shows

Public Service Announcements on radio and TV

Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 19
Final Draft Public Participation Plan

113



Develop content for public access/cable television programming
Civic journalism and nonprofit_partnerships

Use of the Internet/Electronic Access to Information

Web site with updated content

¢ Use social media to reach a larger audience

® Audio-cast of past public meetings/workshops

® Electronic duplication of open house/workshop materials

® Interactive web with surveys, comment line

e Use the web to provide interaction among participants

® Access to planning data (such as maps, charts, background on travel models, forecasts, census

data, research reports)

® Provide information in advance of public meeting
Notify Public via

e Blast e-mails

® Notice widely disseminated through new partnerships with community-based and interest

organizations

e Newsletters

® Printed materials

e Electronic access to information

e Tocal Media

® Notices placed on board transit vehicles and at transit hubs
Newsletters

e MTC’s newsletter Transactions

e Commissioner newsletters

® Submit articles for publication in community/corporate newsletters

Techniques for Involving Low Income Communities and Communities of Color
See also MTC’s Plan for Special Language Services to Limited English Proficient Populations, which can be
found in English, Spanish and Chinese on MTC’s website at www.mtc.ca.gov/get_involved/lep.htm.

Involve MTC’s Policy Advisory Council
Grants to community-based organizations to tailor meetings, customize presentation materials,

provide incentives and support services to and remove barriers to participation (e.g., provide

child care and refreshments)

“Take One” flyers on transit vehicles and transit hubs
Outreach in the community (flea markets, churches, health centers, etc.)

Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 20
Final Draft Public Participation Plan

114



® Personal interviews or use of audio recording devices to obtain oral comments

® Translate materials; have translators available at meetings as requested

¢ Include information on meeting notices on how to request translation assistance

® Robust use of “visualization” techniques, including maps and graphics to illustrate trends,
choices being debated, etc.

® Use of community and minority media outlets to announce participation opportunities

Techniques for Repotting on Impact of Public Comments
* Summarize key themes of public comments in staff reports to MTC standing committees
¢ Direct mail and email to participants from meetings, surveys, etc. to report final outcomes
e Newsletter articles
e Updated and interactive web content

Techniques for Involving Limited-English Proficient Populations

e Personal interviews or use of audio recording devices to obtain oral comments

® Translated documents and web content on key initiatives

¢  On-call translators for meetings

® Translated news releases and outreach to alternative language media, such as radio
television, newspapers and social media.

® Include information on meeting notices on how to request translation assistance

® Robust use of “visualization” techniques, including maps and graphics to illustrate trends,
choices being debated, etc.

® Train staff to be alert to and anticipate the need of low-literacy participants in meetings,
workshops, and the like

Other Outreach
¢ Information/comment tables or booths at community events and public gathering spaces

e Comment Cards/Take-One Cards on-board transit vehicles

Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 21
Final Draft Public Participation Plan

115



IV.  Public Participation Procedures for the Regional Transportation Plan (RTP)
and the Transportation Improvement Program (TIP)

There are two key transportation initiatives of MTC'’s that are specially called out in federal law as
needing early and continuing opportunities for public participation — development of the Regional

Transportation Plan and the Transportation Improvement Program.

Public Participation Opportunities in the RTP and TIP

Because of its comprehensive, long-term vision, the RTP provides the eatliest and the best
opportunity for interested persons and public agencies to influence MTC’s policy and investment
priorities for Bay Atrea transportation. It is at this earlier RTP stage where investment priorities and
major planning-level project design concepts are established, and broad, regional impacts of
transportation on the environment are addressed. Thus, there is comparatively less value for public to
participation in the TIP, which is a programming document that identifies funding for only those
programs and projects that are already included in the RTP. A mid-point between the RTP and TIP
is the project-selection process. Interested residents can become versed in how a transportation
project moves from an idea to implementation — including local project review, details for how
projects are included in MTC’s RTP, MTC’s Project Selection Process, the TIP and environmental
review/ construction phases — in a publication titled “A Guide to the San Francisco Bay Area’s
Transportation Improvement Program, or TIP.” This document is available on MTC’s web site
(www.mtc.ca.gov/funding/tip/DRAFT_2011/Guide_to_TIP_8-1 0.pdf) and from the MTC Library.

Another easy way to engage on transportation policies and investment is to request to be added to

MTC’s RTP database (see below for instructions).

@' Get Involved: Sign Up for MTC’s RTP. Database at

www.OneBayArea.org

One of the ways to have the most impact on MTC’s policy and investment
decision is to participate in an update of the regional transportation plan
(RTP). Contact MTC’s Public Information Office online at
www.OneBayArea.org or at info@mtc.ca.gov, or call at 510.817.5757, and
ask to be included in MTC’s database.

Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 22
Final Draft Public Participation Plan

116



Regulatory and Planning Context for Environmental Justice
Under 1998 guidance from the Federal Highway Administration and the Federal Transit
Administration on environmental justice, metropolitan planning organizations must, as part of the

planning process:

® Enhance analytical capabilities to ensure that the long-range transportation plan and
transportation improvement program comply with Title VI.

® Identify residential, employment and transportation patterns of low-income and minority
populations, identify and address needs, and assure that benefits and burdens of
transportation investments are fairly distributed.

® Improve public involvement processes to eliminate participation battiers and engage

minority and low-income populations in transportation decisions.

MTC carries out each of these directives by (a) continually gathering and analyzing regional
demographic and travel data and refining its analytical capabilities; (b) supporting locally based needs
assessments in low-income communities and communities of color through the Community-based
Transportation Planning program, funding projects targeting low-income communities through the
Lifeline Transportation Program, and conducting an equity analysis of each long-range plan RTP;

(c) prepating an investment analysis with a focus on low-income communities and communities of
color for the 2011 and future TIPs; (d) examining and refining the agency’s public involvement

process to ensure full and fair participation in decision-making.

Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 23
Final Draft Public Participation Plan

17



A.  Regional Transportation Plan

The long-range Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) prioritizes and guides all Bay Area
transportation development over 25 years. The RTP is the comprehensive blueprint for
transportation investment (transit, highway, local roads, bicycle and pedestrian projects), and
establishes the financial foundation for how the region invests in its surface transportation system by
identifying how much money is available to address critical transportation needs and setting the
policy on how projected revenues are to be spent. The RTP is updated at least once every four years
to reflect reaffirmed or new planning priorities and changing projections of growth and travel

demand based on a reasonable forecast of future revenues available to the region.

Under a new state law (SB 375, Steinberg, Chapter 728, 2008 Statutes), the RTP must include a
regional Sustainable Communities Strategy for achieving a regional target for reducing greenhouse
gases for cars and light trucks and identify specific areas in the nine-county Bay Area to
accommodate all the region’s projected population growth, including all income groups, for at least
the next 25 years. The legislation requires MTC and the Association of Bay Area Governments
(ABAG,) to jointly develop the regional Sustainable Communities Strategy to integrate planning for
growth and housing with long-range transportation investments. In the Bay Area, MTC and ABAG
are joined by the Bay Area Air Quality Management District and the Bay Conservation and
Development Commission to develop an SCS that also incorporates shoreline planning and air

quality objectives.

The law also calls for a separate Public Participation Plan for development of the Sustainable
Communities Strategy and the regional transportation plan. Appendix A describes a Public
Participation Plan for the Sustainable Communities Strategy and Regional Transportation Plan.

MTC prepares several technical companion documents for RTP updates. These include a program-
level Environmental Impact Report per California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) guidelines,
and transportation air quality conformity analyses (to ensure clean air mandates are met) per federal
Clean Air Act requirements. Certain revisions to the RTP may warrant a revision or update to these
technical documents. The process for preparing and conducting interagency consultation on the

conformity analysis is described in MTC Resolution No. 3757.

MTC also prepares an Equity Analysis on RTP updates to determine whether minority and low-
income communities in the Bay Area share equitably in the benefits of the regional transportation

plan without bearing a disproportionate share of the burdens. As an assessment of the region’s long-

Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 24
Fina] Draft Public Participation Plan

118



range transportation investment strategy, this analysis is conducted at a regional, program-level scale.

This assessment of the long-range plan is intended to satisfy federal requirements under Title VI of

the Civil Rights Act and federal policies and guidance on environmental justice. For each update of
the RTP, MTC will prepare a public participation plan (see below “RTP Update”) that will provide
more information on how the equity analysis will be conducted throughout that update of the RTP.

Updating and Revising the Regional Transportation Plan

A complete update of an existing regional transportation plan is required at least once every four

years. The RTP also may be revised in between major updates under certain circumstances, as

described below in the table and narrative:

RTP Update
This is 2 complete update of the most current long-range regional transportation plan, which

is prepared pursuant to state and federal requirements.

RTP updates include extensive public consultation and participation involving hundreds of
Bay Area residents, public agency officials and stakeholder groups over many months.
MTC’s Policy Advisory Council and many stakeholder advocacy groups play key roles in
providing feedback on the policy and investment strategies contained in the plan. Local and
Tribal governments, transit operators and other federal, state and regional agencies also

actively participate in the development of an RTP update via existing and ad hoc forums.

For each RTP update MTC will prepare a multi-phased public outreach and involvement
program to ensure that all those with a stake in the outcome are actively involved in its
preparation. See Appendix A of this Plan for the Public Participation Plan for the 2013
Sustainable Communities Strategy/ Regional Transportation Plan. An RTP Public
Participation Plan will draw from the public participation techniques listed in Section III of
this plan, as well as set performance benchmarks. MTC will request that county congestion
management agencies (CMAs) involve the public in their process for nominating projects for
inclusion in the RTP, and show how public comments helped inform their

recommendations.

Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 25
Final Draft Public Participation Plan

119



= RTP Amendment
An amendment is a major revision to a long-range RTP, including adding or deleting a
project, major changes in project/project phase costs, initiation dates, and/or design concept
and scope (e.g., changing project locations or the number of through traffic lanes). Changes
to projects that are included in the RTP only for illustrative purposes (such as in the
financially unconstrained “vision” element) do not require an amendment. An amendment
requires public review and comment, demonstration that the project can be completed based
on expected funding, and/or a finding that the change is consistent with federal
transportation conformity mandates. Amendments that require an update to the air quality
conformity analysis will be subject to the conformity and interagency consultation
procedures desctribed in MTC Resolution No. 3757.

8 RTP Administrative Modification
This is 2 minor revision to the RTP for minor changes to project/project phase costs,
funding sources, and/or initiation dates. An administrative modification does #o# require
public review and comment, demonstration that the project can be completed based on
expected funding, nor a finding that the change is consistent with federal transportation
conformity requirements. As with an RTP amendment, changes to projects that are included
in the RTP’s financially unconstrained “vision” element may be changed without going

through this process.

Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 26
Final Draft Public Participation Plan

120



Table 1
Updating and Revising the Regional Transportation Plan (RTP)

Public Participation for an RTP Update

O Prepate a public participation plan to provide early and continuing opportunities to comment.
Review public outreach and involvement program with stakeholders and advisory groups.

@ Implement public outreach and involvement program, which may include:
* Numerous targeted workshops with local governments, partner agencies, stakeholder groups, advisory
groups including MTC’s Policy Advisory Council, and the general public
¢ Opportunities to participate via the web, surveys, etc
* Posting draft documents to the web for public review and comment
® Documents available for viewing at the MTC Library

© Notify the public of opportunities to participate using such methods as local media outlets, mailings and
electronic-mailings to MTC’s database, stakeholder and advocacy groups, web postings.

@ Conduct inter-governmental consultation, as appropriate.

© Conduct interagency consultation as appropriate based on Air Quality Conformity Protocol (MTC
Resolution No. 3757).

O Release Draft Plan for at least a 55-day public review period
* Hold at least three formal public hearings in different parts of the region
e Respond to significant comments
® Extend public review period by 5-days if changes in the final RTP are considered material differences.

©® Adoption by the MTC Commission at a public meeting. Notify the public about the Commission’s action
with electronic mailings to MTC’s database.

Public Participation for an RTP Amendment

O Release proposed amendment for a 30-day public review
* Notify the public of opportunities to participate and comment using such methods as local media
outlets, mailings and electronic mailings to MTC’s database, notice to stakeholder and advocacy groups,
or web postings.
® Post amendment on MTC’s web site for public review
¢ Amendment available for viewing at the MTC Library

@ RTP Amendment reviewed at a public meeting of the MTC Planning Committee.

© Approval at a public meeting by the MTC Commission.

O Post approved RTP Amendment on the MTC website and notify the public about its approval via
electronic mailings to MTC’s database.

Public Participation for RTP Administrative Modification

© No formal public review.

@ Approval by MTC Executive Director.

© RTP Administrative Modification posted on MTC website following approval.

Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 27
Final Draft Public Participation Plan

121




B.  Transportation Improvement Program

The Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) implements the policy and investment priorities
expressed by the public and adopted by MTC in the Regional Transportation Plan (RTP). In this
way, public comments made as part of the RTP are reflected in the TIP as well. The TIP covers a
four- or five-year timeframe, and all projects included in the TIP must be consistent with the RTP,
which covers 25 years. The TIP is a comprehensive listing of Bay Area surface transportation
projects — including transit, highway, local roadway, bicycle and pedestrian investments — that:

e receive federal funds, or are

® subject to a federally required action, or are

® regionally significant, for federal air quality conformity purposes.

The TIP includes a financial plan that demonstrates there are sufficient revenues to ensure that the
funds committed (or “programmed”) to the projects ate available to implement the projects or
project phases. Adoption of the TIP also requires a finding of conformity with federal transportation-

air quality conformity mandates.

Individual project listings may be viewed through MTC’s web-based Fund Management System at
www.mtc.ca.gov/funding/fms_intro.htm. As part of MTC’s commitment to public involvement,
many projects in the TIP are mapped to present the online reader with a visual location of the
project. Individuals without access to the Internet may view a printed copy of the project listings at
the MTC Library at 101 Eighth Street, in Oakland.

In addition to a Transportation Improvement Program that is accessible online

(http:/ /www.mtc.ca.gov/funding/tip/), MTC maintains free, subscription-based e-mail distribution
lists to inform interested individuals, transportation officials and staff of changes and actions related
to the TIP. Through this system, individuals are alerted as needed regarding the development and
approval of a new TIP and updates, such as the notice of a TIP update, or notice and approval of
the TIP amendments. The TIP-INFO Notification tool helps facilitate public review and comments
as well as coordination with transportation and other public agencies. Anyone may sign up for the

setvice at MTC’s website.

To further assist in the public assessment of the TIP, and specifically to analyze the equity
implications of the proposed TIP investments, MTC conducted an investment analysis for the 2011

Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 28
Final Draft Public Participation Plan

122



TIP with a focus on minority and low-income residents for each update of the TIP. Future TIPs will
build and improve upon this analytical framework.

Updating and Revising the TIP

Federal regulations require that the TIP be updated at least once every four years. From time to
time, citcumstances dictate that revisions be made to the TIP between updates. MTC will consider
such revisions when the circumstances prompting the change are compelling, and the change will
not adversely affect transportation-air quality conformity or negatively impact the financial
constraint findings of the TIP. These regulations can be viewed on MTC’s web site at

http:/ /www.mtc.ca.gov/funding/ tip/ tiprevisionprocedures.pdf.

In addition to a TIP update, revisions to the TIP may occur as TIP Amendments, TIP
Administrative Modifications, or TIP Technical Corrections. The critetia for Administrative
Modifications and Amendments are defined in federal regulations, specifically Title 23, CFR part

450.104.

The Federal Highway Administration, Federal Transit Administration, and Caltrans agreed on
Amendment and Administrative Modification Guidelines on November 17, 2008. The guidelines are
posted online at:

www.dot.ca.gov/hq/transprog/federal/fedfiles/res publications/amend mod procedures approval.
pdf www-de pdf. Further

explanation about TIP updates and how the types of revisions are processed are shown in the

narrative and table that follows.

e TIP Update
This is a complete update of the existing TIP, to reflect new or revised transportation
investment strategies and priorities. An update of the TIP is required at least once every four
years. Because all projects included in the TIP are consistent with the RTP, MTC’s extensive
public outreach for development of the RTP is reflected in the TIP as well. The TIP
implements, in the short-term, the financially constrained element of the RTP and is
responsive to comments received during the development of the RTP. TIP updates will be
subject to the conformity and interagency consultation procedures described in MTC
Resolution No. 3757.

= TIP Amendment

Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 29
Final Draft Public Participation Plan

123



This is a revision that involves a major change to the TIP, such as the addition or deletion of
a project; a major change in project cost or project/project phase initiation date; or a major
change in design concept or design scope (e.g., changing project termini or the number of
through traffic lanes). An amendment is a revision that requires public review and comment,
re-demonstration of fiscal constraint, or an air quality conformity determination.
Amendments requiring a transportation-air quality conformity analysis will be subject to the

conformity and interagency consultation procedures described in MTC Resolution No. 3757.

TIP Administrative Modification

An administrative modification includes minor changes to a project’s costs or to the cost of a
project phase; minor changes to funding sources of previously included projects; and minor
changes to the initiation date of a project or project phase. An administrative modification
does not require public review and comment, re-demonstration of fiscal constraint, or

conformity determination.

TIP Technical Cotrection

Technical corrections may be made by MTC staff as necessary. Technical corrections are not
subject to an administrative modification or an amendment, and may include revisions such
as: changes to information and projects that are included only for illustrative purposes;
changes to information outside of the TIP period; changes to information not required to be
included in the TIP per federal regulations; or changes to correct simple errors or omissions
including data entry errors. These technical corrections cannot significantly impact the cost,
scope, ot schedule within the TIP period, nor will they be subject to a public review and

comment process, re-demonstration of fiscal constraint, or a conformity determination.

Table 2
Public Participation for
Updating and Revising the Transportation Improvement Program (TIP)

TIP Update

© Notify public of opportunities to participate via U.S. mail; use appropriate lists within MTC’s database,
including list of Regional Transportation Plan participants
Also notify the public using such methods as local media outlets; electronic-mailings to stakeholder and
advocacy groups; the TIP-INFO Notification (e-mail); or via an electronic subscription system that is
open for anyone to sign up to be kept informed about the TIP.

Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 30
Final Draft Public Participation Plan

124




® Notify Bay Area Partnership technical committees or working groups
Conduct Intergovernmental consultation, as appropriate.

© Release Draft TIP for 30-day public review and comment period
*  Draft TIP available for viewing in MTC Library; and mailed to major libraries throughout the Bay
Area
®  Posted on MTC web site for public review and comment

Extend public review period by 5-days if final TIP differs significantly from draft TIP and the changes are
considered material differences.

© Respond to significant comments; MTC’s response compiled into an appendix in the final TIP.

© Review by an MTC standin committee, typically the Programming & Allocations Committee
y 4 typically g g
(a public meeting); referral to Commission.

©® Adoption by Commission at a public meeting.
Approval by Caltrans.
Approval by Federal Highway and Federal Transit Administrations (FHWA /FTA).

@ Notify the public about the Commission’s action with electronic mailings, including via an electronic
subscription system that is open for anyone to sign up to be kept informed about the TIP.

TIP Amendment

@ Notify public via TIP-INFO Notification (e-mail) or other electronic notification methods.

O Notify Bay Area Partnership technical committees or working groups
Auvailable for viewing in MTC Library
Posted on MTC web site for public review

©
® Amendments deleting or adding a project or changing an existing project that is subject to a new air
quality conformity analysis:
O  30-day public review and comment period, with review by an MTC
standing committee at a public meeting; and
o0 Approval by the full Commission at a public meeting.

* Amendments deleting or adding a project that is #o# subject to an air quality conformity analysis (such
as a roadway rehabilitation):
o Review and approval by an MTC standing committee or the full
Commission at a public meeting.

® Anamendment changing an existing project that is not subject to an air quality conformity analysis, or
changing an existing grouped project listing (such as the highway bridge program), or bringing a
previously listed project or phase back into the TIP for financial purposes; or changing TIP funding
revenues:
o __Approval by the MTC Executive Director or designee, following 5-day

Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 31
Final Draft Public Participation Plan

125




notice on MTC’s website, ot
0 Review and approval by an MTC standing committee or the full
Commission at a public meeting.

© Approval by Caltrans
Approval by FHWA/FTA

Notify public via TIP-INFO Notification or via an electronic subscription system open to anyone who
requests to be kept informed about the TIP.

TIP Administrative Modification

© No public review.

@ Approval by MTC Executive Director or designee by delegated authority (authority is delegated by the

Federal Highway Administration or Federal Transit Administration), or Caltrans

© After approval, notify Bay Area Partnership technical committees ot working groups.

O After approval:
® postin MTC Library
® post on MTC web site

® notify public via TIP-INFO Notification or via an electronic subscription system open to anyone who
requests to be kept informed about the TIP.

TIP Technical Cotrection

© No public review.

@ Technical corrections by staff.

© No approval required.

Federal Transit Administration Program of Projects Public Participation Requirements
Federal transit law and joint Federal Highway Administration (FHWA)/Federal Transit
Administration (FTA) planning regulations governing the metropolitan planning process require a
locality to include the public and solicit comment when the locality develops its metropolitan long-
range transportation plan and its metropolitan TIP. FTA has determined that when a recipient
follows the procedures of the public involvement process outlined in the FHWA /FTA planning
regulations, the recipient satisfies the public participation requirements associated with development
of the Program of Projects (POP) that recipients of Section 5307 funds must meet. This Public
Participation Plan follows the procedures for public involvement associated with TP development
and therefore satisfies public participation requirements for the POP. All public notices of public
involvement activities and times established for public review and comment on the TIP will state

that they satisfy the POP requirements of the Section 5307 Program.

Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 32
Final Draft Public Participation Plan

126




Annual Listing of Obligated Projects

By federal requirement, MTC publishes at the end of each calendar year an annual listing of obligated
projects, which is a record of project delivery for the previous year. The listing also is intended to
increase the awareness of government spending on transportation projects to the public. Copies of this
annual listing may be obtained from MTC’s web site: http:// www.mtc.ca.gov/ funding/delivery/ or by
calling MTC’s Library at 510.817.5836.

Congestion Management Process

Under Federal SAFETEA regulations, MTC is required to prepare a congestion management
process (CMP) for the Bay Area that includes strategies for managing travel demand, traffic
operational improvements, public transportation improvements, and the like. MTC’s Planning
Committee at 2 public meeting adopts a CMP approximately every two years, with the results of this
technical evaluation used to inform MTC decisions on program and investment priorities, including the
Regional Transportation Plan. Those interested in this exercise may obtain copies of the relevant

memoranda via MTC’s web site, or by requesting to be added to the Planning Committee’s mailing list.

Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 33
Final Draft Public Participation Plan

127



ATTACHMENT 4
TAC Agenda ltem 9
March 3, 2011

NCTPA Project Selection Criteria
For TAC review March 3, 2011

1. Project fulfills an identified need and will have a broad public support 0-30 Points
» Description of Proposed Project. (Current condition and proposed improvement).
» Project Justification (Reasons for proposed project and problem
project addresses).

2. Project is consistent with regional/local plans.

e Project is contained in a plan/study. 5 points
e Project s listed in Capital Facility Plan. 5 points
e Project supports the Regional/State Transportation Plan 5 points

3. Project has regional/local support.
e Letters of Support (Agencies/Organization) 0-8 points
e Financially Involvement of Businesses/Other Agencies 0-7 points

4. Project is ready to proceed/implement.

e Right of Way completed or not needed 0-5 points
e Design is completed 0-5 points
e Environmental permits approved 0-5 points

5. Multi-modal (Maximum 5 Points)

e Bicycle 3 points
o Pedestrian 3 points
e Transit 3 points
‘e Auto 2 points
e Other Mode: 2 points
6. Appropriateness/Match of Project to Funding Source 0-4 points
7. Leverage of Local Match
e Local match of 20% 2 points
e Local match of 25% 4 points
e Local match of 30% 6 points
e Local match of 35% 8 points
e Local match of 40% or more 10 points

8. Adjoining Highway System (Maximum 5 Points)

e Arterial/Interstate 0-5 points
e Coliector 0-3 points
¢ Eligible off System 0-2 points

9. Project is time sensitive? 1-5 points

128



ATTACHMENT 5
TAC Agenda ltem 9

NVI1d SE0Z NOILVLINOdSNYNL

March 3, 2011

(Suswanosdu; Buisso.d jies pue abeusesp ‘Guiuapim

L0 $ 00 $ 10 $ Peo. S3pNJIUL) sanuaAe ALJUNOJ suip pue ouejos 1e sjeudis Jyjsery ayy aaosduy P6€0EZ
02 $ 00 $ voz $ BUSI3H IS 0] BueT uosafie) WoJj 67 a3noy uo auey WIN-3IppIus 1ONIISUOD  €6E£0E2
02 $ 00 $ v02 $ PEOY puels) u3al9 0} %23.] uebey Woiy peoy UlA3Q pusixy 26£0£2
vo $ 00 $ v0 $ UOHI35I3)UI 62 BIN0Y/PROISSOIY) BJIIAYED 3y} JO Aages ayy anosdwy  gegoce
€0 $ 00 § S0 $ UOKJ3sI9)UL |1e4). OPRIBA|IS/SSOLT BIIAJUNOA 33 jo AJajes ayy anosdwl - 68EQE?
Vo $ 00 $ v0 $ . UOKIISIBIU |1e) OPRISANS/IIOUY HeO B} jo Ajages ayy anoudw 88€0€¢
co_to&m.uﬂ_ el OpRIBANIS/NIed 193Q
22 $¢ 0'0 $ 22 $ 3y3 1e Aajes anoadws 0 Sjeubis Jjesy saoadwi 10 Jnogepunod e 1anajsuo) 18€0E2
€1 $ 00 $ €71 $ BU3I3H "IS Ul 193.)S ujew Buoje uogezieudss anoadwy  18£0£?
€1 $ 00 $ €1 $ 199415 UIBW pue 13215 Swepy uaam}aq 3)nos Woniy ay) daoudwy  62€0£2
. s> quno Buipnpuy
I $ 00 $ 21 $ 'BUBAH "}S umojuMOp Uy s3dafosd Juawiaaosdull Ajpgissanae Juawaduy 8LE£0€2
: BUBIBH IS Ut
9°0 $ 0°0 $ 9°0 $ 3NULAY XeQ je %3a1) nyding Jano bussosd 23124019 pue uewysapad najsuo) L1€0E2
S0 $ 00 $ S0 $ BUAH 1S Ui swi3 jo _w,.EE 1e buissoud apAdIq pue uewysapad U.q...bmcou 9.£0€2
T°0 $ 00 $ 10 $ BU3J3H IS Ul 'S392.1S UlR pue YeQ Jajiey) je H{emssosd :m_:mwnoq..ﬁ::mcou vLE0EC
: ~anuaay
9°0 $ 00 $ 90 ¢ OuB|0S 0 133.43S UosIpe wouy Aemyyed 3pdAdyq pue uepysepad 1onasuo)  £/£0€2
SIIAJUNOA Ut Y221 peoayes o}
€£°0 $ 0°0 $ €90 $ 312413 sjuapisald wouy yed apAxg pue uelssapad Juendwod-yay 3on13suo) TL£0€2
abueydayuy umw..:.mqw.m.m:!”._.\umom..uoo;uwm
€9 $ 00 $ €9 $ Pue 6z 210y ayy oy Juadefpe Ajpoe) IEPOWLISIUE SEDURLL 3Y) PMIISUOD 906
pansind (aseyd [PJUBWUOIIALS)
. busaq s) saseyd 123foud jJuanbasqns 404 Bbupuny o9 $ ¢G'1 $ S°'1 ¢ uonasIduI 62 2Jnoy/z) anoy je SjuswaAosdwy uotjesedas apesd PSU0]  S/0b6
pansind (s3seyd UBISAP PUE BJUBWUOIAUS) 62 pue 2l sanoy
busaq si saseyd yoafosd juanbasqns 103 buipuny 0°0 $ €9 $ €9 $ Punoquinos o3 12z 3oy punoqyynos Huggdrauuod J9A0AI B DNNSUO)  £/0b6
0°21 $ 00 $ o021 $ S3ue| ¢ 03 buissosdsono J3au)s Isidfez anoy uapim. 9bs 22
S3JON J23foid 2Spuny 1Spung 1502 329foug weuboid/3aafold Jaquini
Ateuoyiauosig pajjwwo)y  eyop LRNEITTEN

(ss#110p 2.n3ipuadxa-jo-teak Jo suoymu up)

Ajuno) edepn

129



NOISSINKOD NOILVINOASNYYL NYLINOJONLIN

“ss820.d buuueld ueld Ge0Z uopelsodsurl) ayy BA $329foud 0y 6 Joj (spung pay

D Ul pawsuIR1Basd ApRalje jou pue) DN OF HARRAR Spuny 21q5ay) uw spunj Aueuopaudsiq z

“Ueld SE02 UopRysodsuesy ay) jo Juaiidojaaap ay) o} Jopd uonde D1 Aq payesoe 10 ‘sasn 2U1ads Joj Me; AQ PIAIISA) USDG JARY SPUNY PIRINIOY T

SulewaJ iiejous 0°TZZ § 0°€0F $ 0°pBZ'T § 3duUBUUIBW SPROJ PUB S133J)S [BI0T  §690€2
. = 9°g ¢ 00 $ 9°'g $ uoAue) ueduawy ybnoayy jies Uelsapad/ajdAdlg Mau JoNIIsU0)  2790€7
- = ZSIveit 1oafoid J3)ueq Ajases iny pue Juswubijeas speid
Aunod-13inw/uoibay easy Aeg ass | aseyq Jo4 5°1Z $ 0'0 $ GS'12 $ Buipnjouy *(uoAue) uosanuer) zi 90y 03 sjualaaodull Z aseyd Juswaidw  §650€Z
R suonesado jeubys buiaosdui Jo Jnogepunoy e Bujidonusuod Aq uoiesssyul
29 $ 00 $ 29 $ (Peoisso) plojayiny) gzL 9)N0Y/6Z 330y au) Jo Ayges ayy anoudwt 6TS0EZ
F Lak4 $ 00 $ vy $ 821 24N0Y/peoy 152104 Je INOGEPUNO. B JONNSUOD)  BTGOEZ
°T $ 11 $ z2 $ #3243 A1Q 0} 3||IAJUNOA Wosy anUBAY ouejos 3jeAd3 8osoez
2°0 $ 20 $  31WI[ UMO) BIIATUNOA YINOS 0} 3JIJI) e WoJy Yyed uep}sapad/appAdlg PNIISUC)  6640ET
[ $ 11 $ I1€J4 OPEIBA(IS 0} 62 33Ny WoJj (1eJ) 3AIIG | SSBI) JINJJSu0D) 86v0€2
9y $ 9% $ uoAue) uedLiawly uj peoy yiedity 0} peoy JOMO} WoJj peoy ulaeQ pualxl  98HOE?
6°0 $ 60 $ eden ul sdwel 62 230y 32 aNUSAY BjowW] U s|eubis J1y3ea3 RISVl PRPOEZ
133435 15414 JO YINOS |ies) OPRIBA|IS 3A0IdW] PUR LRSI ise3/a|squooy  °
2°e $ 00 $ z2 $ /PAUL/itelL opesaAlS arosdwi 03 (4Sd) 1oday Apnis Paloud asedaid  €8v0€2
S3JON 329fosd ZSpuny 1spuny 1507 308foay welboid/ydalold  saquny
Aleuonaudsia pajywwosy  1ey0L ERITEYETE

(sse|jop anypuadxa-jo-Jeak Jo suoypw uj)

Ajuno) edepN

130



